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REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET FOR THE YEAR ERIZEHTEHEMBESZ 52K A

2016

—E—RE

Hong Kong #& & 58.23%
Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A H fth ity [& 0.87%
Europe B 1.41%
North and South America 1k 35 i & 7 =i 39.49%

REVENUE BY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR

2016
—E-KF

2015
—E2-EHF

Hong Kong & /& 1.24%
Other regions in Asia Pacific 25 A £ fth it [& 13.34%
Europe B 5.16%
North and South America 1t 3 il J # 36 M 80.26%

FARTERBE T ZWA

2015
—E-hfF

Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

HERHERRRBER 39.20%

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
ERHEBBRAER 2.57%

Provision of public relations services

REDHBERS 0.48%

Provision of construction services in building construction,
building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation

REtETRE ETRERNETR

BERERREBSHEZRERSE 54.26%
Provision of money lending

BHtRE 3.49%
Investment in securities

BHRA 0%
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Manufacture and sale of medical devices products

HERHEERRRBER 75.64%

Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products
BUERHELBEAER 23.14%

Provision of public relations services
REAHBERS 1.22%



Financial Highlights
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS IR EEERE
HIGHLIGHTS

The following table sets forth certain financial information of AMCO  TXRHINERZERAR AT ([RAQF ) REKH
United Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, BRR) (% [AER )R REERPZET

the “Group”) as of the date for the years indicated: M ER:

OPERATING RESULTS (HK$'000) 2016 2015
RE%E/(THET) —E—-RF —E-HF
Revenue from continuing operations MEFELEEH 2 B/A 98,879 71,845
Loss for the year FEEE (18,409) (18,606)
FINANCIAL POSITION (HK$'000) 2016 2015
B (F#x) —E—-XRF —T—RHEF
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN Fl# A A JE(L#E 302,842 243,770
Total assets BEE 334,004 274,566
Net assets BEFE 302,842 243,770
Net assets value per share (HK cents) FREEFE GBI 16.3 19.6
FINANCIAL STATISTICS 2016 2015
B &t —E-XREF —E—RF
Current ratio’ B L & 9.9 6.5
Total debt to total assets ratio? BMEBRAEENL R 0.1 0.1
Return on total assets (%)3 488 FE B3R K (%)3 (5.5) (6.8)
Return on sales (%)* 55 [0 3 R (%)* (18.6) (25.9)
(restated)
(gE5))

Loss per share from continuing and RERBERBRIEEEEG 2

discontinued operations (HK cents) TR EE (B
Basic and diluted BEARREE (1.0) (2.7)
Notes: Bt 5

1. Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities. 1. BRI RBDEERU RS BETH

2. Total debt to total assets ratio is calculated by dividing the total 2. REHELEELXRIIAGEREKABEE

o s
= H o

indebtedness by total assets. Al =

3. Return on total assets is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by 3. BEERBEIIAFERBERABEETHE -

total assets.

4. Return on sales is calculated by dividing the loss for the year by revenue 4. $HEBHREDARAFELEXEB 2 FEE

from continuing operations. BRABAGTE -

ERERERAT
2016 F ;] 3
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Corporate Information

ARER

DIRECTORS =2

Executive Directors HITES

ZHANG Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director) REE (FEREFHLIE)
PENG Shiyuan EAS

JIA Minghui ERRE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
WONG Siu Ki =K

CHAN Ngai Sang Kenny PR %% =

LI Kwok Fat T
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWE

CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric R D R
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EER T
ZHANG Hengxin KT

CHAN Kwong Leung, Eric R BB R

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG ZBETEL I

9/F, Fung House BB

19-20 Connaught Road Central FFEEH19-205%
Hong Kong B KRENE
REGISTERED OFFICE ZMREE
Clarendon House Clarendon House
2 Church Street 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11 Hamilton HM11
Bermuda Bermuda
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Chairman’s Statement
EFEHE

The Year 2016 has continued to be a challenging year accompanied with
business transformation to extend our business portfolio to different
business sectors. We have actively reallocated resources among core
business segments, discontinued certain operation with no prospects and
commenced new businesses with growth and performance potential.
Facing a high level of uncertainty of the Hong Kong and global
economies, the Group has successfully generated an overall increase in

its revenue and income streams and achieved stability in its results.

Suffered from declining sales order from a major customer, the business
segment in the manufacture and sale of medical devices products
(“Medical Devices Business”) has temporarily lost its momentum of
growth in 2016 after its rebound of segment results from loss to profit
last year, showing a decrease in revenue and segment profits this year.
Confronting the challenge of fluctuating sales order, the Group has
persisted to deploy business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing
of business processes and implementing stringent cost control in order to
maintain its long-term sustainable competitive advantages in the business
segment. The Group's business segment in the manufacture and sale of
plastic moulding products (“Plastic Moulding Business”) has significantly
downsized in 2016 with significant decline in revenue due to end of
product life cycles of most of its products. Despite significant decline
in revenue, the Group has turned the segment results of the Plastic
Moulding Business from loss into profit this year benefited from effective
product mix fine tuning and cost containment programs implemented

over the past few years.

The Group has successfully stepped in the field of provision of
construction services in building construction, building maintenance and
improvement works, project management, renovation and decoration
works (“Building Contract Works Business”) by acquisition of a wholly-
owned subsidiary at the beginning of 2016 which has contributed
significant increase in revenue of the Group and broadened its income
streams in 2016. While the newly acquired Building Contract Works
Business has generated stable income and diversified our income sources,
the Group has focused to foster its business development in response

to the fierce market competition of the building construction and

maintenance industry.
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The Group has commenced the business in the provision of money
lending (“Money Lending Business”) in early 2016. The Money Lending
Business has successfully generated stable income and become a new
source of income streams to the Group. The Money Lending Business
has generated segment profits in 2016 and contributed improvement in
the overall profit margins of the Group. With the aim to improve capital
usage efficiency and generate investment returns, the Group commenced
the business of investment in securities (“Securities Investment”) in mid-
2016 by investing in listed equity securities in Hong Kong which has also
generated segment profits and contributed to the stability of the overall

results of the Group in 2016.

PROSPECTS

With the introduction and commencement of new businesses which has
successfully diversified the Group’s business portfolio in 2016, the Group
will deploy its efforts on formulating and modifying business strategies
to facilitate business development of its business segments. To monitor
the ongoing business development, the Group will conduct constant and
dynamic performance appraisals and evaluation, and actively reallocate
its assets, labour force and funding to profitable business segments.
To cope with the ongoing uncertainties of the Hong Kong and global
economies, the Group will continue to build on its diversified business
portfolio, lean organization structure, and effective capital allocation to

generate stable income streams and enhance profitability.

In addition to continuing evolution of business strategies to develop its
business segments, the Group will seek to adjust its business portfolio
to adapt to the ever-changing business environment and in response to
the changing business performance, and will proactively explore every
potentially profitable business and investment opportunity with an aim to
maintain an optimal business portfolio which can maximize shareholders’

value and drive sustainable growth and prosperity.

Zhang Hengxin
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
= IE Jﬁ' _L—J' A & *ﬁ'

RESULTS

The total revenue of the Group from continuing operations increased
HK$27.1 million or 37.7%, from HK$71.8 million last year to HK$98.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2016. Such an increase was
mainly attributable to the revenue generated from the Building Contract
Works Business newly acquired in January 2016, partially offset by the
decrease in revenue generated from the Medical Devices Business and

Plastic Moulding Business.

Gross profit of the Group was HK$17.2 million, representing an increase
of HK$6.4 million or 59.3% as compared to HK$10.8 million in 2015.
Gross profit margin for the year reached 17.4% (2015: 15.0%),
representing an elevation of 2.4 percentage points over the last financial
year, primarily as a result of gross profit margin contributed from the

Money Lending Business newly commenced in the year.

Other income and other gains or losses during the year under review
recorded HK$5.2 million, an increase of HK$1.7 million or 48.6% as
compared to HK$3.5 million in the corresponding year of 2015, which
was mainly due to realised and unrealised gain recorded on change in
fair value of held-for-trading investments arising from the business of

Securities Investment newly commenced in the year.

The distribution costs declined by HK$0.2 million to HK$0.3 million
during the year under review (2015: HK$0.5 million), representing a
reduction of 40.0% against the corresponding year of 2015, alongside
with the decrease in revenue of Medical Devices Business and Plastic
Moulding Business. The administrative expenses increased by HK$8.1
million to HK$38.8 million (2015: HK$30.7 million), representing an
increase of 26.4% over the corresponding year of 2015. Such an increase
was mainly attributable to the expenses from the Building Contract

Works Business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Finance costs increased from HK$6,000 in 2015 to HK$0.1 million in
2016. Such an increase is primarily due to finance costs on borrowings
made from the Building Contract Works Business which were fully repaid

in February 2016.

During the year under review, the Group recorded a share of loss of
an associate of HK$1.6 million which was acquired in April 2016 and

disposed of in December 2016.

The Group discontinued its operation in the provision for human
resources management services (“HR Business”) in June 2016 and
recorded a loss from discontinued operation of HK$0.4 million (2015:
loss from discontinued operation of HK$1.5 million) during the year

under review.

As a result, the overall loss attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$18.4 million, which remained relatively stable as compared to

HK$18.6 million loss for the corresponding year of 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing Operations
Medlical Devices Business

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Medical Devices Business
recorded revenue of HK$38.8 million, which decreased by 28.5% or
HK$15.5 million as compared to that of HK$54.3 million in the previous
year. This amount represented 39.2% of the Group’s total revenue
from continuing operations for the year under review. In the second
half of 2016, the economy of the United States of America (“America”)
has gone increasingly uncertain, and the Medical Devices Business has
suffered from a decline in sales order from our key customer in America.
Along with one of the medical devices product reached the end of its
product life cycle, revenue of the Medical Devices Business has decreased

over previous year for the year under review.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Segment profit of the Medical Devices Business amounted to HK$1.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease
of HK$1.0 million or 45.5% as compared to that of HK$2.2 million in
the corresponding year of 2015. The decrease in segment profit was
primarily as a result of decline in sales order and end of product life cycle
of one of the medical devices product which has a relatively higher profit
margin. Facing the challenge of fluctuating sales order, the Group will
persist to deploy business strategies of streamlining and outsourcing of
business processes, implementing stringent cost control and ensuring
effective utilization of resources in order to maintain its long-term

sustainable competitive advantages in the business segment.

Plastic Moulding Business

The revenue from the Plastic Moulding Business decreased by 84.9%
or HK$14.1 million to HK$2.5 million, as compared to HK$16.6 million
in the previous year, which accounted for 2.5% of the Group's total
revenue from continuing operations for the year under review. A majority
of plastic moulding products suffered from declining sales orders as
relevant customers’ end products have reached the end of their product
life cycle, causing significant decline in revenue of the Plastic Moulding
Business during the year under review. Since the first half of 2015, the
Group has ceased the production of the majority of these products,
which had contributed a relatively low gross profit margin. However, the
Group has been accepting small number of production orders of mould
fabrication and some products, which have a relatively higher gross profit

margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Along with the improvement in profit margins of sales orders and the
reduction of distribution costs and administrative expenses driven by
effective cost control, the Group turned HK$2.1 million segment loss for
the corresponding year of 2015 into a profit of HK$0.4 million for the
year under review. Despite improvement in segment results during the
year under review, the Group considered the momentum of the Plastic
Moulding Business to grow is limited due to end of product life cycle
of the majority of products. As such, the Group has shifted assets and
resources of this segment to other more profitable business units, but will
continue the operation of the Plastic Moulding Business as long as it still
contributes sufficiently to share appropriate portion of the administration

and operation cost of the Group.

Provision of public relations services (“PR Business”)

During the year under review, revenue generated from the PR Business
was HK$0.5 million (2015: HK$0.9 million) which accounted for 0.5% of
the Group's total revenue from continuing operations, and this business
recorded a segment loss of HK$86,000 (2015: segment loss of HK$0.5
million). Despite reduction of segment loss during the year under review,
the Group considered the revenue and gross profit margin of the PR
Business have been continually curtailed and the momentum of the PR
Business to grow is limited due to lack of customer base and market
presence despite continued efforts made by the public relations team
in providing public relations activities to a small number of corporate
clients. In view of this, the Group has slowed down its business plan of

development and expansion in respect of this segment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEFNWR DM

Building Contract Works Business

Revenue from ACE Engineering Limited (“ACE Engineering”), a newly
acquired wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in January 2016
which carried on the Building Contract Works Business, was HK$53.7
million, which contributed 54.3% of the Group's total revenue from
continuing operations for the year under review. This business recorded
a gross profit of HK$5.6 million and gross profit margin of 10.4%.
Segment loss of this business during the year under review amounted to
HK$1.6 million which was primarily as a result of amortisation charges
of intangible asset acquired as part of the acquisition of the business of

HK$2.5 million which was non-cash item.

As at 31 December 2016, ACE Engineering had undertaken (i) four
building maintenance and/or renovation projects from private sector
with the contract sums ranging from approximately HK$1.6 million
to HK$15.4 million and the aggregate contract sum of approximately
HK$41.5 million; and (ii) one building repair project from the Hong Kong
Housing Society with the contract sum of approximately HK$5.0 million.
Hence, the aggregate contract sums from private sector and the Hong
Kong Housing Society amounted to approximately HK$46.5 million and
the aggregate estimated paid and payable subcontracting fee of those
five existing construction projects undertaken by ACE Engineering was
approximately HK$41.2 million. As at 31 December 2016, approximately
HK$20.5 million of the aggregate contract sums was still outstanding
and those five construction projects were pending to be completed

within next financial year.

While the Building Contract Works Business succeeded in contributing
increase in revenue and gross profit of the Group during the year
under review, segment results of this business indicated that market
competition of the building construction and maintenance industry is still
fierce. The Group will deploy more efforts to facilitate its development

and improvement in results.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Money Lending Business

Ever Great Finance Limited (“Ever Great”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, is a licensed money lender in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Since
January 2016, the Group commenced the Money Lending Business in the
name of Ever Great and recorded loan interest income of HK$2.9 million
for the year under review. With an aim to realise the loan portfolio of
Ever Great in a relatively short period of time and to realise value of the
money lender’s license generated by Ever Great, the Group disposed
of Ever Great in October 2016 and continued to develop the Money
Lending Business in the name of JS Finance Limited (“JS Finance”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a licensed money lender
in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance. JS Finance recorded
loan interest income of HK$0.6 million for the year under review.
Accordingly, total revenue generated from the Money Lending Business
amounted to HK$3.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
which accounted for 3.5% of the Group's total revenue from continuing
operations. Segment profit of the Money Lending Business amounted to
HK$2.8 million during the year under review. The outstanding principal
and interest amount of loan receivables as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$74.6 million. During the year under review, there was no provision
of doubtful or bad debt of the Money Lending Business. The Group will
continue to develop this business by employing prudent credit control
procedures and strategies to hold a balance between the business

growth and the risk management.

Securities Investment

During the year under review, the Group commenced the business of
Securities Investment. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
recorded realised gain of HK$1.9 million and unrealised gain of HK$1.5
million arising on change in fair value of held-for-trading investments of
listed equity securities in Hong Kong. No dividend income was received
from the held-for-trading investments during the year. Segment profit of
the Securities Investment amounted to HK$2.4 million for the year under

review.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group held 10 listed equity securities in
Hong Kong with the fair value of HK$166.3 million. In light of the recent
volatile financial market in Hong Kong, the Group intends to diversify
its investment portfolio in order to reduce the relevant concentration
and investment risks and will closely monitor the performance of this
business. The Group will keep adopting a prudent investment attitude

and develop its investment strategy with the aim to improve the capital

RZZ—A"F+ZA=+—8 AEEFEEZ+
EEBLTRAESR 2 A NEER166,300,000
Br -BRTHEESRTSDE AEEHS
TALEREAEAREERAER RIBERRE -
W) B R TS 2 7RI - AE BRI EE
BELEREREREARE STERSENTHA
ERFBAEEHEELE T REIMEEBIR -

usage efficiency and generate additional investment returns on the idle

funds of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's held-for-trading investments were

represented as follows:

BREHIIMT

RECZ-—RFT-HA=+—H AEEFEES

Fair value
% of gain/(loss) % of total
shareholding for the year Fair value assets of the
as at ended as at Group as at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Company Name/Stock Code 2016 2016 2016 2016
Bz
—E-RE EEREER
R tZA=t-8H ZE-AF
—E-RE tEER R=ZB-R"F +=ZA=+-H
+=ZA=+-H AREE +=ZA=t-H ZEEBE
ARER/ ROEKE ZRERDY i/ (E8) ZAREE BOl
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Securities listed in Hong Kong ERLEMES
China licheng Holdings Limited FEERERER A
(“China Jicheng”) (1027) ([HRES%K]) (1027)
(Note (a)) (P3E(a)) 0.297% 54 42,147 12.62%
Luen Wong Group Holdings Limited G RERRERAR
(“Luen Wong") (8217) ([HEE]) (8217)
(Note (b)) (M3 (b)) 0.085% 7,777 23,744 7.11%
China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited R EEB Y E£E
("China e-Wallet") (802) BERAR ([FEER])
(Note (c)) (802) (P&E(0)) 2.176% (3,980) 33,150 9.93%
WLS Holdings Limited ERERERAR
(“WLS") (8021) (DER]) (8021)
(Note (d)) (B 3E(d)) 1.529% (@71 44,910 13.44%
Others (Note (e)) Hit, (Kt5E(e)) (1,852) 22,360 6.69%
1,528 166,311 49.79%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Notes:

China lJicheng is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of
umbrella. As disclosed in the interim report of China Jicheng for the
six months ended 30 June 2016, it recorded unaudited net profit
attributable to its owners of RMB25.4 million for the six months ended
30 June 2016. With regards to the future prospects of China Jicheng,
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) noted that China Jicheng
will further strengthen its leading market position and consolidate its
competitive advantages in the industry, expanding production capacity,
promoting business development, and enhancing its research and
development capabilities in order to match the increasing demand of the

umbrella market.

Luen Wong is principally engaged in provision of civil engineering works.
As disclosed in the third quarterly report of Luen Wong for the nine
months ended 31 December 2016, it recorded unaudited net profit
attributable to its owners of HK$21.7 million for the nine months ended
31 December 2016. With regards to the future prospects of Luen Wong,
the Directors noted that the board of directors of Luen Wong considers
that the demand for civil engineering works is expected to increase in
the future due to various infrastructure development plans, notably
the Ten Major Infrastructure Projects, and the planned increase in the
Government's public expenditure on infrastructure, resulting in more

business opportunities being presented to the market.

China e-Wallet (previously known as RCG Holdings Limited) is principally
engaged in (i) trading of security and biometric products, solutions,
projects and services; (ii) internet and mobile’s application and related
accessories; and (iii) commodities trading. As disclosed in the interim
report of China e-Wallet for the six months ended 30 June 2016, it
recorded unaudited net loss attributable to its owners of HK$71.7
million for the six months ended 30 June 2016. With regards to the
future prospects of China e-Wallet, the Directors noted that China
e-Wallet intended to diversify into Near-Field Communication market
which is designated to be a secure form of data exchange, as well as
to develop new commercial application platform for mobile phone and

horizontally expand its information technology business.
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EEENwWR D
(d)  WLS is principally engaged in (i) scaffolding services for construction and

buildings work; (ii) fitting out services for construction and buildings
work; (iii) management contracting services for construction and
buildings work; (iv) gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
installation and maintenance services; and (v) money lending business.
As disclosed in the third quarterly report of WLS for the nine months
ended 31 January 2017, it recorded unaudited net loss attributable to
its owners of HK$17.3 million for the nine months ended 31 January
2017. With regards to the future prospects of WLS, the Directors noted
that WLS will allocate a greater portion of capital resources on the
development of OX Financial Securities Limited, a securities firm set
up by WLS, and its overall securities business after it has successfully
obtained license to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Directors noted
that WLS is confident with its experienced investment team and looks

forward to generate satisfactory returns from this sector in the future.

None of these investments represented more than 5% of the total assets

of the Group as at 31 December 2016.

Looking ahead, the Directors believe that the future performance of the

above investments held by the Group will be volatile and substantially

affected by overall economic environment, equity market conditions,

investor sentiment and the business performance and development of

the investee companies. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain

a diversified portfolio of investment of various industries to minimize

the possible financial risks. Also, the Directors will cautiously assess the

performance progress of the investment portfolio from time to time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Discontinued Operation
HR Business

During the year under review, revenue generated from the HR Business
was HK$1.6 million (2015: HK$0.5 million) and the HR Business incurred
a loss before income tax of HK$0.6 million (2015: loss before income tax
of HK$1.5 million). Such loss was mainly attributable to the limitation
of increase in revenue due to reducing demand for recruitment services

from various business sectors.

In the first half of 2016, Hong Kong economy was adversely affected
by a series of global and local crisis and events such as decline in
oil and commodity price, the United States ("U.S.”) interest rate
hike uncertainties, sluggish local merchandise trade, weak tourism
performance, and the correction of residential property prices. Against
this backdrop of this intensified downturn risk in Hong Kong economy,
enterprise leaders tended to be conservative and prudent in their
business development and expansion plan, and in return reduced
labor demand in various industries. Companies including multinational
corporations and local small and medium enterprises (“SMEs") in
Hong Kong chose to shut down unprofitable business units and lay
off staff to bolster their corporate resilience to the global and local
headwinds. Although the unemployment rate of Hong Kong only
edged up one-tenth to 3.4% between March and June 2016 compared
to the second half of 2015, many headhunters and human resources
participants considered the current level of hiring is the worst since the
2008 global financial crisis. A wave of job cuts, layoffs, hiring and salary
freeze has been announced in the first half of 2016 by international and
local bankers, financial institutions, theme park, and SMEs from various
business sectors including tourism, retail and trading. Labor market in
Hong Kong suffered under this background of business shrinking and

corporate battle to cut cost in the first half of 2016.
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Having considered that there is no clear potential for material
improvement on the performance of the HR Business under the
challenging environment described above, the Directors believed that
disposal represented a good opportunity for the Group to improve its
overall returns and would provide a greater value to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by focusing its resources on other
profitable business units. As such, on 28 June 2016, the Group disposed
of the HR Business at a consideration of HK$0.1 million. Following the
disposal of the HR Business, the Group recorded a gain on disposal of
HK$0.2 million and a loss from discontinued operation of HK$0.4 million

(2015: loss from discontinued operation of HK$1.5 million).

ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF BUSINESSES
Acquisition of Building Contract Works Business

Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on 5 January 2016,
Best Reward Global Limited (“Best Reward”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, completed the acquisition of ACE Engineering pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement dated 14 September 2015 entered
into between Best Reward as the purchaser and two individuals as
vendors, each being an independent third party, to acquire 100%
of the issued share capital of ACE Engineering at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$20.5 million. ACE Engineering is principally engaged

in the Building Contract Works Business in Hong Kong.

Details of the acquisition of ACE Engineering are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 14 September 2015 and 5 January

2016 respectively and the Company’s circular dated 4 December 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Acquisition and disposal of 40% of issued share
capital of Ultimate Elite Investments Limited

On 15 January 2016, Praiseful Moment Limited (”Praiseful Moment”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the purchaser entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party, Rosy
Lane Investments Limited (a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI"”) with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Hong
Kong Education (Int'l) Investments Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability, the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 1082)) as
the vendor, in which Praiseful Moment conditionally agreed to acquire,
and the vendor agreed to sell, the 8 issued shares in the share capital
of Ultimate Elite Investments Limited (“Ultimate Elite”), representing
40% of the issued share capital of Ultimate Elite at completion, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$50.0 million. On 11 April 2016,
the acquisition has been completed. Praiseful Moment then holds 40%
of the issued share capital of Ultimate Elite and indirectly holds the
properties located at Offices A-H, J-N & P on 21/F. (Whole Floor), No. 3
On Kwan Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong (“Shatin Property”)
held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultimate Elite, Vision Smart Limited
("Vision Smart”). Ultimate Elite and Vision Smart then became an

associate of the Company.

Details of the acquisition of Ultimate Elite are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 15 January 2016, 22 January 2016 and 11 April
2016 respectively.
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On 5 December 2016, Praiseful Moment, as the vendor entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with an independent third party, Winrange
Investments Limited (a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability and is wholly-owned by Finsoft Financial Investment Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability, the issued shares of which are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8018)) as the
purchaser, pursuant to which Praiseful Moment agreed to sell and the
purchaser agreed to acquire, the 8 issued shares in the share capital of
Ultimate Elite, representing 40% of the issued share capital of Ultimate
Elite at completion, at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$48.8
million. Completion took place immediately after the signing of the sale
and purchase agreement. On the same date, Ultimate Elite and Vision
Smart ceased to be an associate of the Company and Praiseful Moment
ceased to hold, directly or indirectly, any interest in Ultimate Elite and
Vision Smart and, in substance, the Shatin Property. The Group recorded
a gain arising from disposal of the associate of HK$0.4 million. The
net proceeds from the disposal after deducting the expenses directly
attributable thereto of approximately HK$0.6 million was approximately
HK$48.2 million, which had been used as to (i) approximately HK$44.9
million to develop and operate the Group’s Money Lending Business; and
(i) approximately HK$3.3 million for the general working capital of the

Group.

Details of the disposal of Ultimate Elite are set out in the Company's

announcement dated 5 December 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Subscription of 14% of issued share capital of
Alpha Generator Limited

On 18 April 2016, Eternity Riches Limited (“Eternity Riches”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the subscriber entered
into a subscription agreement with Alpha Generator Limited (“Alpha
Generator”) and three individuals as warrantors with each of the
warrantors being an independent third party and a shareholder of Alpha
Generator, pursuant to which Eternity Riches agreed to subscribe for
and Alpha Generator agreed to allot and issue, the 210 new shares
(“Subscription Shares”) at the aggregate subscription price of HK$15.3
million. The Subscription Shares represent 14% of the enlarged issued
share capital of Alpha Generator as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the Subscription Shares. Alpha Generator holds the entire equity
interests of OPS Interior Design Consultant Limited which is principally
engaged in the provision of interior design, fit out and decoration
services. The completion took place immediately after the signing of the
subscription agreement and at the same date, Alpha Generator and its

subsidiary became available-for-sale investment of the Company.

Details of the subscription are set out in the Company’ s announcements

dated 5 January 2016 and 18 April 2016 respectively.

Disposal of a subsidiary

As the performance of Zeed Asia Technology Limited (“Zeed Asia”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired in November 2015,
was behind the management’'s expectation and has yet to generate
revenue since acquisition, the Group decided to dispose of it and focus

its resources on other profitable business segments.

On 31 March 2016, the Group completed the disposal of Zeed Asia at
an aggregate cash consideration of HK$6.2 million and recorded a gain

arising from disposal of the subsidiary of HK$2.3 million.

Disposal of the HR Business

It is anticipated that the economic slowdown would possibly lead to a
recession in the HR Business caused by freezed hiring and massive layoffs.
In view of the unsatisfactory performance of the HR Business in last year
and the first half of 2016, the Group decided to dispose of this business

and shift its resources into other profitable businesses.
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On 28 June 2016, the Group completed the disposal of the HR Business
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$0.1 million and recorded a

gain on disposal of HK$0.2 million of the discontinued operation.

Disposal of Ever Great

As the maturity period of Ever Great's loan portfolio varies with a
range which can be extended up to two years, the Group considers
the disposal of Ever Great represents a good opportunity to realise the
loans and interest receivables of its loan portfolio in a relatively short
period of time. This can improve the Group's cash flow and liquidity
position, and realise value of the money lender’s license generated by
Ever Great. As such, on 7 October 2016, the Company as the vendor
and an independent third party, DX.com Holdings Limited (a company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with
limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8086)) as the purchaser, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the purchaser agreed to acquire
and the Company agreed to sell the 2 issued shares in the share capital
of Success Beauty Limited (“Success Beauty”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company with the sole asset being the entire issued share capital
of Ever Great, Success Beauty and Ever Great collectively referred to
as the “Success Beauty Group”) which represented the entire issued
share capital of Success Beauty at completion, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$58.3 million (subject to adjustment by reference
to the net assets value of the Success Beauty Group at completion).
Completion took place immediately after the signing of the sale and
purchase agreement. After the completion of the disposal, Success
Beauty ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and the financial
results of the Success Beauty Group were no longer consolidated into
the Group’s financial statements. The adjusted consideration amounted
to HK$59.5 million, and the Company recorded a gain arising from
disposal of the subsidiaries of HK$1.0 million. The net proceeds from
the disposal after deducting the expenses directly attributable thereto
of approximately HK$0.1 million was approximately HK$59.4 million,
which had been used as to (i) approximately HK$40.5 million to develop
and operate the Group’s Money Lending Business; and (ii) approximately

HK$18.9 million for Securities Investment by the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Details of the disposal of Ever Great are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 7 October 2016.

Disposal of Bonus First Group Limited (“Bonus
First”)

On 19 October 2016, the Company as the vendor and an independent
third party, Key Winner Investments Limited (a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jun
Yang Financial Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 397)) as the purchaser,
entered into the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to sell, and the purchaser conditionally
agreed to acquire, the 200 issued shares in the share capital of Bonus
First (a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability and is
directly wholly-owned by the Company) which represented the entire
issued share capital of Bonus First at completion, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$56.5 million. The principal business of Bonus First
is investment holding and its principal asset is a commercial property
located at Office 503 (also known as Unit 503) on 5th Floor, Wing On
House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong (“Central Property”).
On 25 October 2016, the Company completed the disposal of Bonus
First and recorded a loss arising from disposal of the subsidiary of
HK$4.6 million. After the completion of the disposal, the Company
ceased to have any interest in Bonus First and, in substance, the Central
Property. The net proceeds from the disposal after deducting the
expenses directly attributable thereto of approximately HK$0.1 million
was approximately HK$56.4 million, which had been used for Securities

Investment by the Group.

Details of the disposal of Bonus First are set out in the Company's

announcement dated 19 October 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Possible formation of joint venture

On 22 July 2016, the Company entered into the cooperation framework
agreement with EEJTEIMEEZE € (in English, for identification
purpose only, Linyi Trade City Administrative Commission) in relation to
the proposed formation of a joint venture company for the purpose of
collaborating to develop the business of logistics software systems and
explore investment opportunities. It is contemplated that the Company
will contribute RMB100 million as initial investment in the joint venture
company. As at the date of this report, the parties to the framework
agreement are still negotiating for the possible cooperation and no
definitive agreement has been entered into. Further announcement in
relation to the framework agreement will be made by the Company as
and when appropriate. Details of the framework agreement are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 22 July 2016.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2016, the Group's consolidated net assets was
HK$302.8 million,
compared to that of HK$243.8 million in 2015, primarily as a result of

representing an increase of HK$59.0 million as
completion of open offer during the year.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company has 1,862,679,481 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each in issue.

Open offer

On 20 January 2016, the Company announced its proposal to raise
funds by way of an open offer of one offer share for every two shares
held by the qualifying Shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.13
per offer share (“Open Offer”). It was considered that the Group's long
term growth would be financed by way of equity fund raising which
would not only strengthen the Group's capital base but also enhance its
financial position without increasing finance costs. The subscription price
of HK$0.13 per offer share represented (i) a discount of approximately
67.5% to the closing price of HK$0.40 per share as quoted on the Stock
Exchange on 20 January 2016; (ii) a discount of approximately 66.9%
to the average closing price of HK$0.393 per share quoted on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days before 20 January 2016; and (iii) a
discount of approximately 63.4% to the closing price of HK$0.355 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 19 February 2016, being the
latest practicable date of the prospectus of the Open Offer dated 23
February 2016.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Open Offer was fully-underwritten by Ample Orient Capital
Limited (“Underwriter”) pursuant to the underwriting agreement
dated 20 January 2016 entered into by and between the Company
and Underwriter and was completed on 17 March 2016 with a total of
620,893,160 new shares with an aggregate nominal value of HK$6.2
million issued on the same date, on the basis of 1,241,786,321 shares
in issue on 22 February 2016, being the record date of the Open Offer.
The Company received the net proceeds of approximately HK$77.4
million after deducting relevant expenses in relation to the Open Offer,
representing a net price of HK$0.12 per offer share. The board of
Directors (the “Board”) intended to apply the net proceeds from the
Open Offer to develop and operate the Group’s Money Lending Business.
As at 31 December 2016, approximately HK$77.4 million of the net

proceeds from the Open Offer was used as intended.

Details of the Open Offer are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 20 January 2016, 11 February 2016 and 16 March 2016
respectively and the Company’s prospectus dated 23 February 2016.

Use of proceeds from placing of new shares under
specific mandate in November 2015 (“2015 SM Placing”)

The Company and the placing agent entered into a placing agreement
under specific mandate (“SM Placing Agreement”) and a supplemental
agreement to the SM Placing Agreement (“Supplemental SM Placing
Agreement”) on 14 July 2015 and 31 August 2015 respectively. Pursuant
to the Supplemental SM Placing Agreement, the Company conditionally
agreed to place 874,100,000 new shares (“SM Placing Shares”) at a
placing price of HK$0.23 per placing share on a best endeavor basis, to
not less than six placees, in order to strengthen the financial position
of the Group and provide working capital to the Group to meet future

development and obligations.
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All conditions set out in the SM Placing Agreement were fulfilled on 25
November 2015, and completion of the 2015 SM Placing took place on
30 November 2015 with a total of 874,100,000 SM Placing Shares with
an aggregate nominal value of HK$8.7 million issued on the same date.
The net proceeds received from 2015 SM Placing were approximately
HK$194.5 million (“2015 SM Placing Net Proceeds”) after deducting
commission and placing expenses, which had been used as intended as
to (i) approximately HK$1.2 million for general working capital of ACE
Engineering; (ii) HK$15.3 million for funding the subscription price for
the subscription of 14% equity interest in Alpha Generator; (iii) HK$58.9
million for funding the remaining consideration of the acquisition of
Bonus First; (iv) HK$50.0 million for funding the consideration for
the acquisition of 40% of issued share capital of Ultimate Elite which
holds the Shatin Property; (v) approximately HK$0.6 million for legal
and professional fees in relation to the acquisition of Bonus First; (vi)
approximately HK$0.2 million for legal and professional fees in relation
to the acquisition of Ultimate Elite; (vii) approximately HK$0.1 million for
general working capital associated with managing the Central Property;
(viii) approximately HK$41.0 million for the expansion of the Group’s
Money Lending Business; and (ix) approximately HK$27.2 million for the

general working capital of the Group.

Details of the 2015 SM Placing and the change in use of proceeds are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 July 2015, 31 August
2015, 27 October 2015, 18 November 2015, 30 November 2015,
11 April 2016, 18 April 2016 and 12 July 2016 respectively and the

Company's circular dated 2 November 2015.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Debt structure

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group's total borrowings from
financial institutions were zero. The Group’s total cash and bank balances
amounted to HK$30.5 million as at 31 December 2016, which decreased
HK$153.7 million as compared to that of 2015 (as at 31 December 2015:
HK$184.2 million).

Working capital and liquidity

As at 31 December 2016, both of the Group's current ratio and quick
ratio were 9.9 (31 December 2015: 6.5). Inventory turnover on sales
decreased to 0 day (31 December 2015: 5 days). Receivable turnover was

42 days (31 December 2015: 53 days).

Contingent liabilities and charges

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had not pledged any
assets to secure bank facilities and finance lease obligations. The Group

had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Foreign currency exposure

The Group’'s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly
denominated in United States dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Since Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars and the
exchange rate of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars was relatively stable
during the year, the Group’s exposure to the potential foreign currency

risk was relatively limited.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s employees number was 32 (31
December 2015: 38). The Group's employees are remunerated largely
based on their performance and experience, alongside with the current
industry practices. Remuneration packages of employees include
salaries, insurance, mandatory provident fund and share option scheme.
Other employee benefits include medical cover, housing allowance and

discretionary bonuses.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEABEHN

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Hengxin, aged 33, joined the Company as Executive
Director on 6 September 2016. He was appointed as Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company and the chairman of the Nomination
Committee on 31 January 2017 and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 1 January 2017. Mr. Zhang is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He obtained a Bachelor Degree in Human
Resources Management from Huazhong Agricultural University in
2006 and Master Degree of Arts in Industrial Relations and Personnel
Management from The University of Warwick, United Kingdom in
2007. Mr. Zhang has over 9 years of experience in human resources

management in different industries.

Mr. PENG Shiyuan, aged 30, joined the Company as Executive Director
on 30 September 2016. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Peng obtained a Bachelor Degree in Finance from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology in 2009 and Master
Degree of Industrial Economics from the Jinan University in 2012.
Mr. Peng has over four years of experience in wealth investment

management in different financial institutions.

Mr. JIA Minghui, aged 26, joined the Company as Executive Director
on 30 September 2016. He obtained a Master Degree of Development
Economics from the School of Oriental and African Studies, University
of London, United Kingdom in 2013. Mr. Jia has extensive experience
in the international finance and project management. He had been
working in the financial conglomerate in the People’s Republic of China
and responsible for client’s project management, projects merger and

acquisition activities.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WONG Siu Ki, aged 40, joined the Company as Independent Non-
executive Director on 1 May 2015. He was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee on 30 June 2015. Mr.
Wong graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in Accountancy with First Class Honours in November
1998. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong has more than 17 years of solid
working experiences in corporate management, capital markets and
the financial sector in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.
From 1997 to 2003, Mr. Wong worked in an international accounting
firm specialising in client’s initial public offerings. From 2004 to 2007,
Mr. Wong was appointed as the chief financial officer and company
secretary of Eagle Brand Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange of Singapore. From 2007 to 2010, Mr.
Wong was appointed as the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Xingfa Aluminum Holdings Limited (“Xingfa”), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 98).
From 2013 to 2015, Mr. Wong was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Major Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1389). From 2010
to 2012, Mr. Wong was appointed as a non-executive director of Xingfa
and since December 2012, Mr. Wong has been an alternate director
and an alternate authorised representative under Rule 3.05 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange to an executive
director and the chairman of the board of Xingfa. Mr. Wong has also
been the chief investment officer of Xingfa since 27 April 2015. Since
December 2015, Mr. Wong has been an executive director of Jia Meng
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise

Market of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 8101).
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREBASEHN

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. CHAN Ngai Sang Kenny, aged 52, joined the Company as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 30 June 2015. He was appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on 30
June 2015. He is a partner and founder of Kenny Chan & Co., a firm
of Certified Public Accountants (Practising). Mr. Chan has over 25 years
of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and corporate finance
and was involved in several merger and acquisition and initial public
offering projects. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in
Accounting and Finance from The University of New South Wales and
is a Fellow Member of The Association of International Accountants,
an Associate Chartered Accountant of Chartered Accountants Australia
and New Zealand, a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia, a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an
Associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan has served
as the President of The Association of International Accountants Hong
Kong Branch from July 2012 to June 2015 and has been accredited
as an Authorised Supervisor of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He served as the District Governor of Lions Clubs
International District 303 — Hong Kong & Macao, China in the year
2009/2010. Mr. Chan also serves as a panel member of the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Appeal Board, a committee member of the
Tsuen Wan District Fight Crime Committee and a Honorary President of
the Tsuen Wan District Junior Police Call. Mr. Chan is an independent
non-executive director of each of TSC Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 206), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
Combest Holdings Limited (stock code: 8190), a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, Convoy Global
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, WLS Holdings Limited (stock code: 8021), a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange,
and Sing On Holdings Limited (stock code: 8352), a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. LI Kwok Fat, aged 41, joined the Company as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 30 June 2015. He was appointed as a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee on 30
June 2015. He obtained his Master of Finance (Investment Management)
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010. Mr. Li
has over 15 years of experience in accounting, financial management
and compliance gained through servicing several companies listed on the
Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Li is currently the company secretary of China Modern Dairy Holdings
Ltd. (stock code: 1117), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Li was the company secretary and the chief financial
controller of Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8153)
for the period from October 2012 to June 2016, a company listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Li was the
company secretary and the chief financial controller of Co-Prosperity
Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) for the period from May 2016 to
November 2016, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Li was admitted as a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in May 2003 and a member of the Hong Kong

Institute of Certified Public Accountants in January 2005.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Man Kong Ming, aged 29, is the Financial Controller of the Group.
Mr. Man is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting, financial
management and internal control of the Group. Mr. Man holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance from The
University of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Man has over 7 years
of experience in auditing, accounting and financial management and
previously worked in international audit firms. He joined the Group in

June 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has always recognised the importance of Shareholders’
accountability and transparency and is committed to maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. The Company has complied with
all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”)
throughout the year ended 31 December 2016 as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on

the Stock Exchange, except for certain deviations disclosed herein.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
its Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Group and
oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive
Directors and senior management who perform their duties under the

leadership of the Managing Director.

The Board currently consists of three Executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director of the Company), Mr.
Peng Shiyuan and Mr. Jia Minghui; and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Siu Ki, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny and Mr. Li
Kwok Fat.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Board schedules at least four regular meetings a year and also meets
as and when required. During the year, the Board held seven meetings.
The Company Secretary assisted the Chairman and the Executive
Directors in establishing the meeting agenda, and each Director was
able to request inclusion of items in the agenda. All such meetings were
convened in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. Under code
provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days should be
given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to
attend. During the year, certain Board meetings were convened with less
than 14 days’ notice to enable the Board members to react timely and
make expeditious decisions in respect of urgent corporate transaction
and general business update which was significant in nature. As a
result, the Board meeting was held with a shorter notice period than
required with the consent of the Directors. The Board will do its best
endeavour to meet the requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG
Code in the future. Adequate and appropriate information are circulated
to the Directors normally three days in advance of Board meetings or
such period accepted by them. In addition to regular Board meetings,
the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors

during the year.

Minutes of all Board and committees meetings are kept by the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection by the Directors. Draft minutes
of all Board and committees meetings are circulated to all Directors and
committees members for comments within the period accepted by them

after each meeting.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements under
Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for specific term.
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ERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Wong Siu Ki, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny and Mr. Li Kwok Fat
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them to be

independent.

Given the nature and business objective of the Company, the Board
has a balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the business of the Company. The list of current Directors and their
respective biographies are set out on pages 28 to 31 of this annual

report.

Pursuant to Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of
the Directors shall retire by rotation at each annual general meeting of
the Company provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at the annual general meeting of the Company at least once every three

years. All retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, (1) any
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company after his
appointment, or (2) any director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company after his appointment and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced Board composition
is formed to ensure strong independence exists across the Board and has
more than one-third in number of its members comprising Independent

Non-executive Directors.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Group. Each Executive Director is suitably qualified for his position, and
has sufficient experience to hold the position so as to carry out his duties

effectively and efficiently.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

BEE®(s)

ARRBEWEBIFICBEL  RBEFRERFEE
FEERE ETRUEINMGE D 2 FEBILME
R MAREEFAEB B -

EZeCRBARRUEERERKER #FES
ARREBFEZHERERER - REEEH
ERREEEZBERINAFRE28AEF3
Ho

REARRRZ ARMARNESTR =z —2&F
ANARREERRBFAE LHERE ES
HEFRAELB=FRARTABRRBFRE L
RE-R-MAREEZTHEEREEB(E-

BIBEAAFNARIBAESQK (WVEEEE
ZRENBRHERETRNEMNES HAEHEESE
HEABRARA TEREAE L SQEES
EEEUENMRAEEGEELHENEMNES
NEBREEZEZARARATERRBEFKX
EAHILTERFTESERERET-

EXTENBCHAEME X5 KEHEME
RBEBRER - EFS 2 9EEAKTTRREEE
ZeAAREBYM HBB=N2Z—KEHE
SMIFMITE AR -

BEEEHRAKEEHERATCHERRES -
BRTETHARAEERREERR EBE
HBUYABEMEERMETERE -



BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings and the

annual general meeting (“AGM") held on 30 May 2016 are as follow:

Corporate Governance Report

m%.—ﬁ:séxiﬁﬂz
BEE®(s)
EEREE L EEEEREEN S AERA

=THEETZRRBFRE ([RRAEFKE])

ZBERET
Attended/Eligible to attend
HE/ GEEHE
Board

Meetings AGM
Executive Directors HITES EEQ93 BREFAE
Mr. Zhang Hengxin RF&EEE 11 0/0

(Chairman and Managing Director) (Note 1) (EEFEFHFEE) (FiE1)
Mr. Peng Shiyuan (Note 2) TEIRSE £ (M5T2) 11 0/0
Mr. Jia Minghui (Note 3) FRAME oA (MIEE3) 1/1 0/0
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Former Chairman and — ZE{&fm 4 4/7 0/1
Managing Director) (Note 4) (FTEBEH#EFLAE) (H5E4)

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor (Note 5) BPERIE S A (MH5E5) 717 1/1
Mr. Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen (Note 6) 2R SEAE (H5E6) 7/7 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors VkHITES
Mr. Wong Siu Ki =mICBL R A 717 1/1
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BR3R A4 R 7/7 1/1
Mr. Li Kwok Fat TR A 6/7 1/1
Notes: P&
1. Mr. Zhang Hengxin was appointed as an Executive Director on 6 1. RFEEXER_T—"FNLABEZTAE

September 2016 and was appointed as the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company on 31 January 2017 and there was 1 Board

meeting held after his appointment.

HITEERRN_T—tF-A=1+—BHEZ
ERARBEFEREZBEENNEERT

BRERIT-REFZGE-

EHBREEAR-_Z-RFENLA=ZTHEEZHE
RATEEMNHEZEREEIT-—RES

—R~FENR=T+BHEZE

2. Mr. Peng Shiyuan was appointed as an Executive Director on 30 2.
September 2016 and there was 1 Board meeting held after his
appointment. TEHE-
3. Mr. Jia Minghui was appointed as an Executive Director on 30 3. ERHEX4ANR-Z

September 2016 and there was 1 Board meeting held after his

appointment.
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ERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

4. Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin resigned as an Executive Director, the Chairman

and the Managing Director of the Company on 31 January 2017.

5. Mr. Cheng Kin Chor resigned as an Executive Director on 1 January

2017.

6. Mr. Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen resigned as an Executive Director on 30

November 2016.

According to the code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Yip Wai Lun,
Alvin, the Chairman of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2016, was unable to attend the AGM held on 30 May 2016 due to his

other business engagements.

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional
Development

During the year, a newly appointed Director was given an induction after
his appointment so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.
The Company provides regular updates on the business performance
of the Group to the Directors. The Directors are continually updated on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeeping of good

corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing professional
development to develop and refresh knowledge and skills. The Company
has maintained a training record in order to assist the Directors to record
the training that they have undertaken and they are asked to submit a

training record to the Company on annual basis.

During the year, each of the individual Directors has attended training
courses or workshops or read materials relevant to his professional and/or

duties as Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Training and Continuous Professional

Development (continued)

The individual training record of each Director received for the year

ended 31 December 2016 is summarised below:

Corporate Governance Report

BEg (o)

m%.—ﬁiséxgﬁﬂz

EERIREEERERE &)

BERIEZREEBRE_F

—AF+=A=+-H

IEFEZ BRI B mT

Course/Seminar

provided/
accredited
by Professional Reading
Body materials
EXERBRM
RuzRE
Directors BE= Waa REER
Mr. Zhang Hengxin wkFEEAE (RZE—RF v v
(appointed on 6 September 2016) NANBEEZE)
Mr. Peng Shiyuan ZEHREE (RZTE—RF v v
(appointed on 30 September 2016) NA=+RHEZMFE)
Mr. Jia Minghui BHREELEE (RZE—RF v v
(appointed on 30 September 2016) NA=TRHEZE)
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin EREmAEE(RZT—LF - v
(resigned on 31 January 2017) —A=+—HE%)
Mr. Cheng Kin Chor BEREEE (RZZ—F v -
(resigned on 1 January 2017) — A—HEHT)
Mr. Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen RFREE (RZE—RF = v
(resigned on 30 November 2016) +—A=+H&T)
Independent Non-executive Directors VYHHITES
Mr. Wong Siu Ki mIKEE A v v
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BRER A4 e v v
Mr. Li Kwok Fat FEERE v v

All Directors also understand the importance of continuous professional

development and they are committed to participating any suitable

training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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EERERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties as set out below:

(@) To develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on

corporate governance,

(b) To review and monitor the training and continuous professional

development of Directors and senior management;

() To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and employees;

and

(e) To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the execution
of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the Company has

arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
the chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by

the same individual.

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was the Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company (the Company regards the role of its managing director to be
the same as that of chief executive under the CG Code) during the year
ended 31 December 2016. During the year under review, the Group
has been streamlining its operations, including business development,
operation efficiency and financial management. The Board considers that
it would be in the best interest of the Shareholders that the roles of the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company be combined to
enable a strong and dedicated leadership to reposition the Company
and implement effective measures to improve Shareholders’ value. In
this light, the Company has maintained Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2016. On 31 January 2017, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin
resigned as an Executive Director, the Chairman and the Managing
Director of the Company and Mr. Zhang Hengxin, an Executive Director,
was appointed as the Chairman and the Managing Director of the
Company on the same date. The Company will review the current

structure when and as it becomes appropriate.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a specific written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the

Company.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company. No individual Director is involved
in decisions relating to his own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii)
of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual Executive Directors and senior

management.
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ERERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Remuneration Committee held one meeting.

The members of the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of

each member during the year are as follows:

FMEES (&)

FRA - FMEEGHRERZTKE ZHREERAD
T

Attended/

Eligible to attend

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFBTES HE AEERERE

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny (Chairman) BRI ESTE (FE) 171

Mr. Wong Siu Ki =B A 11
Executive Director BITES

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor BPER T e A 11

During the year, the Remuneration Committee performed the following

duties:

—  reviewed and recommended the remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and senior management for the year ended 31

December 2016.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with a specific written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
The Company will also take into consideration factors based on its own
business model and specific needs from time to time in determining the

optimum composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee comprises five Directors, a majority of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, the

Nomination Committee held one meeting.

The members of the Nomination Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:

Directors and number of attendance
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Attended/

Eligible to attend

Executive Director HITES HEEEEEE
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Chairman) ERfmkE (FE) 1/1
Cheng Kin Chor BPER I 11

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Wong Siu Ki = K B 11
Chan Ngai Sang Kenny PR R A= 1/1
Li Kwok Fat 2 B 11
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EERERRE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Directors and number of attendance (continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee performed the following
duties:

(@) reviewed the structure, size and diversity (including without
limitation, gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of

service) of the Board;

(b) identified individual suitably qualified to become Board members

and made recommendation to the Board on their appointments;

(c) assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive

Directors; and

(d) made recommendations to the Board on the retiring Directors for

re-election at the AGM for 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with a specific written terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available

on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and risk management and internal control

systems of the Group and providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai
Sang Kenny and Mr. Li Kwok Fat. During the year, the Audit Committee

held two meetings.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The members of the Audit Committee and the attendance of each

member during the year are as follows:

Corporate Governance Report

m%.—ﬁiséxiﬁﬂz

EREE" (&)
RN BEREEERERSKE T HERBRD

Attended/
Eligible to attend

Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHTES HEBEEEE
Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Chairman) |mIBSRE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny PR 3% 4 55 A 2/2
Mr. Li Kwok Fat FRIBEEE 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee performed the following duties:

(a) reviewed with the auditor the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and reviewed the unaudited interim

financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2016, with

recommendations to the Board for approval;

(b) reviewed report on internal control system covering financial,

operational, procedural compliance and risk management functions;

(c) reviewed the compliance issues with the regulatory and statutory

requirements;

(d) reviewed with the management of the Company the accounting

principles and practices adopted by the Group;

FRN ERZEGERITATRE:

EZHMAREHEE_T—hF+-A
ST -RUEFREZEERNBRAIEZE
ZE-RERNAZTRERNEAZRER
R GRE TiIRHEREZES 4
k

EHERME & BEFraflkEakeER
Bz ABEERGERS

EHEHEENEAEERZAREH:

BARNRERBARAEMNASEMRAZ
EREIA VI



44

2(

Corporate Governance Report

EERERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(e) considered the independent auditor’s independence and fees in
relation to the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 and the unaudited interim financial statements for

the six months ended 30 June 2016; and

(fy reviewed and recommended to the Board the auditor’s

re-appointment and remuneration.

All members of the Audit Committee possess relevant professional
qualifications and financial management expertise and meet the

requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTMENT AND MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment and Management Committee was established by the
Board with written terms of reference. The terms of reference are

available on the website of the Company.

The Investment and Management Committee is responsible for reviewing
and evaluating daily operation of the Company and any investment
activities proposed by the Company and making recommendation to
the Board on the transactions which the percentage ratio equal to or
higher than 5% according to the testing result of the Listing Rules. It
also monitors the investment activities of the Group. The Investment and
Committee currently comprises three Executive Directors, namely Mr.

Zhang Hengxin (Chairman), Mr. Peng Shiyuan and Mr. Jia Minghui.

During the year, the Investment and Management Committee performed

the following duties:

—  reviewed, evaluated and approved the investment activities which is
non-connected transaction and the percentage ratio is lower than

5% according to the testing result of the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Group incurred fees and charges by the auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, in respect of the following auditing and non-auditing services

during the year:
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Fees paid/payable
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HK$'000

Services rendered 12 3 09 BR 3% FET
Audit services 1% EUR % 400
Non-audit services IEAZ BUR TS -

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group for the relevant accounting periods under
applicable statutory and regulatory requirements which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, the results of operations and cash flows
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2016 and for the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently. The Directors have prepared the accounts for the reporting

year on a going concern basis.

The responsibility of the Company’s external auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited, with respect to these financial statements are set out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 82 to 89 of this annual report.
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EERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has full responsibility for maintaining an integrated and
effective risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
which includes the establishment of a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority. The internal control system is designed
to assist in the achievement of business objectives of the Group,
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition, ensuring the
proper maintenance of accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication and ensuring
compliance with relevant legislation and regulation. The internal control
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The internal control system
(embedded in the operations of the Company and forms part of the

Company's culture) includes:
o effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e capability in responding quickly to evolving risks to the business
arising from factors within the Company and to the change
in business environment; and include procedures for reporting
immediately to appropriate management levels regarding any
significant control weakness that are identified together with details

of corrective action being undertaken;
o reliability of financial reporting; and
e compliance with applicable rules, laws and regulations.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective

internal controls are as follows:

Organizational Structure

An appropriate organizational structure is in place with defined operating

policies and procedures as well as responsibility and lines of authority.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Authority and Control

The Executive Directors and senior management are delegated with
respective levels of authorities to carry out the corporate strategies and

policies and related matters formulated by the Board.

Payment Procedures

Relevant procedures have been established to assess, review and approve

for payment in respect of the capital and recurring expenditures.

Financial Reporting

The Group has established appropriate internal control procedures to
ensure accurate and complete accounting and management records
are kept on a timely basis. Examination and review are carried out
regularly to ensure that the financial statements are properly prepared
in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles, the

Group's accounting policies and the applicable laws and regulations.

Risk Management

The Board together with senior management monitor and assess risk
regularly, boost related management standards and evaluate investment
projects. The Company has engaged an external service provider as
Company Secretary for provision of advice relating to compliance of

Listing Rules and regulatory requirements.

Internal Audit

No internal audit team has been set up during the year since the Group’s
size and its structure is small and simple and thus senior management is

also responsible for internal audit function so as to minimize the costs.
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EERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Internal Control Review

During the year, senior management had carried out an annual review
on the internal control system including financial, operational and
compliance control, and risk management functions. The review adopts a
risk-based approach to create and review the effectiveness of an internal

control system and includes the following works:

(i) to carry out a high level review on the internal control system on
new business/member of the Group under the principles which

cover major control aspects; and

(i) to arrange site visit and perform focused walk through test on the
internal control system of members of the Group on a selective

basis.

The Company has adopted a set of risk management and internal
control policies and procedures to safeguard the Group's assets, to
ensure proper maintenance of accounting records and reliability of
financial information, and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and

regulations.

The Directors and senior management of the Company based on
the available information about local, industry and market's dynamic
movements and their understanding of the risk assessment to discuss
cases of the potential risk management in regular senior management

meetings.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)
Internal Control Review (continued)

Identification, assessment and management:

o the head of each department such as the Finance Department and
the Board will inform and report to the relevant Directors regarding
the factors that have impact on the profit or loss and price based on
the nature of business and their own experience. During the course
of execution, the concerned responsible person of the Company
will handle relevant documents and report to the relevant personnel

(including the Directors).

e as for matters as required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules,
senior management will present the issues to the Board for review
and discussion, and the Company Secretary will inform Directors
and relevant personnel that dealing in the shares of the Company is

prohibited.

Review prior to the transactions:

° generally, senior management will check with the requirements
as prescribed in the Listing Rule before execution of the proposed
transactions (including continuing connected transactions), to
assess whether the proposed transaction will trigger the disclosures
requirements in announcements, circulars and annual reports, and

the need to obtain Shareholders’ approval, as appropriate.

During the year, senior management has presented its review report
and made recommendations to the Audit Committee and the Audit
Committee has discussed with the management and reported the
progress of the work plan and related findings, particularly those related

to new business members of the Group to the Board at board meeting.
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ERERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(continued)

Internal Control System and Corporate Governance
Enhancement

In compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules and for the
purpose of reinforcing the Group’s internal control system, the Company
has established a strong internal control framework, put in place a
set of stringent policies and code of conduct to emphasis values on
integrity, fairness, transparency and accountability so as to stand against
corruption and fraud. During the year, senior management has presented
its internal control report to the Audit Committee, who is responsible
for reviewing the relevant policy and system regularly so as to achieve in

develop effective control activities and then to mitigate the risks.

The Directors has strengthened corporate governance practices, including
formalization of the reporting practice throughout the Group in
monitoring the operation and business developments of the Company so
as to capture potentially price-sensitive information on an on-going basis,

and monitoring the continuing disclosure obligation.

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the Employee Handbook and various subsidiary
procedures to ensure inside information remains confidential until
the disclosure of such information is appropriately approved, and the

dissemination of such information is efficiently and consistently made.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms, and the
management has also confirmed to the Board, that the Group's risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
(including the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions are adequate) and have complied with
the code provisions of the CG Code on risk management and internal

control throughout the year and up to the date of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with all
Shareholders. The annual general meeting of the Company is a valuable
avenue for the Board to enter into direct dialogue with Shareholders.
The Chairman of the Board and the chairman of Board committees
will attend the annual general meeting to answer any question. In
addition, the Company will convene special general meetings to
approve any transactions in accordance with the Listing Rules and the
corporate governance procedures of the Company. These will provide
further opportunities for Shareholders to comment and vote on specific

transaction.

The interim and annual reports of the Company are despatched to
Shareholders in a timely manner before the time limits laid by statutory
and Listing Rules requirements to ensure effective communication with

Shareholders.

All the Shareholders are given at least 20 clear business days’ notice
before the date of the annual general meetings and at least 10 clear

business days’ notice for all other general meetings.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements and notices
of Shareholders’ meetings as required under the Listing Rules will be

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also complied with the requirements concerning voting
by poll under the Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll are included in circulars to
Shareholders despatched by the Company and explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed at general

meeting are voted separately.
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ERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)
Procedures for convening a special general meeting

Shareholders shall have the right to request the Board to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM") of the Company. Shareholders holding
in aggregate of not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company may send a written request to the Board of the Company to

request for a SGM.

The written requisition, duly signed by the Shareholders concerned,
must state the purposes of the meeting and must be deposited at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at 9/F, Fung House,
19-20 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or at the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited,

at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the Shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Section 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda

(the "Companies Act”) once a valid requisition is received.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings

The following Shareholders are entitled to put forward a proposal (which
may properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general

meeting of the Company:
(@) any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights of the Company on the date of the

requisition; or

(b) not less than 100 members holding shares in the Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at general meetings (continued)

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned, together with a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in the proposal must be deposited
at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 9/F, Fung
House, 19-20 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or at the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard
Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong. The Company would take appropriate actions and make necessary
arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would be responsible
for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in accordance with the
requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies Act once valid

documents are received.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other a retiring director for
election as a director at a general meeting, the Shareholder should follow
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a

Director”, which can be found on the website of the Company.
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ERERRE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(continued)

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns to the

Board in writing via the following channel:

The Board of Directors/Company Secretary
AMCO United Holding Limited

9/F, Fung House

19-20 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@amco-united.com

Telephone: (852) 3580 6300

Facsimile: (853) 3580 6322

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company's secretarial functions are outsourced to external service
provider. Ms. Yam Wai Wah, Jenny, the former Financial Controller of
the Group, was the primary contact person of the Company with the
external service provider during the period from 1 January 2016 to 19
January 2017. Subsequent to Ms. Yam's resignation on 19 January 2017,
Mr. Man Kong Ming, the Financial Controller of the Group, is the primary

contact person of the Company with the external service provider.

According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric,
the Company Secretary of the Company, has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training during the year ended 31 December

2016.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company's constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION
Corporate Profile

In 1994, AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. It has been listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 630) since 1996.
Through its subsidiaries, the Company is principally engaged in Medical
Devices Business, Plastic Moulding Business, PR Business, Building
Contract Works Business, Money Lending Business and Securities

Investment.

In January of 2016, the Company acquired ACE Engineering, which
represents its step into the building construction, building maintenance
and improvement works sector. Since then, management aims to become
a diversified corporation by implementing corporate sustainability as
a core element in its growth strategy. The Company will attempt to
integrate sustainability into all aspects of its business to build a business
for the long term that shall take into account environmental, social, and

economic considerations in its operation and planning.

About this Report

This is the Company's first ESG (as defined below) report for public
disclosure with reference to the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Reporting Guide issued by the Stock Exchange as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules.
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BR #HEREARRE

INTRODUCTION (continued)
Reporting Period and Scope

This report covers all the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) and describes the initiatives of
the Group and its progress in respect of ESG issues for the year from 1
January 2016 to 31 December 2016. Additional information pertaining
to our sustainability performance, including comprehensive financial

information and data, can be found in this annual report.

Feedback

We have aimed to make this report as clear, concise and accurate as
possible. All efforts were made to address aspects that are relevant to our
Group and stakeholders. Since this is our first ESG report, we will highly
appreciate any comments on improving the content and delivery of the
information provided in this report. Any queries or suggestions regarding

the content of this report can be directed to:

AMCO United Holding Limited

Address: 9/F, Fung House, 19-20 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 3580 6300

Fax: (852) 3580 6322

Email:  info@amco-united.com
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is excited and humbled to begin its reporting journey in 2016

and contribute to the worldwide shift to better sustainability practices.

Many changes were undertaken in the year under review as the Group
deployed a diversification strategy to its business in order to penetrate
into more promising and growing business sectors. As a business with a
diversified portfolio, the Group is now affecting a range of communities,
making marked impacts on the environmental and social spheres.
Moreover, the acquisition of ACE Engineering has motivated us to
prioritize occupational safety and health of our workers amongst the ESG

impacts relevant to the Group.

Our sustainable practices will gradually reach international standards as
the Group continues to learn and improve over time. The diversification
of our business portfolio has increased our impact on the community,
environment and our employees. Our internal stakeholders such as
Directors and employees, and external stakeholders such as suppliers,
the government, community and customers are highly critical sources
of information for the Group to determine the areas where our impact
is material. The Group engages with its internal stakeholders regularly
during face-to-face meetings, grievance handling sessions and so
on. Moreover, multiple channels of engagement with our external
stakeholders have been embedded into the day-to-day operation of the

Company's businesses.

The Group believes that publishing this ESG report will help increase
engagement with clients and contribute to building a long trusting

relationship.
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ENVIRONMENTAL

We recognize the importance of greater environmental stewardship
to ensure the holistic and harmonious development of our business
alongside the environment and communities in which we operate,
and therefore we need to control our emissions, waste generation and
overall environmental impacts. We have been focusing our attention on
minimizing our environmental impacts in our further expansion, including

the acquisition of ACE Engineering.

Even seemingly meager initiatives involved in green office management
(see our management approach in the graph below) such as controlling
the generation of waste and reducing energy can reap immediate cost-

saving benefits.

Fundamental to these efforts is the incorporation of technology and the
utilization of systems that drive awareness, efficiency and contribute
to the mitigation of our overall environmental footprint. Through our
combined efforts we hope to instigate a broader consideration and
culture centered on aspects of environmental performance relevant to

each of our employees and relative to all aspects of our businesses.

Green
Technology

3=k 3

Green Office

Management
ReR e

Green
Office Systems
Fea
?\n}b
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ENVIRONMENTAL (continued)
Reducing Energy Consumption and Emission

We recognize the importance of timely action in combating climate
change. The Paris Agreement from the 2015 United Nations Climate
Change Conference represents a shared global vision and we wish to play
a role in mitigating and adapting to climate change effects. Therefore,
our operations aim to reduce waste, save energy and achieve resources
efficiency through green management within our offices. To achieve this
goal, our energy-reduction initiatives are two-fold; we promote the use
of energy-efficient equipment and installation, we also focus on our day-
to-day business functions and employee behavior to identify areas for

improvement.

Implementing Green Management

Our offices have incorporated a green office managing mechanism in
daily operations with an aim to reduce waste, conserve electricity, and
improve safety and health. Within the offices, the ventilation system of
the air conditioners is regularly inspected and energy-efficient light bulbs
are utilized. Clear air filters and no disruptions in the ventilation system

are vital for sufficient fresh air supply and greater energy efficiency.

To raise the environmental awareness of our employees, we always
remind our staff “to work for a greener way of life in everything we can
do”. Our staff is occasionally handed over reminders to adopt greener
ways of working by reusing stationery, minimizing printing, donating
used electrical equipment, setting their computers to energy-saving

mode, etc.
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SOCIAL

We are committed to serve the community in Hong Kong. Additionally,
all initiatives are made to serve the interests of our employees. As the
Group continues to evolve, our social initiatives will grow and become

more comprehensive.

Occupational Health and Safety

We care about our people’s health and safety in workplace and recognize
the inherent risks in operating the Building Contract Works Business, one
of our business segments. As such, we strive to make safety as our top

priority and set our goal to achieve zero occupational accidents.

Every worker entering a construction site is required to wear and use
personal protective equipment, and be fully trained for the proper
use and maintenance of equipment and facilities. To minimize risks,
inspection supervisors and safety officers are placed in every construction
site to ensure personnel follow all safety requirements. We take
responsibility to conform to relevant regulatory requirements such as the
"Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” (Chapter 509 of the Laws
of Hong Kong).

Moreover, the management of ACE Engineering has made efforts to
enhance communications with its business partners, tackling construction
issues ranging from project quality, environment to safety and

occupational health.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Training and Development

Improving and growing the Group’s overall performance requires a
proactive and comprehensive approach to managing our human capital.
While skill diversification and multi-disciplinary knowledge are important
aspects in the improvement of the quality of human capital, we also

focus on attraction and retention of top talent.

The Group promotes team spirit and mutual respect in order to become
an employer of choice. We believe in collaboration and communication
to drive innovation and have opened all possible channels to listen and

collect ideas from employees and proactively respond.

We also focus on offering development opportunities, at both
professional and personal levels, to motivate and up-skill our existing
staff to align with our business needs and ever-changing environment.
Our staff is encouraged to proactively identify their training needs and
seek development opportunities to fulfill their personal and career
aspirations. We believe in life-long learning, and we provide educational
subsidies to motivate our employees to pursue further studies through
reading materials and participating in any suitable training. In addition to
on-the-job training and guidance from supervisors, employees, especially
senior management are provided with the opportunity to attend external

training programs, workshops and seminars.

Equality and Diversity

With the transformation and diversification of our businesses, we
recognize the competitiveness and tangible value brought by diversity.
We treat diversity and inclusion as a value driver and continuous
efforts are directed to promote workplace diversity. Under the Group's
practices and procedures on recruitment, promotion and dismissal, anti-
discrimination has been an integral part of our approach to ensure
fair and equitable work environment for all, regardless of age, gender,
family status, sexual orientation, ethnicity, creed and religion or other

characteristics.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Supply Chain Management

At the operational level, we adopt a decentralized procurement
approach, whereby subsidiaries are given full autonomy in sourcing
suppliers and identifying partners based on their practical business needs.
However, as part of our efforts to promote a low-carbon economy, we
endeavor to procure sustainable materials and source from local suppliers

whenever possible.

In the tendering process, our construction company, ACE Engineering,
evaluates and benchmarks subcontractors’ safety, environmental,
community, employee and governance performance on satisfaction of
professional competence and project track records. We are committed
to operating in accordance with local laws and regulations. Similarly, we
expect our sub-contractors to operate with integrity, treat their people
fairly and take rigorous steps to prevent the use of child and illegal

workers.

Protecting Customer Privacy

We regard customer data privacy as an important issue and have
committed to abide by the requirements of the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Particularly for our
customers and potential customers in operations of the Money Lending
Business, we always obtain detailed information during the assessment
process of the creditability and recoverability of each loan applicant. We
keep those data as confidential. Personal information is restricted to
disclosure and there are limits on the access and/or use of the aforesaid

data.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Anti-Corruption

We have established a strong internal control framework and put in place
a set of stringent policies and code of conduct to emphasize the values
of integrity, fairness, transparency and accountability. Additionally, the
Group's strong stance against corruption and fraud is communicated to
all our employees to ensure their support. A strong anti-corruption and
anti-fraud culture is a vital part of the overall governance framework
of the Group. We strive to safeguard assets and interests of our

Shareholders and stand against corruption and fraud.

Community Involvement

Initiative has been made to contribute to society by participating in
charitable activities and encouraging our employees to join these
activities. Our staff and their families are encouraged to use their
professional skills to get involved in volunteer services and bring
their families closer. We believe that these activities can help carve a
harmonious society and deliver positive feelings of cooperation and

compassion.
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Directors’ Report
ESEHE

The Directors submit herewith their report together with the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
is set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion

and Analysis” on pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 27 respectively of this

annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income on pages 90 to 91 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on page 208 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated

financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital are set out in

Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In the opinion of the Directors, there is no reserve of the Company which
is available for distribution to Shareholders at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hengxin (Chairman and Managing Director)
(appointed as Executive Director on 6 September 2016 and

appointed as Chairman and Managing Director on 31 January 2017)

Mr. Peng Shiyuan (appointed on 30 September 2016)

Mr. Jia Minghui (appointed on 30 September 2016)

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (Former Chairman and Managing Director)
(resigned on 31 January 2017)

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor (resigned on 1 January 2017)

Mr. Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen (resigned on 30 November 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Siu Ki
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny
Mr. Li Kwok Fat

Mr. Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen resigned as an Executive Director as he
wished to allocate more time to his other business commitments. Each
of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin and Mr. Cheng Kin Chor resigned as an
Executive Director as he wished to allocate more time to his personal

commitments.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 86(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company,
Mr. Zhang Hengxin, Mr. Peng Shiyuan and Mr. Jia Minghui shall retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being

eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.
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ESEHS

DIRECTORS (continued)

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87 of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr.
Wong Siu Ki and Mr. Chan Ngai Sang Kenny shall retire by rotation from
office at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible, will

offer themselves for re-election.

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the

Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Zhang Hengxin

Mr. Peng Shiyuan

Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin

Mr. Cheng Kin Chor

Mr. Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen
Ms. Yam Wai Wah, Jenny
Ms. Yu Tsz Kwan

Mr. Lee King Yi

Ms. Chung Wai Fong

Mr. Fong Kwok Wai

Mr. Deng Zichao

Mr. Wong Wai Keung, Alfred
Mr. Cheng Hei Wai, Leo

Ms. Wong Ka Wai, Bonnie
Mr. Wan Shing Lung

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Wong Siu Ki, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 1 May 2015, which may be terminated by one
month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Wong or by

instant notice in writing served by Mr. Wong on the Company.

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, an Independent Non-executive Director, has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 30 June 2015, which may be terminated
by one month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Chan or

by instant notice in writing served by Mr. Chan on the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

Mr. Li Kwok Fat, an Independent Non-executive Director, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 30 June 2015, which may be terminated by one
month’s notice in writing served by the Company on Mr. Li or by instant

notice in writing served by Mr. Li on the Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation (other than statutory compensation).

UPDATED INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in the
information of Directors since the date of their respective appointment

are set out below:

Directors’ Report
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Name of Directors Details of changes B 2FFE

Zhang Hengxin Entitled to receive a director fee of HK$20,000 K=& EREWMEEZES ST A20,000%
per month with effect from 7 September 2016 T BZE-RFAAEREEXN

Peng Shiyuan Entitled to receive a director fee of HK$10,000 ¥R ERWMEEFHRES T H10,000%
per month with effect from 1 October 2016 T BZE-RF+A—BEEXN

Jia Minghui Entitled to receive a director fee of HK$20,000  EBHHE ERKMEFHRSES T H20,000%

per month with effect from 1 October 2016

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board having
regard to the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and with
reference to the Directors’ contributions, experience and relevant duties

and responsibilities within the Company.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

EERBSTHRAERAQFAR
MEBECEERD - HERORESZ

BERKXE

RZB-—RNF+ZA=+—H AQREERE
BITHRABRAR B KEEFEEEE (EER
FHHREIEED ([7F 5 KB %D ) EXVER)
2R ARG RESFREELARNRBIRE
EHLBEGRAIEI2GAEBF2 BLMA %
REKE  IRBEFETAESTHERARR

B P2 SO RN

Long positions i)
Share and underlying shares of the Company EREZ KRG RIEER G
Number of
underlying Approximate
Number of Number of shares percentage of
d.um erho underlying held under the number
ordinary shares shares held performance of issued
Personal Corporate under share incentive shares of
Name of Director Capacity interests interests  option scheme agreement Total the Company
EERYE REBRE REXRRER BAAH
= b bzl BEREAR BRIRHAH
EEpg 5% fHAESR NEEH BB #E RG#AE 3t ZBRED
Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin Interest of controlled corporation - 126,000 - 79,901,659 80,027,659 4.30%
ERfAE REHAE ER (Note 1) (Note 2)
(Wit1) (W)
Notes: P 5T

1. These 126,000 shares were held by Titron South China Limited. Titron
South China Limited was owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin as to 42.5%
indirectly. Accordingly, Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin was deemed to be
interested in these 126,000 shares by virtue of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE

COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long positions (continued)

Share and underlying shares of the Company (continued)

Notes: (continued)

2. Pursuant to the performance incentive agreement dated 4 March 2011
(the “Performance Incentive Agreement”), a maximum number of
6,720,000,000 shares is potentially entitled by Atlas Medical Limited,
which was 50% owned by Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin and 50% owned by
Mr. Lye Khay Fong respectively. As at 1 January 2016, the outstanding
number of shares issuable pursuant to the Performance Incentive
Agreement was 109,837,630 shares. On 16 March 2016, the open
offer was completed, whereupon (among others) the number of shares
issuable pursuant to the Performance Incentive Agreement was adjusted
from 109,837,630 shares to 141,364,473 shares and the issue price
was adjusted to HK$1.627 per share. Out of these 141,364,473 shares,
61,462,814 shares lapsed on 29 March 2016 according to the terms of
the Performance Incentive Agreement. Accordingly, Mr. Yip Wai Lun,

Alvin was deemed to be interested in these 79,901,659 shares by virtue

of the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS
Share Option Scheme

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the "Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the Shareholders

at the annual general meeting of the Company held on the same date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant

share options to the eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their

contributions to the Group.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

According to the Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant share
options to the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option
Scheme to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine. Share options granted should be accepted within 28 days
from the date of the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the share
options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. Subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to determine

the period within which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the Board,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of
the grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant;

and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed
10% of the number of shares in issue of the Company on the date
of approval and adoption of the Share Option Scheme provided that
the Company may at any time seek approval from the Shareholders to
refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval
by the Shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed.
Share options previously granted under any share option schemes of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance
with such schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the

purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant unless such grant has
been duly approved by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general
meeting at which the relevant eligible participant and his associates
abstained from voting. Share options granted to substantial Shareholders
or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company's
number of shares in issue on the date of grant and with a value in excess

of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no share
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
There is no general requirement that a share options must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The Share Option
Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten years and will expire at

the close of business on 29 June 2025.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2016,
the Company was authorised to refresh the scheme mandate limit to
issue a maximum of 186,267,948 share options under the Share Option
Scheme. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.
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SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share options were
granted under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 30 June
2015. As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 186,267,948, which
represents 10% of the total number of shares in issue of the Company as

at 29 March 2017 (i.e. 1,862,679,481 shares).

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option holdings disclosed above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a part to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Apart from the transactions disclosed under the heading “RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS” as set out in Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no other contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business, to which the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisting at the end of the year or at anytime during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or subsisting during the year ended 31

December 2016.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange, the Company discloses the following continuing
connected transaction incurred during the year.

On 4 March 2011, the Company, Energy Best Investments Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Atlas Medical Limited
("Atlas"), entered into the Performance Incentive Agreement (as
amended and restated on 27 July 2011) with the approval of the Board,
pursuant to which it was agreed between the parties that the Company
would make payments to Atlas for services (“Services”, as described
below) provided by Atlas thereunder during the service periods as
referred to in the Performance Incentive Agreement. Atlas is an associate
of Mr. Yip Wai Lun, Alvin, an Executive Director during the year ended
31 December 2016. More particulars of the Performance Incentive
Agreement were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated
25 January 2011, 21 June 2011, 27 July 2011, 7 October 2011, 25
March 2013, 28 March 2013, 27 April 2015, 18 November 2015 and
16 March 2016 respectively and the circular of the Company dated 12
August 2011,
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Where, “Services” mean the assistance provided by Atlas to the

Company to further develop Medical Devices Business of Titron Group.

(a) Service fee:

(b) Performance bonus:

HK$200,000 in cash per month

The amount equal to 30% of excess of the
pro forma combined profit before tax of
the Titron Group over HK$10 million for
each of the six financial years ending 31

December up to 31 December 2016.

The performance bonus in each year shall
be satisfied 50% in cash and 50% in
performance incentive shares. The amount
of performance bonus that can be paid in
performance incentive shares is subject to a
cap amount for each of the financial years
ended 31 December 2011 to 31 December
2016.

The Company was obliged to pay Atlas for the Services for the year

ended 31 December 2016 to the extent as described below:

(a) Service fee:

(b) Performance bonus:

The amount of service fee for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was
HK$2,400,000, all of which was voluntarily
waived by Atlas.

No performance bonus or performance
incentive shares were earned or payable for

the year ended 31 December 2016.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
had reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Company; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favorable to the Company than terms
available from independent third parties; (iii) in accordance with each
of the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole; and (iv)
have not exceeded the relevant maximum amount capped in accordance
with the announcements and circular of the Company as mentioned

above.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions, as set out on pages 73 to 75 of this annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740, "Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and

conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements and include transactions that constitute continuing connected
transactions for which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules

have been complied.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, so far as are known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, no persons or corporations (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company) had, or deemed or taken to
have, interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly,
to be interested in 5% or more of the number of any class of shares in
issue of the Company, carrying the rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2016, sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer accounted for approximately 39% of the Group's
consolidated revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the five
largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 73% of the

Group's consolidated revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, purchases attributable to the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 40% of the
Group's total purchases and aggregate purchases attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 90% of the

Group's total purchases.

To the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, or their
respective associates, or Shareholders owning more than 5% of the
Company’s number of share in issue had any beneficial interests in any of

the five largest customers or suppliers.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent

Non-executive Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating

results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in Note

29 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 32 to 54 of this annual

report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance between
the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization of
greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external
communications by means of telephone, emails and conferences or such
other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally
friendly. Also, the Group are able to minimize physical travelling and

printing.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support are values
at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation and benefits
policies accordingly to industry benchmark as well as the individual
performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory provident
fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees with the
aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring

the Group to different levels of success.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers
has been one of the critical reasons for the Group's success. Our business
model is to maintain and build on our strong relationships within our
client base. Our mission is to provide the finest service to our customers
and the Group is constantly looking ways to improve customer relations
through enhanced services. Regarding the PR Business, Money Lending
Business and Securities Investment, the Group has no major suppliers.
Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the Group has
maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure their continued

support to the Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,

operational and financial risks.

Strategic Risks

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge to the
external environments. The Group will invest in projects and investments
based on the strategic plan in order to cope with the market demand
and expectation. Given the rapid change of unforeseeable external
environments in the financial and equity markets, the Group is facing
significant strategic risks on its investments when changing the strategic

plans to adopt the unexpected changes of external environments.
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Operational Risks

Management regularly reviews the Group's operations to ensure that
the Group's risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,

are adequately managed.

Financial Risks

The principal financial risks are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated

financial statements headed “FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT".

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the section headed “FINANCIAL REVIEW"” in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 24 to 27 of this annual
report and the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS” on pages 69 to 72
of this report, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked

agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, the Directors, secretary and other
officers and every auditor for the time being of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, shall or may
incur or sustain by or by reasons of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duties in their respective offices or

otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has taken out insurance against all losses and liabilities
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought

against Directors and other officer of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on

it.

Directors’ Report

BEEgRE
EER R
EEERHARNALSEYEE URRAEE
ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁh?ﬁ N 9{553 . }\Eﬁjf\/\&ﬁ'ﬁﬂh‘\ﬁ&

AREESIBZEXRER (TH

#) o

ML EMER

Bt %5 L B

TEMBRRENEE
[2\ B E IR | o

SRR M FL40 T8 75

IR 3R 8 15

BRAFHRE2AEEZE27TEZEBEIMEDN
Z BB ERE] — R ABEFEOEEE2E Y
[BERE] —SAEBEREN RARRERNLE
EINAESOES== )

AFAEESRE

REARRZ AL AR RESEEZHIE
HEAMARELIEETREERATK  BEEHK
BEEHAAM 2 EMITAMBRAIEELSER
AR KA -BR ALK BERRAX &
= WMERHEMSRBEARERAR B Z %K
BEVBRNARR ZEE RGN RS EE
K18 o

ARBERARAREETREMERBE A8
B RrE S| R B HBERARE KRR

BFERERZER
7 AR D TR DR RS B T EAERA
BRRERMHARAELEAREZHER

79

-



80

Directors’ Report

ESERS

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended
31 December 2016.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Siu Ki (Chairman), Mr. Chan Ngai Sang,
Kenny and Mr. Li Kwok Fat. The Audit Committee has reviewed with
the management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and discussed the risk management and internal control systems
and financial reporting matters including the review of the audited

results for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the

year ended 31 December 2016.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events after 31 December 2016 of the Group

are set out in Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2014 and

2015 were audited by BDO Limited.

On 9 December 2016, BDO Limited resigned as the auditor of the
Company and on 14 December 2016, Elite Partners CPA Limited was
appointed as the new auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy
and to hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint Elite Partners CPA Limited as the auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

Zhang Hengxin

Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
R R

BT AR SR AT TR E)

@ ) LiTE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AMCO United
Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 207, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section to our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) issued by the HKICPA, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2016
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
B %A R

FAREFXER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, RIETEHNFELE BREZSEATSER
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial REZE-Z— A NF+_A=+—HILFEHLE
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016. These matters were A UMEREPREENEEH -BSEELEGAY
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial MHBEREMEEREIBEELESEE Mg
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do UL ZEEEBFBERZR -

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREEREE

Business combination and impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets

REEHREEREEEN B EFE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had goodwill of
approximately HK$10 million which relates to the acquisition
of ACE Engineering Limited ("ACE"”) (see Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements). Also, the Group had intangible
assets of approximately HK$5 million which relate to the
“Contracts backlog” and “Contractor registrations” as disclosed
in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements. The goodwill
and the intangible assets were arising from the acquisition of
ACE during the year and allocated to the cash generating unit
for building contract works business (“CGU"). Details of the
acquisition of ACE are disclosed in Note 34(a) to the consolidated
financial statements. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group had not recognised impairment loss of goodwill and
intangible assets.

RZE-—RET_HA=+—H0 ESEHAHREZHIEER
REN([RBITIE]) 2 EE4/10,000,0008 T (RiFA M BRE
BIFE16) o ol - MR E M B MRME7PARE - E5EEH
[RFEREX ] K [#GZrhE | 2 | A E4 75,000,000/ 7T < &
EREREEDAFANBLRATEMEERESIEZEFTEAE
IREBREELSBN (REELSEM]) - WELRBETENFE
NG BREAMTM@QBE - REBEE_TE-—RF+_A=+—
HIEFE EBES£ERAERBEREVEENREEBRE-

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEBRPNMEEEXEE

Our major audit procedures in relation to the business
combination and impairment assessment of goodwill
and intangible assets included the following:
EEREBAMRAERBREEERENHETHNE
EEVIEFBHE:

e We tested the purchase price allocations in which
we especially focused on the valuation of the net
assets amount and the intangible assets of ACE.
We particularly focused on the related fair value
adjustments.

e EEAFEBEESNR mMAUFTE EERMET
ZHEIRNEEFECRMETLEENFKE-F
SLHBETHEBEAAEERAE -

e We evaluated the timing and appropriateness of
the accounting treatment and the consideration
of the acquisition based on the contractual
agreement.

s EEERAABBFIMRBITENGHEERR
BORREEE -

e We discussed with management as to whether
there was any indicator of impairment.

s EFHAEEEIWRLFAEEFRENR-

e \We obtained cash flow forecasts relating to the
CGU prepared by management and approved by
the directors of the Company.

e ETENBEH BEAFEEREEGERESEHELH
ReEABEML s RERETEA -

EFRERERQA
2016 3|
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BYZHE®RE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEEREE

Business combination and impairment assessment of
goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

REEHREEBRENEE R EFFE (&)

For the purpose of the initial recognition of intangible assets in
business combination and impairment assessment of goodwill and
intangible assets, the Group appointed an independent external
valuer to assess the fair value of the identifiable net assets of ACE
at initial recognition and the recoverable amount of the CGU at
the end of the reporting period.
HREBEHPOSTERBVEEALRBE LB EENRERT
himE: BEEZEBELIGEMT(GETERILER
RHA BRI EEFENAABELRE CEEFEULNREHR RN
W Bl 8 o

We had identified business combination and impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets as a key audit
matter because significant management judgement was required
to determine the key assumptions including estimated future
income, operating margins and discount rate, etc. and the
amounts involved were significant.
EECHEBAHAAERBILEENREN G REREZS
B REAAETHRRRBEMETRRWA - EEFEERARE X
EREREBIFLARSHERAPRSEEKR -

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
Annual Report 2016

FEREXEE £

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEBRPNMEEEXEE

We discussed with management and independent
external valuer engaged by the Company
in relation to the methodology, basis and
assumptions used in arriving at the forecasts
(e.g. estimated sales growth rate and discount
rate etc.) to see whether the methodology and
assumptions used were reasonable.
EEHEBER BERRZENEIN G ER
AmARMERAANTRESMAN T ERKRR
SEMANTE EEREKR-

We checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
reliance of the input data used.

ST N REN AR ASIROER MR A
3 IEE °

We evaluated the competency of the independent
external valuer taking into account its experience
and qualifications.
EERFTRBIINIEERMO KRR ERRE T
B BsEae



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HEEREE

Impairment of loan receivables

FEW B 589 618

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had loan receivables of
approximately HK$75 million, as set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements. During the year ended 31
December 2016, no impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

RZE-RE+ZA=+T—H HWEEHHRENMT22F7
& BEBEAEWERLT5000000F T REBEE T —KF
TZRA=E+—RIEFE BEXNERAEREARERE-

We had identified impairment assessment of loan receivables
as a key audit matter because the amounts of loan receivables
were significant and significant management judgement had
to be made for the assessment of the recoverability of the loan
receivables (e.g. credit history and estimated future cash flows).
EEEOREBEUNERNBRETRI REREZEE RAREKE
R E R R G R E SRR Y B 1 7R B IR B K
(E‘M?EEE&H%%&U&@ME) °

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

FEREXEE £

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEEBRPNMEEEXEE

Our major audit procedures relating to the impairment
assessment of loan receivables included the following:

ERERERREMEETHEIEEZEFRE:

e  We assessed the controls over the approval,
recording and monitoring of the loan receivables,
and evaluated the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in determining
individual impairment allowances.

o EEMLYHE  REREEEUREROEZES
Kath SfREFHHE 1IEUH1§T§§%E¢}%%E’JEZ
B A BUE R R -

e We assessed whether the financial statement
disclosures appropriately reflect the Group's
exposure to credit risk.

. ﬁfFﬁT%ﬁfSﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁi‘%%Eﬁ HEARE B%
B EERE -

’%fa%‘éﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁﬁa
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BYZHE®RE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and

our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent

auditor’s report is Siu Jimmy with Practising Certificate number P05898.

Elite Partners CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
10/F., 8 Observatory Road

Tsim Sha Tsui

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
melsRHEM2EKER

2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-XRF —E-RF
B FHERT FET
(#E5)
Continuing operations HEREXEK
Revenue WA 6.7 98,879 71,845
Cost of sales and services $HE MRS A A (81,706) (61,016)
Gross profit EXN 17,173 10,829
Other income and other gains or losses E 1t Uz %5 & H b U A sk &5 18 8 5,184 3,500
Distribution costs 73 88 BK AN (282) (534)
Administrative expenses 1THR X (38,799) (30,656)
Finance costs M%EMA 9 (120) (6)
Share of loss of an associate JE(R— B E R Az &8 18 (1,612) -
Loss before income tax BRETBBAIEE 10 (18,456) (16,867)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiEfiEe, (Ax) 11 426 (235)
Loss for the year from continuing REBEKEER2FEERE
operations (18,030) (17,102)
Discontinued operation BRIEKSEEK
Loss for the year from discontinued RECRIEEEER 2 FEEE
operation 35 (379) (1,504)
Loss and total comprehensive EARBEEANEHRFEEFER
income for the year attributable to ZE W A4 %8
owners of the Company (18,409) (18,606)
Loss and total comprehensive EARBEEANEHRFEEFER
income for the year attributable to ZEUW A%
owners of the Company
— from continuing operations — REBBEIKEER (18,030) (17,102)
— from discontinued operation — REERIEEEXEB (379) (1,504)
(18,409) (18,606)

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeBEERkEMEZHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - F—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE A
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-XRF —T—RHF
B 5 FHET FAET
(&gE75)
Loss per share BREE (Restated)
12 (f&E5)
Basic and diluted HEAREE
— from continuing operations — RAFBLEEB HK(1.00) centi&l HK(2.45) centsi& 1l
— from discontinued operation — REERIEEEHER HK(0.02) centi&{l HK(0.22) cent 1l
HK(1.02) centsiEll HK(2.67) centsi& Ll

ERERERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
eI R

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —E—hF
B & FET FAET

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y- WEREE 15 2,652 65,703
Goodwill GES 16 10,196 957
Intangible assets ELEE 17 5,297 2,584
Available-for-sale financial asset A EMBEE 19 15,300 -
Deposits By aca 22 - 6,264
33,445 75,508

Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 20 11 11
Held-for-trading investments RIEEERE 21 166,311 -
Trade and other receivables Z 5 I H th fE W I8 22 103,758 14,812
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 24 30,479 184,235
300,559 199,058
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE S 58 25 30,260 30,442
Tax payable FERTE 18 28 -
30,288 30,442
Net current assets REBEEFE 270,271 168,616
Total assets less current liabilities #EERADERE 303,716 244,124

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
92 Annual Report 2016



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEMBARRT

As at 31 December 2016 R=—F—ANF+=-A=+—H

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —E—hF
B i FHT FiT

Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEE & 26 874 354
Net assets EERE 302,842 243,770

EQUITY &

Share capital fi& 7 27 18,627 12,418
Reserves & 284,215 231,352
Total equity RSB 302,842 243,770

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 March BRZZ—+tF=A -t hBES=giER
2017. AT -

On behalf of the Board

RREFE
Zhang Hengxin Peng Shiyuan
RFE TR
Director Director
BF BF

EFRERERQA
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

maEm PR

Share Share Capital Translation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Notes a & b) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
B R EE ERGE EXGE it ER @t
TR TR FTHT TET THx TR
(Mzakb) (HizEb) (PBisEp) (Biztb)
As at 1 January 2015 RZZE-—AF—HA—H 15,324 126,803 1 1,591 (95,533) 48,186
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEER
income for the year ZEUANERE - - - - (18,606) (18,606)
Capital reorganisation RAEA
(Note 27(a)) (M#27()) (12,259) - - - 12,259 -
Equity-settled share-based IR RERER
transactions BE2R5
- lapse of options granted to -BTERZERE
employees E - - ) - 1 -
Reversal of overprovision of BE-Z-NFRE
the share issue expenses for BipmETRMHEL
2014 placing of shares LEBERE - 270 - - - 270
Net proceeds from issue of shares FEL &% #4710
upon placings MBRETE
(Notes 27(b)&(c)) (B E27(b) R (C)) 9,353 204,567 - - - 213,920
As at 31 December 2015 and RZE-REF
as at 1 January 2016 +ZA=+—-Bk
“Z—-~"F¥—-F—-H 12,418 331,640 - 1,591 (101,879) 243,770
Loss and total comprehensive AEEBER
income for the year L ONCE - - - - (18,409) (18,409)
Net proceeds from open offer ARBEEZMEREFE
(Note 27(d)) (B &E27(d)) 6,209 71,272 - - - 77,481
As at 31 December 2016 RZE—RE
+-F=1+—H 18,627 402,912 - 1,591 (120,288) 302,842
Notes: Bt 3

a)  The application of share premium account is governed by Section 40 of

the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

b)  The total of these balances represents “Reserves” in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBEERER

2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—z-x% —E-RnF
B 5 FET FET
Cash flows from operating RERETH2RERE
activities
Loss before income tax BRETS BRI E 1B
— from continuing operations —REFELEER (18,456) (16,867)
— from discontinued operation —REBERILEEEB 35 (601) (1,504)
Adjustments for: HTIBEBEL 2 AR
Depreciation of property, ME- -BELRREBNE
plant and equipment 15 2,413 2,030
Amortisation of intangible asset mp A EEH 17 2,505 -
Gain on sale of held-for-trading HEREEERE 2
investments 8 (1,954) -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNRBARZEE 8 1,285 -
Gain arising from disposal of an s — B = R B FTE £ 2 W
associate 8 (412) -
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE HFER&EZ WS
plant and equipment 8 (140) (797)
Gain on change in fair value of FIEEEREZ ANBEZS G
held-for-trading investments 8 (1,528) -
Interest income FLEWA 8 (211) (7)
Interest expenses FEZH 9 120 4
Finance charges on obligation BMEHEAEZMEER
under a finance lease 9 - 2
Share of loss of an associate RS — Mg A REE 18 1,612 =
Operating loss before working HEESRHICKERRE
capital changes (15,367) (17,139)
Decrease in inventories FER D — 1,787
Purchases of held-for-trading BERFIEFEERE
investments (226,322) -
Proceeds from disposal of PERIEEERE ZMSHIE
held-for-trading investments 63,493 -
Increase in trade and B 5 K H fth & WK IE 3 AN
other receivables (120,704) (1,806)
Decrease in trade and Z 5 I H At JE A FIE R A
other payables (10,792) (1,873)
Cash used in operations KETHHHACES (309,692) (19,031)
Tax refund REIFIE - 175
Net cash used in operating activities — A8 & FE)B)fH < B £ F 5 (309,692) (18,856)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GLEBEEREXR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

2016 2015
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
—B—x%E —=-HE
B 5 FET FET
Cash flows from investing activities & B ?Qﬁ)ﬁiilziﬁ,ﬁ nE
Acquisition of a subsidiary, WKE—RERE A
net of cash acquired BB BT ﬁﬁfﬁb% 34(a)&(b) (10,376) (3,194)
Acquisition of an associate I g — B & A Al 18 (50,000) -
Payment for purchase of XN E R E
available-for-sale financial asset BB E 2 A 19 (15,300) -
Acquisition of assets through # B — WEE%
acquisition of a subsidiary mikiEEE 34(c) - (62,555)
Payment for purchase of property, THBEME BEL
plant and equipment BBz BIE (794) (1,694)
Deposit paid for acquisition of UL E — RSB B A )
a subsidiary BX R z&ke 22 - (6,150)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, &M B Q72 11§ IEA
net of cash disposed of EHMBRAEERS 36 112,164 -
Net cash outflow arising from disposal HEBERIFEEEKEEZ
of discontinued operation REnLFE 35 (87) -
Proceeds from disposal of an & — R 2 A E 2 TS RIE
associate 18 48,800 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEwE- ﬁ%&%&ﬁZ
plant and equipment FT15 5k 3 158 822
Decrease in pledged time deposits ETEEWEHW_ SO, - 1,546
Interest received =R &S 211 7
Net cash generated from/(used in) KETBELE " (BH)Z
investing activities & FEE 84,776 (71,218)
Cash flows from financing activities REMEETH 2 REFKE
Repayment of bank and other EERITRHEMEES
borrowings (6,201) (2,169)
Repayment of obligation under BEMEMEAE
a finance lease - (16)
Interest paid EF 8 (120) (4)
Finance charges paid on obligation B vﬁéﬁﬁ SAEENZ
under a finance lease B8 A = (2)
Proceeds from open offer NABEMENRIEA 27(d) 80,716 -
Proceeds from placings of shares B & A 9 BT 15 508 27(b)&(c) - 221,117
Share issue expenses f& 7 21T X 27(b),
(Q)&(d) (3,235) (7,197)
Net cash generated from financing BETEELEZHEFEE
activities 71,160 211,729
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%f’%
cash equivalents W) g FE (153,756) 121,655
Cash and cash equivalents R—B—BzEERESEEY
at 1 January 184,235 62,580
Cash and cash equivalents R+-A=+—HZHEER
at 31 December REeEEY 30,479 184,235
Represented by: B
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 24 30,479 184,235

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

AMCO United Holding Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda with limited liability on 19 August 1994 as an exempted
company under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda with its
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 28 November 1996. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section

to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in (i) manufacture and
sale of medical devices products; (ii) manufacture and sale of plastic
moulding products; (iii) provision of public relations services; (iv)
provision of construction services in building construction, building
maintenance and improvement works, project management,
renovation and decoration works; (v) provision of money lending;

and (vi) investment in securities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2016

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new amendments and interpretation to HKFRSs
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective
for the Group's consolidated financial statements for the

annual period beginning on 1 January 2016:
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012 - 2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisition of

Interests in Joint Operations

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has no material effect on the Group's financial
performance and position for the current year or the

disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - F—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective

The following new and revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early

adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement

of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Amendments to HKFRS 15  Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows (the business
model test) and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised
cost. Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash
flow characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if the objective of
the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at
FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are measured at

fair value through profit and loss.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at fair value through profit
or loss replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities
to better reflect their risk management activities in financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
n‘l_\é/a\jﬁiﬁﬁ Mq%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - F—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEABMBREED ([HEB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) R EERN]) (2)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that (b) EREEMBEERERZH

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair
value attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is
recognised in other comprehensive income unless that would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS
9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of

financial assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and

related interpretations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with

Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to

revenue recognition:

Step 1: lIdentify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance

obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation

is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the

qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
IIV_\’%;E\ji%iﬁﬁ Mqﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEBMBEBREEDN ([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued) BB EERN]) (&)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that (b) EREEBEERERZH

have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 "Leases”, introduces a single lease accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee
is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liabilities, and also
classifies cash payments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in the
consolidated statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use
asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable lease
payments and also includes payments to be made in optional
periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option
to extend the lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate
the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly differently
from the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as

operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its lease as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for these

two types of leases differently.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

(b) Application of new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective

(continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these pronouncements but is not
yet in a position to state whether the application of these
pronouncements would have a significant impact on the

Group's consolidated financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA,
which is a collective term for all individual HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing

the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at their fair value. The measurement basis

are fully explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - F—ANF+-F=1+—HILFE ﬁ
3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 3. MEEE #)

() HEERZ2FIEH

(c) Functional and presentation currency

Other than those subsidiaries established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") of which the functional currency is
Renminbi (“RMB"), the functional currency of the Company
and its subsidiaries is Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which

is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

PR E ARSRE ([RE]) KL
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., FESTTHERE

POLICIES

4.1 Basis of consolidation 4.1 mEEXE

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.1 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the dates of
acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by
the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date

fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities

were disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Subsidiaries 4.2 BN F]

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: power over

the investee, exposure or rights to variable returns from the

B8 A R A AN X B AT S EL AT 4R
ZHIRET WA EBAT 28 =T
- AARREEGWIRET A H
REFTEEN ARLEZHREKE

investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those FRI RO R E SRR RAIERHE
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and BNZEZENEER - NEFER
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of BRBEREMZ ST TE

these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

4.3 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is initially
recognised at cost being the excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred over the fair value of identifiable

assets acquired and liabilities assumed.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from

the synergies of the acquisition.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that
generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount
(see Note 4.17) and whenever there is an indication that the

unit may be impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.3 Goodwill (continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However,
the loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual
asset’s carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of
disposal (if measurable) or its value in use (if determinable),
whichever is the higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised in profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

4.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but

is not control or joint control over those policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Associates (continued) 4.4 BENT) (#)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the Group's consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations”. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest
in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.4 Associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group's investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the

recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is classified
as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial
recognition in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate at the date
the equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
on the same basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
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BEBZERKIBIRABRMERESE
EETAEE FFESHr 2 RE K

4.5 Property, plant and equipment

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as

to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an

operating lease.
The Group's leasehold land and buildings are classified as
finance leases and accounted for as property, plant and

equipment.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less

REHENE BIFEEEMBOEE
REHEE AIRZBERT BOHEDHTD

REBHETHREFTSIEARE

W% B KR TR REH T

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. EXZRFBERBYIEK-
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its M BELEEZHRABIERLESE

purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance,
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives,
residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of remaining lease

term or estimated useful life

Plant and machinery 5 - 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 -5 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets, or

where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.

4.6 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating

leases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - F—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHERE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.6 Leasing (continued) 4.6 HE (&)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and is
calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the
lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance owed to

the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of

the lease.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental income on a straight-line basis over the term of the

relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Intangible assets

(a) Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be finite or indefinite. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated impairment

losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of the reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being

accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible asset with indefinite useful lives is not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a

prospective basis.

No amortisation is provided on intangible asset under
development until it is completed and ready for its

intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - F—ANF+-F=1+—HILFE

4, FESTHHEBRE (2)

POLICIES (continued)
4.7 BILEE (#)
(b) AHELEZBEEE
fisd A] LAZE BR T 2I1B R - R A BD B
BEMIAXTAERE:

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

4.7 Intangible assets (continued)
(b) Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditure on internally developed products is

FBERNBEATHEESR

capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

— it is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold or used:; ERAERM ERAITE
- adequate resources are available to complete the - BREAMBIRTEKAE:
development;
- AEEKRLENFEAZE
FE

there is an intention to complete and sell or use the

REBBRENHEXERZ

product;
—  the Group is able to sell or use the product; -
B
- HEIEAZERSELER
AT ¢ R

sale or use of the product will generate future
economic benefits; and
- EmAXgErsiis-

expenditure on the product can be measured
EERMEzABRARTIRAEE

reliably.
BARANHEREAMEER

Z AR A g o

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the

periods the Group expects to benefit from selling or using

RGA L2 B A RA

the products developed.
HIEE BRI RERES 2

REEERNIBRTER

Development expenditure not satisfying the above
criteria and expenditure on the research phase of internal

projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

BE_F-—ANF+ZHA=1+—-HILFE

4.7 Intangible assets (continued)

(c) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired (see Note 4.17). Intangible assets with
indefinite lives and intangible assets not yet available for
use are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable
amounts (see Note 4.17). When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU
to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as

an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount; however, the carrying
amount should not be increased above the lower of
its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that
would have been resulted had no impairment loss been

recognised for the asset in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - F—ANF+-F=1+—HILFE 7
P

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHEBME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.8 BT A

4.8 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following categories —
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"),
available-for-sale (“AFS"”) financial asset and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale
of a financial asset that require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or convention in

the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for trading.
A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-

current.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates
any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income under “Other income and
other gains or losses”. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in Note 39.

AFS financial asset

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as loans
and receivables, or held-to-maturity investments or financial

assets at FVTPL.

Dividends on AFS equity instrument are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is

established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see accounting

policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets below).
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.8 M T H (&)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued) BBEE (&)
Loans and receivables EREYE

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables, loan
receivables, retention receivables and cash and bank balances)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see the accounting policy on

impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been

affected. Objective evidence of impairment may include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty;
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- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in — BH WRAREHEEFEK
interest or principal payments; &

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial reorganisation; and

—  the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 30 to 90 days, and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original

effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHEBME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.8 M T H (&)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued) HBEE (#)
Impairment of financial assets (continued) I EERE ()

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

MIREEER AR ZMHBEEM
FOMERRBE OREBRXSER
Lo MARRDEEE L EERRE
BREELEZEHAR  ALAICHE

MEBKHEBBE TUED
HZEENBRERBEDER ZEK®@
ENSBEBARERRER 2 HHX
o

Financial liabilities HHBEEE
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on AEERBEAAGEZBENGENE

the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly

attributable costs incurred.

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to a
creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration paid and are
recognised initially and measured at their fair value on the

date the financial liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the

BEIR-BBERRAABEIIRE

ZHBRBNSEAREBETE T
REERADNR 2 M B REVFRA
ARBEHRAES 2 EEEBEKAG

o

felo

HAEBEREBHEBY B EE 2 IHR
BEABEBABTEAG ZEATAN
BN 2R ZIBERE BB
ZERATABEMNKE LIRKEH
MHEAaBEREFNZBERUARREE
MEERRFTE - MAHRTRALEA

fair value of the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably ZAREETETSETZE  RAIFER
measured, the equity instruments are measured to reflect the ATEURMABBETBEEZAL
fair value of the financial liability extinguished. The difference BE-FEHETBEENEIN 2R
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or part HEHEENREZZEINFEER
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is recognised TR o
in profit or loss for the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.8 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and other
payables, are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest expense is

recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the

financial asset or liability.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in accordance with
HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or

expires.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)
4.9 78
FEMPENAER HEBENAR

4.9 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred

in bringing the inventories to their designated location. Cost is

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of goods and rendering of services in

the normal course of business, net of discounts.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and

the title is passed to customer.

Income from the provision of services is recognised upon the
provision of the relevant services or on a time apportionment

basis over the terms of the service contracts.

AERFEMETR ZBREEAR K
RBIERBRBEA  BHRKAR R
FEEEREMHMELE ZHE MK

calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable Ao AR AR I ERT B o IR HFE
value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary BERATREBBEP 2HFTEERRA
course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make EATHE ™M MR 2 EFT A .
the sale.

4.10 Cash and cash equivalents LI RERBEEEEY
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand RekBeSEMRE FERE-
deposits with banks, short-term deposits with bank with RITERERRRIAEA=EALK
original maturities of three months or less, and short NTWAESHRREMBimRe
term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible EZ7EBEEHRKBR TR ZEHER
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an BERE RGBSR ERME
insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of RekBeSEVRBEN LERATEZ
the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash FER®  RITERREBFER (kR
equivalents consist of cash on hand and at bank and short- BAREEZIRITES) o
term investments as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts.

4.11Revenue recognition 411 A FEE

WABRR—REBBETHESER
Mgt 22 WS BEREZ AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.11Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group’'s policy for recognition of revenue from
construction contracts is described in the accounting policy for

construction contracts below.

Rental income in respect of properties under operating leases
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the respective lease

term.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

4,12 Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised with
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at
the end of the reporting period, as measured by the proportion
that the value of work carried out during the year. Variations
in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included
to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its

receipt is considered probable.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in
the period in which they are incurred. When it is probable
that estimated total contract costs will exceed estimated
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

r
Pk

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHEBME (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.12 Construction contracts (continued) AN BEESN (#)

When contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as an amount due from customers for contract
work. For contracts where progress billings exceed contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated statement of
financial position, as a liability, as trade and other payables.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid by the
customers are included in the consolidated statement of

financial position under trade and other receivables.

4.13Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current

and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at

the end of the reporting period.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.13 Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount in the financial statements. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the

reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

4.14Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (“functional currency”) are recorded at
the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.14 Foreign currency (continued) 414 5N 8k (47)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates on the dates of
transactions are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity as translation reserve. Exchange differences recognised
in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items forming
part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign operation
concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the translation reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to

profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in the translation reserve.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.15 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other
than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled
wholly before twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the

year when the employees render the related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services are

rendered by the employees.

4.16 Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in capital reserve with equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using Black-Scholes model, taking into accounts the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options will

vest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHHEBME (&)

POLICIES (continued)
416 AR BER 2R (@)

4.16 Share-based payments (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses quality for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the
option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released directly to

retained profits/accumulated losses).

4.17 Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the following assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no

longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment; and

— intangible assets

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.17 Impairment of other assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

4.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.

4.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which it is probable
will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be

reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group; or

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the

Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and

fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the

other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity

related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (a).

4, FESTHHEBRE (2)

420BAE A =

i J§ TS Rl B A ek
BAANLTZORRBREERARE
B AR

(a)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

HAKE A BRI ARE
L e

HAEBEREATEN X

RAEBRERRBRRZ
FTEEBAB-

HEER TFIER FREEER

HEREE A RE
(i) HERBRAEEEBER-%H
ZRB (B&& AT K&

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

—EERRS— f%Z%
ﬁé%ﬁ%(&ﬁ%
MK B ZBBASASE

A

]

¥ Mmas —Eﬁﬁmﬁl
Z ) @

BB ANEEFELRSE
BE@EcERNEESRT
M2 BB & RFET 28l -

ZERX(@BEMHERZA
TR R

131

LU



132

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

4.20 Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to

the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(ii)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

4.21 Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the chief operating
decision-maker i.e. the most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business and

geographical locations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESTHHEBE (&)

POLICIES (continued)

4.21 Segment reporting (continued) AN D WBHRE (#)

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated EAREXREEDETEET AN
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have BWmE A WRNZED I 2 EBER
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of HEARERERBEME £ETFME
the nature of products and services, the nature of production g EBEPEESER - 5 HERIIRE
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to AR 7% 2 77 VA DA R BEE IR 35 2 1 545
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature ZRACL BIERIGR © @R A EXREE D

of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.

4.22 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished form the rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or geographic area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical area of

operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view

4.22

BB A LA A5 B - ST F X
Bt

CRIETEEEK

ERIEEEXEBRAEBEENAENK
o MEEBLRERETERNE
EHMEBERED BRIEKLEHE
B -IABUN T EERRLEES
g K —AHEB YN ERER L
REXBWEBENE —ERETEN—
By H—RERBEMRBONE

to resale. NI

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single MEBEDEREKILLEER A
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of profit rEBEgRGEEREEMEEKS
or loss and other comprehensive income, which comprises =25 — REERER

the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation and
the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to
fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

AR RIS BRI 5 S ET 1R )
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which are
described in Note 4, the directors of the Company (“Directors”)
are required to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.

Assessment of impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating
conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of
assets. When an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed
in assessing recoverable amounts incorporate a number of key
estimates and assumptions about future events, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the actual results.
In making these key estimates and judgements, the Directors take
into consideration assumptions that are mainly based on the market
conditions existing at the reporting dates and appropriate market

and discount rates.

These estimates are regularly compared to actual market data and

actual transactions entered into by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives and consequently the related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. These estimates are based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment. Management will increase the depreciation charges
when useful lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives. Periodic review may result in a change in

useful lives and therefore the depreciation expenses in future years.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The policy for impairment of trade and other receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the trade and other receivables and on management'’s
estimation. A considerable amount of estimation is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these trade and other
receivables. Factors considered include the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

impairment may be required.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 4.3. The recoverable amounts of CGUs have been determined
based on value in use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates about future cash flows, growth rates and discount
rates. In the process of estimating expected future cash flows,
management makes assumptions about future revenues and profits.
These assumptions relate to future events and circumstances, the
actual results may vary and may cause a material adjustment to
the carrying amount of goodwill within the next financial year.
Determining the appropriate discount rate involves estimating the
appropriate adjustment for market risk and for asset specific risk

factors.

Impairment of AFS financial asset

For the AFS financial asset disclosed in Note 19, the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the fair value
cannot be measured reliably, therefore it is measured at cost less
impairment. Management judgment is required in determining the
impairment loss, if any. In assessing the security, management takes
into account the investment'’s financial performance (including such
factors as earnings trends, dividend payments, asset quality and
specific events), the near term prospects of the investment, and the
current and expected financial condition of the investment’s issuer.

Any changes in these estimates may result in an impairment loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Construction contracts

As explained in accounting policy in Note 4.12, revenue recognition
on a project is dependent on management’s estimation of the
total outcome of the construction contracts, with reference to the
progress certificate issued by the customer. Significant assumptions
are required in estimating the contract revenue, contract costs
and variation work which may have an impact on percentage of
completion of the construction contracts and the corresponding
profit taken. The Group reviews and revises the estimates of
contract revenue, contract costs and variation orders, prepared for

each construction contract as the contract progresses.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has seven (2015: four) reportable segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the Group’s

reportable segments:

(1)  Manufacture and sale of medical devices products (“Medical

Devices Business”);

(2) Manufacture and sale of plastic moulding products (“Plastic

Moulding Business”);

(3) Provision of public relations services (PR Business”);

(4) Provision of human resources management services (“HR

Business”)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEPIRE (&)

(5) Provision of construction services in building construction, (5) REHEBEFESE BFEEARXET
2 -IEEER EEREHTIEIEZ
BERB ([BFEABITRER])

building maintenance and improvement works, project
management, renovation and decoration works (“Building

Contract Works Business”);

(6) Provision of money lending (“Money Lending Business”); and (6) REKE (IHEEK]) &
(7) Investment in securities (“Securities Investment”). (7) FBHFEE([FBHEEL) -

RBE-_Z-XF+-_A=+—HILF
the Money Lending Business and Securities Investment. In addition, B REERBEMEEBREFKRE It
the Group acquired the Building Contract Works Business in January I REEBR T - RF-ARBEFTA

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group commenced

2016. Information about this newly acquired business is disclosed in

Note 34(a).

The business segment of HR Business was sold and discontinued
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Information about this

discontinued segment is disclosed in Note 35.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are priced with reference to
prices charged to external parties for similar products. Corporate
revenue and expenses are not allocated to the operating segments
as they are not included in the measure of the segments’ profit that
is used by the chief operating decision-maker for assessment of

segment performance.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by

reportable segment:
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEEWE (&)
(a) Business segments (a) EB 5 EB
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-A"F+ZA=Z+—-BHLF
B
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations (Note 35)
AL
Rezy
RESERY (H33s)
Building
Medical Plastic Contract Money
Devices  Moulding PR Works lending  Securities HR
Business Business Business Business Business  Investment  Sub-total Business Total
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BRRE  ZBEA BrRE

3] % QBEE  IRRE  BERE  BERE Mt ADERER Eh
Thn TEn TER Tén 8- TER TER Tén TER

Reportable segment revenue TREFTUA 38,761 2,540 419 53,650 3,554 - 98,984 1,641 100,625
Inter-seqment revenue APEHA - - - - (105) - (105) - (105)
Revenue from external customers  RESMIZEMA 38,761 2,540 479 53,650 3,449 - 98,879 1,641 100,520
Reportable segment profitiloss) A& AHER / (HE) 1,186 E1Y) (86) (1,611) 2,765 2,40 5,011 (319) 4632
Reportable segment assets AREHBEE 2,511 578 45 41,698 74,557 166,311 285,766 - 285,766
Reportable segment liabilities IREATER (4,283) (660) (4 (13,948) - (19) (18,874) - (18,874)
Amounts included in the measure 587 5EH/ (BE) 3

of seqment profit/loss) or AREEHALEE

seqment assets
Interest income HEMA - 1 - 196 5 2 204 - 204
Depreciation and amortisation 7 Je % @ (397) (14) (2,633) - - (3,046) (16) (3,062)
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HEM% - BER

plant and equipment R/ (BR) - 128 - 1) - - 121 - 121
Additions to non-current assets  FEFEHEE - - - 525 - - 525 11 536

ERERERAT

-
2016 F3; 139
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ% (#)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) £85I
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Re-presented) HE-T-—AFT-A=T—HILF

E(&E5)

Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations (Note 35)
BRI
FEEEER (M5E35)
Medical Plastic
Devices Moulding PR HR
Business Business Business Sub-total Business Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERE BREER ANER
£ £% N ES it £} st
FAT TET TR TER FEL FEL
Reportable segment revenue [ F & 2B A 54,340 16,627 878 71,845 507 72,352
Revenue from external KEMPEP KA
customers 54,340 16,627 878 71,845 507 72,352
Reportable segment profit/(loss) A% 5 &% 7,/ (EE) 2,151 (2,098) (510) (457) (1,504) (1,961)
Reportable segment assets RENHEE 13,782 750 219 14,751 199 14,950
Reportable segment liabilities ~ AJ#&E N HBEE (9,846) (3,094) (298)  (13,2398) (193)  (13,431)
Amounts included in the STESEEF (BE) %
measure of segment profit/ ~ HHFEEFAZEE
(loss) or segment assets
Interest income FIEWA 1 - - 1 - 1
Depreciation bk (387) (122) (10) (519) (26) (545)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE HER
plant and equipment FBkE - 797 - 797 - 797
Additions to non-current assets JREIERIHEE - 5 69 74 172 246
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - E— AN+ =-F=1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. THEBERE (@)
(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment (b) THEIBKRA - B -EE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities REBEZHER
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-RF —E-RHF
FHR FARE
(g&E:5)
Revenue L'ON
Reportable segment revenue A& o E A 100,625 72,352
Inter-segment revenue 7 BE R UL A (105) -
Segment revenue from discontinued REDRIEEREEEZ D EBA
operation (1,641) (507)
Consolidated revenue from continuing R E#FBLEEK 2 HRE KA
operations 98,879 71,845
Loss before income tax and MRETEBAIBRAROCRLEEER
discontinued operation
Reportable segment profit/(loss) AREDEREF, (FIE) 4,632 (1,961)
Segment loss from discontinued KEBRIEKEER 2 HHBER
operation 379 1,504
Finance costs %55 A (120) (6)
Share of loss of an associate B —RB e R R 2 B8 (1,612) =
Unallocated corporate income Ry EERA 1,530 2,488
Unallocated corporate expenses APBEERT (23,265) (18,892)
Consolidated loss before income REBELSEEKZ
tax from continuing operations BRITEBBAIGEEE (18,456) (16,867)
Assets EE
Segment assets DEBEE 285,766 14,950
Leasehold land and buildings HETHRETF - 62,590
Intangible asset EBEEE - 2,584
Goodwill S - 957
Available-for-sale financial asset AHEEMBEE 15,300 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEY 30,479 184,235
Unallocated corporate assets ROMEEEE 2,459 9,250
Consolidated total assets REBEE 334,004 274,566
Liabilities 8&
Segment liabilities NEEE 18,874 13,431
Amounts due to related parties JET R E A TR 9,200 9,200
Unallocated corporate liabilities ROMEEBE 3,088 8,165
Consolidated total liabilities HEBBERE 31,162 30,796
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_F-—ANF+ZHA=1+—-HILFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(c)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(continued)

Reportable segment profit/loss represents the profit/loss
attributable to each segment without allocation of corporate
administrative expenses, share of loss of an associate, finance
costs, corporate directors’ emoluments, corporate interest
income and income tax credit/expense. This is the measure
reported to the chief operating decision-maker for the

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
leasehold land and buildings, available-for-sale financial asset

and cash and cash equivalents.

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than

amounts due to related parties.

Geographic information

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the goods delivered or service provided. The
geographical location of the non-current assets is based on the

physical and operating location of the assets.

The Group's operations and workforce are mainly located in

Hong Kong.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEPIRE (&)

(c) HEEX (4)
TREFIAEBRAINDES 2 WA

(c) Geographic information (continued)

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's

|

revenue from external customers. 2R e
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
HELCEEY BRIEEEER @t
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re- (Re- (Re-
presented) presented) presented)
ZE-XE CZZ-1F ZB-xE CZE-1% ZB-"§ —Z-hn#%
TET THT TET TR TER THx
(&E5) (&) (&)
Asia M
- Hong Kong -B% 57,578 839 1,641 507 59,219 1,396
— other region —HimE 858 9,581 - - 858 9,581
Europe BN 1,394 3,710 - - 1,394 3,710
North and South America B EM 39,049 57,665 - - 39,049 57,665
98,879 71,845 1,641 507 100,520 72,352

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's non-

TERBINAEEFERBDEEZ D

o

current assets.

Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total

REGEEY BRILEEEY st
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re- (Re- (Re-
presented) presented) presented)
ZZ2-xf Z—Z-1Ff ZB-Xf Z—F-1nf ZB-"§ C—T-IfF
TER TEL TR TR TiEx TET
(&) (&) (RRE3)

Asia oM
- Hong Kong -8 33,445 75,362 = 146 33,445 75,508
EXRERERAE

=
2016 F 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. DEIRE (&)
(d) Information about major customers d) EEEZFER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total REERMAERBELEEBRER
revenue of the Group for both continuing operations and IFEEXEBRRARBBIO%N B Z
discontinued operation are set out below: WABR T
2016 2015
—g-AF —T-nf
% of total % of total
HK$'000 revenue HK$'000 revenue
-V N Az
EAl ER"
FTERT FHT
Customer A — Medical Devices  BPA-BEREER
Business 38,761 39% 54,329 75%
Customer B - Plastic Moulding ~ RFEB—#8RBEE£7% N/A (Note) N/A (Note)
Business TER (W) TER (K 8,634 12%
Customer C - Building Contract BEFC—EZFEBIRER
Works Business 13,070 13% - -
Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of K- MBERMWALRERBBANE
the total revenue of the Group. B EWAR10% °
7. REVENUE 7. A
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold or WABEHBRERLEZITH REEE
services provided, net of returns and trade discounts, revenue from BHZWARERMEWRAZZEEE R
construction contracts and loan interest income. RIRHERIE 2 F -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E—-RE —E—hF
FET FAET
(&%)
Continuing operations BEEEEL
Sales of goods HE R m 41,301 70,967
Revenue from construction contracts REBREADHZWA 53,650 -
Loan interest income BHFBWA 3,449 -
Provision of services RHRE 479 878
98,879 71,845
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e MR R AR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE ﬁ
OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS OR 8. HiWERHEMW AR EE

LOSSES

Analysis of the Group’s other income and other gains or losses RAFERNERAANEE 2 HMhliias kA

recognised during the year is as follows: A S EE ST T
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
—E-RF —ZT-hfF
FERT FHET
Continuing operations BEREXR
Exchange gain, net ME W e - F = 12
Gain on sale of held-for-trading HEFIEEERE R (MiE21)
investments (Note 21) 1,954 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 36) HEMH B A FEE (HiE36) (1,285) -
Gain arising from disposal of HE—RABEATEEZ KE
an associate (Note 18) (Mfzx18) 412 -
Gain on disposal of property, HEME WFE L& ER=E
plant and equipment 140 797
Gain on change in fair value of held-for- REEBEREAABEES ZWE
trading investments (Note 21) (Mf&E21) 1,528 -
Interest income MEWA 211 7
Rental income HaHA 273 5
Others Hit 1,951 2,679
5,184 3,500
FINANCE COSTS 9. MBEH
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —E-RhEF
FERT FET
Continuing operations RHEREER
Interest on bank and other borrowings BARAFRNEBHEEZ
wholly repayable within five years BITREMERZFE 120 4
Finance charge on obligation under RMEMREREZMBEER
a finance lease - 2
120 6
ERERARAT
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e M B mERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

10.LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group's loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

10.BRATEHAIE B

AEBZBASHABED AR TS

I -
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$’000
(Re-presented)
—BE-REF —ZT—hHF
TER FET
(F=E75))
Continuing operations BEREXER
Employee costs (including Directors’ BEXRK (BEESZMHE)
emoluments)
— Salaries, wages and other benefits —¥e ITERHMBEAR 13,628 13,933
— Contribution to defined contribution — R E R TR EIHE K
retirement plan (Note 28) (FF3E28) 426 369
14,054 14,302
Depreciation of property, plant and mME- BERREBTE
equipment
- Owned -—BE 2,397 1,673
— Held under a finance lease —REBEEERE = 331
Amortisation of intangible asset (Note 17) &R EE#H (ME17) 2,505 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZE RN & 400 765
Operating lease charges in respect of EEMEZKEHEER
properties 2,017 2,042
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R A X 2 F SR A 32,342 53,160
Cost of services R 75 A A< 48,286 734
11.INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE N.FERER EHA
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —E-RHF
FTER FET
Continuing operations FEREXER
Hong Kong Profits Tax HENEH
— Tax for the year —AFEEHIE 28 -
— Over-provision in prior year —RAFEBERE (38) -
Deferred tax (credit)/expense — current year ELEFIE (KB) BRE-—ANEE
(Note 26) (Pi7E26) (416) 235
Income tax (credit)/expense TSR (Ke) BH (426) 235
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e B RRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

11.INCOME TAX CREDIT/EXPENSE (continued) 11.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

FrEHiER R @)
B FU1S B Ty BN A 2 (5 A SR B A

assessable profits for the current year. No Hong Kong Profits Tax Z165%H AR EET—RAF+=A
was provided for last year as the Group had sufficient tax loss =T+ —HEFEASECD S E AT IEAE
brought forward to offset against the assessable profits for the year AEREERT &N R BEFEL
ended 31 December 2015. TERE BTGB E -
The income tax credit/expense for the year can be reconciled to the AEEFMERER EAMEMGEEERE
loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or fth 2> T U 2 2% 2 Bk BT 45 B A JES 18 4 BR 40
loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ™~
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E-RE —ET-hF
FTER FET
(fR&E75))
Continuing operations BEREXR
Loss before income tax CIEEH TR0 S| (18,456) (16,867)
Tax calculated at the rates applicable to BEBAERER 2
the jurisdiction concerned HABEGFTE A (2,937) (3,022)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TR MBI HAZ 2 2
for tax purpose 1,290 882
Tax effect of revenue not taxable BERMBAZBBZE
for tax purpose (94) (678)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMIEBE R BTE 2,202 3,579
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses BALAARBERBIEEEZ
previously not recognised MG e (766) (687)
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBRERE (38) =
Tax effect of temporary differences RAERERHEEZR BT E
not recognised (83) 161
Income tax (credit)/expense Fri8® (Be) &R (426) 235

A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R RME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

12.LOSS PER SHARE 12.8RER

(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to

owners of the Company is based on the following data:

(a) EBREAXBE

AREEBEANREERERBERIE
RIATBURRHE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
(Re-presented)
—E—-XREF —ET—hEF
FERT FHT
(gE75)
Basic =%
Loss for the year for the purposes of Bt EEREAEIEMS <
computation of basic loss per share FREE
— from continuing operations —REFELCEEL (18,030) (17,102)
— from discontinued operation —REBERIEEEHETR (379) (1,504)
(18,409) (18,606)
(Restated)
'000 '000
(e =51)
R Fis
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary B 277 & @A 2 h#E F 15 &
shares in issue (Note) (H15E) 1,805,541 699,171
Note: Hitat

The calculation of basic loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2016 is based on the consolidated loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company and on the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year after
adjustment of the bonus element in the shares issued under the

open offer completed during the year.

The comparative figures for the basic loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2015 are restated to take into account of the
effects of the share consolidation and the bonus elements arising
from the share placings and open offer completed retrospectively
as if they had taken place since the beginning of the comparative
period. Details of the above share consolidation, share placings

and open offer are set out in Note 27.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

12.BREE 2
(b) EREBEE
HRAE-Z AER-F—H4F
+-A=+-BILEETEC BT
ETE S A AR A AR e
B4 1% ELAS B B AR R -

12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)
(b) Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share was the same as basic loss per share
because there was no potential dilutive ordinary share in issue
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

R—ZE-—REER-_FE—HF+=A
=+—HB WEHRITEZERE-

There were no outstanding share options as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

13. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 13.EEM 2
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine (2015: ten) AEEENIKERNAEG (ZE—RF: +
directors during the years were as follows: BIEEFZREZMeNT:

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-—AF+=-A=+—BLEFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e 2K
g0 BYH & BARET IR Fobay
FTET TER FTER FERT
Executive Directors HITES
Zhang Hengxin (appointed on KEE(RZT—REF
6 September 2016) NASBEZHE) 76 - - 76
Peng Shiyuan (appointed on THR(RZE—RF
30 September 2016) NA=Z+HEZT) 30 - - 30
Jia Minghui (appointed on EHE (RZE—XRF
30 September 2016) hWA=+HEZT) 60 - - 60
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin (resigned on ¥ER(RZT—+tF
31 January 2017) —A=+—HEE) - 2,522 33 2,555
Cheng Kin Chor (resigned on BERE(RZT—LF
1 January 2017) —A—B#&fT) - 821 18 839
Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen (resigned 28R (R=T—X&F
on 30 November 2016) +—R=THEMI) - 239 12 251
Independent Non-executive BUYKHTES
Directors
Wong Siu Ki % 120 - - 120
Chan Ngai Sang Kenny R E 120 - - 120
Li Kwok Fat BN 120 - - 120
Total st 526 3,582 63 4,171
ERERERDA
2016 F3R
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e M B mERME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 1B.EEM= »)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE - Z—AF+_A=+—HIEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fees in kind contributions Total
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
o EHR
EEHE B = RRE B fast
FHET FET FiEx FTiExT
Executive Directors HITES
Yip Wai Lun, Alvin EEfm - 2,555 33 2,588
Leung Mei Han (resigned on RER(KR-_Z—HF
9 November 2015) tT—AAREE) - 257 13 270
Cheng Kin Chor e - 754 18 772
Leung Kelvin Ming Yuen RPAR (KT —LF
(appointed on 1 May 2015) FA—HEZTE) - 160 8 168
Independent Non-executive BYKHTES
Directors
Wong Siu Ki (appointed on BB (R=2—8F
1 May 2015) TA—BEZME) 67 - - 67
Chan Ngai Sang Kenny BREE (R-Z—AF
(appointed on 30 June 2015) NAZTHEEE) 50 - - 50
Li Kwok Fat (appointed on FEE(RZZ2—1F
30 June 2015) NA=ZTRHEZE) 50 - - 50
Leung Ka Kui, Johnny (retired on 2R (RZE—RF
30 June 2015) NA=THEMF) 50 - - 50
Chan Kam Kwan, Jason (resigned Rigm (N=—Z—A1F
on 30 June 2015) NAZTBEE) 50 - - 50
Lau Man Tak (retired on ZIxiE(R=_E—hF
30 June 2015) NA=ZTHER) 50 = - 50
Total &t 317 3,726 72 4,115

ENHTESEHE RMREYNERE
DERRARBALEMBRABCERER
EN BN ZME -

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the Executive
Directors are generally emoluments paid or payable in respect of
those persons’ other services in connection with the management of

the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors, as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group as compensation for

loss of office.

No Directors waived any emoluments in the year ended 31

December 2016 (2015: Nil).

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
two (2015: two) were Directors whose emoluments are included in
the disclosure in Note 13 above. The emoluments of the remaining

three (2015: three) individuals were as follows:

13.

14.

e B RRHE

BEEME )

RBEZE_ZTE-—R"FR-_FT—AF+A
ST —HLERBAFERN AEEWEAE
EXNEMMS  ERREMARSEE
RIMAREB R 2 REN S ERBE B E o

RBE_Z-—XF+-_A=1T—HILF
B HBEEEREEAUHE (Z2—h%F:
&) o

EEMWE

AEEREESFHZALS BERA
(ZE—RE MB)EF ZFEEZH
EREXHEBEE-RT=BAL (=F
—hFE:=ZR)ZMemT:

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

A% —2—5n%F

FHET FET

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMEES 2,117 2,057
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B R 54 54
2,171 2,111

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

WEZMERFTHNEER :

2016 2015

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

—E-XRE —T—RHF

A N ¢

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,000/ 7T 3 3

During both years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, including Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group as compensation for loss of office.

The remuneration of nil (2015: one) senior management personnel
has been disclosed in the above table of the five highest paid

individuals.

RBEEZE-_ZE-—R"FR-ZZFT—AF+ZA
=S+—HLERBEFERN AEEWES A
M TFTREEE=FM AL (BEE
B) EREEMAXREESIRMAREE
W2 BBl fE R BB AR 8 o

TE(ZE—HF —R)ERERAEY
FWER LA S EBHMALZ RN
B -

EXRERERQA
2016 3|
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -BERZE

152

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand Plantand and office Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HELi BER GH- -REBR
REgF BE  BOARE RE @t
FET FET TER FTER TER
Cost B
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—RF—H—H - 11,348 2,485 5,844 19,677
Additions at cost NE (R AE) - - 1,580 - 1,580
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34(b)) Y& —RIM B2 &) (KiFE34(b)) - - 419 - 419
Acquisition of asset through acquisiton  EBKE-FANBLREE
of a subsidiary (Note 34(c)) BE (M5E34(0) 62,590 - - - 62,590
Disposals & - (1,284) (174) (1,018) (2,476)
Written off A - - (1,124) - (1,124)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January RZZE-RE+ZA=+—H
2016 rZE—-R"¥—-HA—H 62,590 10,064 3,186 4,826 80,666
Additions at cost NE (RKAE) - - 908 - 908
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34(a)) Wi —FEHE A7)
(FE34(a)) - - 17 124 141
Derecognised upon disposal of ELEWEARME LR
subsidiaries (Notes 35, 36(a)&(c)) (PFE35 - 36() R (0)) (62,590) - (559) - (63,149)
Disposals HE - (1,480) = (591) (2,071)
Written off ki - - (776) - (776)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-ARE+ZA=+—H _ 8,584 2,776 4,359 15,719
Accumulated depreciation and 2 MERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2015 RZE-hF—H—H - 11,348 2,369 2,791 16,508
Depreciation e - - 391 1,639 2,030
Disposals k= - (1,284) (149) (1,018) (2,451)
Written off W - - (1,124) - (1,124)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January RN_E-AF+-A=+—H
2016 R=F-R"E—-f—H - 10,064 1,487 3,412 14,963
Depreciation e 1,373 - 599 441 2,413
Derecognised upon disposal of ELEWEARME LR
subsidiaries (Notes 35, 36(a)&(c)) (PHFE35 - 36(a) R (0)) (1.373) _ (107) _ (1.,480)
Disposals & - (1,480) - (591) (2,071)
Written off i - - (758) - (758)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-XE+=A=t-H - 8,584 1,221 3,262 13,067
Net book value RERE
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+=A=+-H - - 1,555 1,097 2,652
At 31 December 2015 N R — 62,590 - 1,699 1,414 65,703

The building is situated on leasehold land in Hong Kong held under

long term lease.
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e B RRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE - E— AN+ =-F=1+—HIFE

16. GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill as at 31
December 2016 related to a new business unit acquired during the

year, as further explained below.

16. &

EBAMHPRBZEEAKERSREE
HEEBANP R HeEEEM-H
BR-_F-—AFt+-A=+—BZKEE
BAFERBIMEBEMER WTX
Pt — 2 Rt -

2016 2015
HKs'ooo HK$'000
—RE —E—hF
:F%TB FET
Cost R A
At 1 January n—A—H 68,319 67,362
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Notes (i) & (ii))  Ug&& — R H B 2 &) (B 5E) B (i) ) 10,196 957
Derecognised upon disposal of a subsidiary & — I & A &) i 4% 1E 7 AR
(Note (ii)) (B 3£ Gi) ) (957) -
At 31 December K+=—A=+—H 77,558 68,319
Accumulated impairment losses ZFtREEIE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRk+tZAR=+—8H
(Note (iii)) (B =iy ) (67,362) (67,362)
Net book value at 31 December R+-A=+—-HBzZEREFE 10,196 957
Notes: B 5 -

(i) Building Contract Works Business

At 31 December 2016, goodwill of approximately HK$10,196,000
relates to the Building Contract Works Business unit, a CGU,
acquired as part of the acquisition of ACE Engineering Limited
("ACE Engineering”) during the year as further explained in Note
34(a).

The recoverable amount of the CGU, has been determined using
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based on estimates
and financial budgets approved by the Directors. These projections
cover a five-year period, and have been discounted using a pre-
tax discount rate of 14.99%. The cash flows beyond that five-year

period have been extrapolated using a growth rate of 3%.

iy BFERBIRER

RZE—R"RE+ZA=Z+T—H %
10,196,000 T 2 &Y B BF NER
W T EERAR ([REITRE])
Z—EMA T E Y EFAB I RER
(R—ERSEESBM) (FBERMFE
34(a)) °

ReEFEU AR eEEREES
Ptz et R BIEENAR R E
BRAGEEREBEET ZSHARE
RFHAM - BFER14.99% 2 FiAT AL IR X
MR -BHEAFHEAZESRECER
3% REME o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@)

Building Contract Works Business (continued)

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on their experience and expectation for future

market development.

The Directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount of the CGU.

Provision for information technology services

At 31 December 2015, goodwill of approximately HK$957,000
relates to the provision of information technology services business
unit acquired as part of the acquisition of Zeed Asia Technology
Limited (“Zeed Asia”) during the year ended 31 December 2015 as
further explained in Note 34(b).

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined using
cash flow projections to calculate value in use based on estimates
and financial budgets approved by the management. These
projections cover a five-year period, and have been discounted
using a pre-tax discount rate of 19.68%. The cash flows beyond
that five-year period have been extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3%.

All of the assumptions and estimations involved in the preparation
of the cash flow projection including budgeted gross margin,
discount rate and growth rate are determined by the management
of the Group based on their experience and expectation for future

market development.
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E=RR IERR(ATREESENZ
REE)ZEFAAERAREHHTEE
HENzEHEBEHReELEM 2T
e < 5B AR AR o

TR A S BT AR 7

RZZE—RF+ZA=+—8"%
957,000 T2 EMERBE_T—1
FHZA=+—RHIEFERERIREMN
BIEARAR ([BIREMND) ERKER
AR E AR MRS G B 2 — 3
(R EE34(0)E — 2t ) -

REeELBEM 2 RESHEDREERE
Bt/ 2 st R REE M AR SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

(iii)

Provision for information technology services (continued)

The Directors believe that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount of the unit to exceed the aggregate

recoverable amount of the CGU.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed
of Zeed Asia with the associated goodwill of approximately
HK$957,000 (Note 36(a)).

Medical Devices Business

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, goodwill of approximately
HK$67,362,000 relates to the Medical Devices Business unit
acquired as part of the acquisition of the Titron Group in 2011,
as defined and detailed in the Company’s circular dated 12
August 2011. Owing to the significant and continuous losses
incurred by this business unit in prior years, all of the goodwill
of approximately HK$67,362,000 had been impaired as at 31
December 2014.

16. & (%)

BsE: (&)

(if)

(iii)

REEFIRMARY (&)

E=RR ITERR(AREESENZ
REE)ZEFAAENREHHTIEE
HENzERHEEEReELEM 2T
U a] < RE AR AR o

BHE_Z—X&+-_A=+—8I#&F
EAEEHEAREMNEEZEEY
957,000 7T (Fi5E36(a)) °

BREREBESR

N_E—-—RNER_Z—RAF+_-H
=+—H 467,362,000 LT EZ B
BENEREAR T —FRBEERE
B —EHE s EREREESEL
(EERFBRAARB®HA=ZZT ——
FNATZBZBH) ERZEBE
RBAFEFESBEEBE ERN
—E-ME+ A=+ —HEPEEY
67,362,000 02 IR R E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE

156

2016 2015
—B-RE —E-RE
In-process In-process
research and research and
Contracts Contractor  development development
backlog  registrations project project
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) Total (Note (i)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
REHR EEH BTRZ ETRZ
L) i MEEL @t HEER
(M&E@) (H=EG)) (H=E (i) (B3E()
TERT THERT TERT TET TET
Cost 2%:S

At 1 January iz = - - 2,584 2,584 -
Acquisitions through business combinations EREBANRE 2,786 5,016 - 7,802 2,202
Additions from development projects REBERE - - - - 382
Derecognised upon disposal of a subsidiary RHE—BHBRARAMRLHER - - (2,584) (2,584) -
At 31 December R+ZA=+-8 2,786 5,016 - 7,802 2,584

Accumulated amortisation EHe
At 1 January R—A-H - - - - -
Amortisation #H 2,505 - - 2,505 -
At 31 December RtZA=+-H 2,505 - - 2,505 -
Net book value at 31 December RTZA=Z+-BREEEE 281 5,016 - 5,297 2,584
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

@)

Building Contract Works Business

Intangible assets with net book value of approximately
HK$5,297,000 as at 31 December 2016 represent contractor
registrations and contracts backlog arising from the acquisition of

ACE Engineering during the year ended 31 December 2016.

ACE Engineering is a registered contractor in several government/
public organisations and only registered contractors are eligible
to obtain contracts from these government bodies. These
contractor registrations include the registration as an authorised
building contractor under the sub-category of Maintenance
Works in the category of Building Work in Group M1 approved
by the Hong Kong Housing Authority and is eligible to tender
for maintenance and improvement contracts with a value of up
to HK$50 million and for term maintenance and improvement
contracts with an average annual expenditure of up to HK$50
million. In general, these registrations require certain criteria to
be met which effectively limit the number of new entries in the
list of authorised contractors. Accordingly, contractor registrations
held by ACE Engineering are considered as the main attributes to
the revenue and future growth of ACE Engineering and thus are
recognised as intangible assets with indefinite useful live and are
valued at fair value as approximately HK$5,016,000 (Note 34(a))
upon acquisition by the Group. The fair value of these contractor
registrations was determined by an independent professional firm
of valuers using the income approach and the Multi Period Excess
Earnings Method is employed. The discount rate used for the
valuation of the contractor registrations is 17.61%. The contractor
registrations are measured initially at cost and subsequently

measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

0]

17. B EE &)
M 3E:

BFEBIREK

RITE—RF+ZA=+—RHEEFE
#1735,297,000/8 T 2 EIZEEENEE
ZE-RF+ZRA=T-HIEFERE
ETREESE 2 ARETMERTRE
#)e

B TR RE TBN,RHEEE 2 M
AER METMAEE A TERE
ZEBNREESEN ZERENTE
eEaMesdtEEZEe@EZE
FIRBEANREIESEMIMAIETRR
BEAERN UTETERBREBETB
350,000,000 7T 2 fR & R & & 49 DA
K EFH T 850,000,000 7T
ZEHRBERAEEH -ZEFAM—K
AREETERE FREEFRRGIR
AR MR EHE - Bt T
TRFHA 2 FEETMEERHEKRAK
ARWRZFERR HERLEER
ERAFHEREETRAEEWIER

F34(a))  ZEFEREFAMZAAEBE
TEBEETEMRARGSERZ B
BERBAET REEEMZEER
FRAZEIERAE17.61%  FEEEMTN
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

@)

Building Contract Works Business (continued)

On 5 January 2016, ACE Engineering had 10 contracts on hand
and expected to finish substantially all of them before the end
of 2016. As such, it was considered that these contracts could
generate future economic benefits to the Group and thus are
recognised as intangible assets with finite useful life. The fair value
on acquisition is determined by an independent professional firm
of valuers and the present value technique is employed to value
the fair value of the contracts backlog. The expected revenue
and the associated costs are identified for each contract. The
associated direct costs and proportional operating expenses are
deducted from the revenue generated by each contract. The profits
are then discounted by the appropriate required rate of return to
arrive at present values. The discount rate used for the valuation of
contracts backlog was 15.61%. The contracts backlog was valued
at fair value as approximately HK$2,786,000 (Note 34(a)) at the
date of acquisition. The contracts backlog is measured initially
at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The contracts
backlog was amortised over the period up to the completion
of each of the contracts. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the amortisation of intangible asset was approximately

HK$2,505,000 (Note 10).

The contractor registrations and contracts backlog relate to the
segment of Building Contract Works Business which constitutes
a CGU, and have been assessed for impairment as detailed in
Note 16(i). Based on the impairment assessment performed by
management, the Directors are of the opinion that no impairment

on the intangible assets is considered necessary.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

Provision for information technology services

The intangible asset of in-process research and development
project (“in-process R&D") represented the in-process development
of an internet financial platform by Zeed Asia acquired during the
year ended 31 December 2015, further details of which are set out

in Note 34(b).

Since the Platform was under development and not ready for use,
no amortisation had been recognised. It is tested for impairment
annually until it is available for use. Based on the impairment
assessment performed by management, the Directors are of the
opinion that no impairment on the in-process R&D is considered

necessary.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the intangible
asset with net book value of approximately HK$2,584,000 was
derecognised upon the disposal of Zeed Asia, further details of

which are set out in Note 36(a).

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

The Group acquired interests in an associate during the year ended

31 December 2016. The following table analyses the movements

of the carrying amount of the Group's investment and its share of

results of this associate.

7. BIEEE (&)

s (&)

(i) REERRMRS

TR 2MEEE ([ETR2HEIE
B PROEREEERAARNREEZ
T-RF+-A=+—RLFELKEZ
BIARGMNFERBEZEHESRT A
HE— TR IB R EE34(b)

BMRFAEEMESR RERATRAR
R I EER S R EEFETR
B BEEAHERAL -RETEE
T ZRER M EERRBARET
2 T EIA B AT IRA(E ©

HE-_Z—X"F+ZA=+—HLHF
B EHEEIREMEMKIEERER
FEX) /2,584,000 T2 BV EE  #
— FREEEH NI EE36(a)

18 R—EBEQRRZRE

AEERBE_Z-R"FE+-_A=+—B1t
FEWBE -—HBE rzEm TRIAEHE
RERHEREDHZBERREEZZD
DT

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
L —E—a%F
FERT FHT
Unlisted share, at cost 3 W05 (RRAET)
At 1 January n—A—H - -
Acquisition of Ultimate Elite Investments g 88 Ultimate Elite Investments
Limited (“Ultimate Elite”) (Note (i)) Limited ([ Ultimate Elite ] )
(HEEG)) 50,000 -
Share of post-acquisition loss SEW IR BB (1,612) =
Derecognised upon disposal (Note (ii)) o B A% ERR (B RGN ) (48,388) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—A” - -
ERERERAT

=
2016 3|

r
Pk
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_F-—ANF+ZHA=1+—-HILFE

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Notes:

@)

(if)

On 11 April 2016, Praiseful Moment Limited (“Praiseful Moment”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, completed the
acquisition of 40% of the issued share capital of Ultimate Elite
pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement dated 15 January
2015 entered into between Praiseful Moment as the purchaser
and an independent third party, Rosy Lane Investments Limited
(a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI")
with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Hong Kong Education
(Int'l) Investments Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 1082)) as the vendor, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$50,000,000. Upon completion, Ultimate Elite
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Vision Smart Limited (“Vision
Smart”) became an associate of the Company. The principal assets
held by Vision Smart are commercial properties located at Offices
A-H, J-N & P on 21/F. (Whole Floor), No. 3 On Kwan Street, Shatin,

New Territories, Hong Kong.

On 5 December 2016, Praiseful Moment completed the disposal
of 40% of the issued share capital of Ultimate Elite, pursuant to
the sale and purchase agreement on the same date entered into
between Praiseful Moment as the vendor and an independent third
party, Winrange Investments Limited (a company incorporated
in the BVI with limited liability and is wholly-owned by Finsoft
Financial Investment Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability, the issued shares of which
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8018)) as the purchaser, at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$48,800,000, with a gain arising from
disposal of the associate of approximately HK$412,000 (Note 8)

recognised in profit or loss.
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(if)
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

19. At HEMBEE

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EB-XEF —E—RF

FET FAET

Unlisted share, at cost FEHRB BRA 15,300 -

On 18 April 2016, Eternity Riches Limited (“Eternity Riches”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the subscriber entered
into a subscription agreement with Alpha Generator Limited
(“Alpha Generator”) and three individuals as the warrantors, with
each of the warrantors being an independent third party and a
shareholder of Alpha Generator, pursuant to which Eternity Riches
agreed to subscribe for and Alpha Generator agreed to allot and
issue, the subscription shares at the aggregate subscription price of
HK$15,300,000 in cash. The subscription shares represent 14% of
the enlarged issued share capital of Alpha Generator as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the subscription shares. Alpha Generator
and its wholly-owned subsidiary, OPS Interior Design Consultant
Limited (“OPS Interior”), is principally engaged in provision of

interior design, fit out and decoration services.

According to the subscription agreement, the warrantors have
irrevocably and unconditionally guaranteed that the consolidated
audited net profits of Alpha Generator for the year ended 30 June
2016 and year ending 30 June 2017 shall in aggregate be not
less than HK$24,000,000. If the aggregated results of these two
years were less than the said amount, the warrantors shall pay to
the Group the shortfall compensation calculated pursuant to the

agreement with a maximum cap at HK$15,300,000.

The investment is measured at cost less impairment as the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the Directors
are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.
The Directors use their judgment in assessing impairment of the
AFS investment. Based on the financial information provided by
management of Alpha Generator, no potential impairment has been
identified by the Directors for the AFS investment. The Group does

not intend to dispose the investment in the near future.

RZE—R"FUA+T+NB K2R zE2E
MEBARREKAERAR ([KRE]) (1EAR
B85 ) B Alpha Generator Limited ([ Alpha
Generator | ) R =& BA (FERERFA)
IV RBHE MREASZE BAlpha
Generator? B B = A KB R HiIt &
¥ A 2 R 88 M Alpha Generator[@ B2 4R
fBE R £15,300,000/8 Tl # K ETRE
B 17 - SREE I 9 48 2 A Alpha Generator4®
B3 RETREROBEAR 2 EEAD T
fE 7 2 14% ° Alpha Generator & £ 2 & If
BARRBENRTERAR AR ([RE
ENETEREREBEZARGT TERE
Bl AR 75 3 7% o

BERE W - REAS T AIHE KRGS
{R#& Alpha GeneratorBl Z =& — X F /X A
=t+BLEEFERBE-_Z—+tF A=+
BIEFEZGARERMANES XD R
24,000,000/8 JT - i 2 E W 8 & 8 2 & B
REBELORPAASE AREAKAAEE
XN EBHAECZRHE T LRA
15,300,000/ 7t °

RERKARBETE RARAGEQR
BEGHEEARERN UBEZERARR
ABETEISZFE - EFTNTETHE
EIRE 2R E R A A - R R Alpha
Generatorg B BRI BER - EFL
BRI HEEREFFERELERE - K
EEARBERAIRRRHERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

20.INVENTORIES 20. %8
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
L e
FERT FHT
Finished goods BIPX 11 11

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no write-off of

inventories (2015: nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

RBE_ZT-—RFT+_A=+—HILFE
TEAMBFENMERRR (ZF—RF:
&) o

21. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 2. FEBEERE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—XE —ET—REF
FET FAT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REA LM ZBRAFES
at market value EmEEE 166,311 -
The fair values of these investments are determined with reference ZEREZ ARBEIZBHM TSR

to the quoted market bid prices on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, net realised gain on sale
of held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$1,954,000
(2015: nil) (Note 8) and net unrealised gain on change in fair value
of held-for-trading investments of approximately HK$1,528,000

(2015: nil) (Note 8) was recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EZ R EMERFE

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HK$'000
L e
FET FAET
Non-current JEENHA
Deposit for acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—ERB AR zZS
(Note (i) (HFEEG)) - 6,150
Deposit for purchase of a property, plant BEME BEERBEZ2ES
and equipment - 14
- 6,264
Current BN HA
Trade receivables (Note (ii)) B S eI sRIE (BEEG)) 11,779 10,860
Retention receivables (Note (iii)) FEURE & (B FEGii)) 8,197 -
Loan receivables (Note (iv)) FEUE R (M FEGY)) 74,557 -
Amounts due from customers JEWEF AL TENRIEA (M:23)
for contract work (Note 23) 355 -
Other deposits, prepayments and Htize FENRER
other receivables H b pE Uk SRR 8,870 3,952
Total current portion BIHAEL 42 %8 103,758 14,812
Total trade and other receivables BESREMEURIBLEE 103,758 21,076

Notes: B3 -

RZT—AF+=-A=+—A8" 3%nx
PEEBRTRBE-RHBARENZ
ReRE-—HEBARZEaTIRER
zime FHBHRHE343)

(i) At 31 December 2015, the deposit paid for acquisition of a (i)
subsidiary under non-current assets represents deposit paid for
the acquisition of a subsidiary, ACE Engineering, details of which

are set out in Note 34(a).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(if)

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 days (2015:

22. 8
MisE: (&)

HiEWRIE (2)

AEERTERSRFPZTHEENR

30 to 90 days) to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of trade 30290k (ZE—HF :30890K) °
receivables (net of accumulated impairment losses) by invoice date SIEWGIE (B 2ETRAERBE) RES
is as follows: HEEI D 2 REeHITAT -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —TET—hF
FHEx FHT
Current B B8 2,048 2,156
1 to 90 days 1290k 8,411 4,812
91 to 180 days 91E180K 353 3,798
Over 181 days 181 KA & 967 94
Trade receivables B 5 W RIE 11,779 10,860
In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations are HESREFIAN S BRBHEER

performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past history of making
payments when due and current liability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customers operate.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired constitute
about 88% (2015: 53%) of total trade receivables, and relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net
of accumulated impairment losses) by due date as at the end of

the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) (continued)

e B RRHE

2.EFREMEWRE &)
MidE: (%)

(if)

(%)

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RE —ET—hF

FHET FET

Neither past due nor impaired Ria B IR E 10,391 5,730
Less than 3 months past due wmHLD R =8 A 399 1,346
3 to 6 months past due wmEA=Z=XEA 105 3,780
Over 6 months past due B HA 7S B A LA E 884 4
1,388 5,130

Trade receivables 2 5 WA 11,779 10,860

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$1,388,000 (2015:
HK$5,130,000) which are past due as at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided any impairment loss. The Group

does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good repayment
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

RNEE 2B 5BV IAE S BIERR
HSHHE®E - ZIRMEEL 1,388,000
B (ZF— R F 5,130,000 L)
2 FEWGGRIE - T AN BN R AE 1A
BEBBRE AEETERZSE
BRIFHTMAERR -

BB HERREZ BURFREAREE
ETENRCERIFZBIEFAR-
REBEBELR EEERARLESLE
AREERELRERBIREEER
EVEEAEE ARFEBRBER
(DK - CqEIl
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Retention receivables are derived from the Building Contract Works
Business and are interest-free and recoverable at the end of the
retention period of individual construction contracts ranging from

3 months to 1 year.

Loan receivables represent outstanding principals and interest
receivables arising from the Money Lending Business of the Group.
All of the loan receivables are entered with contractual maturity
within 12 months. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its loan receivables in order to minimise credit risk by reviewing the

borrowers’ financial positions.

The loan receivables are interest-bearing at rates mutually agreed
between the contracting parties, ranging from 6% to 8% per
annum. All of the loan receivables were unsecured as at 31
December 2016.

Loan receivables were neither past due nor impaired at 31
December 2016.

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM CUSTOMERS FOR
CONTRACT WORK

2.EFREMEWRE &)
MidE: (%)

(iii)

(iv)

ERRESTRERBTARTREERIL
REBRNEREAHRER (N TF=
BAZE—)KRA]FUmE -

R ERIE AR B RS R ESE 2 R ME
BRAeREEFE -MERKERZA
WEEBRERI2ER R REBBNE
BEBERA 2B G EHE
WE R Z B ES 1R EE R B

=xE-

e ERTyIRE H77 BERHE <M K&t
B EMENF6%E8% - R T — RN
FT-HA=+—HA MBEREEZRAR
AR

R-ZE—RNE+-_A=+—8 EBKE
SREE AR B HR IR R E

23. B EFEHNIRIMEA

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —E—hF
FHET FET
Contracts in progress at the end of the WEWMAEREHN
reporting period
Contract costs incurred plus recognised EEWE LA IS R F
profit less recognised loss BB HERE B 26,298 -
Less: Progress billings R AR (25,943) -
355 -
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HBEENDTA:
Amounts due from customers for EHEFPELHIIRRIA
contracts work (Note 22) (FfF7E22) 355 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

25.

e B RRHE

0 RERBEEEY

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—EB-XEF —E—RF

FET FAET

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERE 30,479 184,235

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances and cash held
by the Group and short-term bank deposits with maturity of three
months or less. The bank balances carry interest at market rates
which range from 0.01% to 0.25% (2015: 0.01% to 0.25%) per

annum.

There were no short-term bank deposits as at 31 December 2016

and 2015.

RekAeSEVEREAKRERE 2RIT
EHRERS URHRA=ZMEAKNUTZ
EHERITER - RITERETSFEREN
TFOO0IEE02SE(ZZE—HF :001EE
0.25 )&t B e

RZE—RFER-_E—RAF+-_A=+—
B WEEAEHETER-

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. B 5 R E B FRRIE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XRF —E-RHF
FHERT FET
Trade payables 2 5N IR 11,553 8,067
Retention payables JERHR E & 4,280 =
Accruals and other payables JFE&T SR K H A FE A 5K IE 5,227 13,175
Amounts due to related parties JETREE A T FUB 9,200 9,200
30,260 30,442

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, included in amounts due to
related parties are an amount due to Titron Group Holdings Limited
(“TGHL") in the amount of approximately HK$1,700,000 and the
cash consideration of HK$7,500,000 payable to the Vendors of
Titron Group (as defined and detailed in the Company's circular
dated 12 August 2011) arising from the acquisition of Titron Group
in 2011.

RZE-—RERZE-—RAFT+A=+—
B EMBEEATRESE—ZEMTitron
Group Holdings Limited ([TGHL ] ) Z X8
491,700,000 T R — T ——FUEBRIE
B (ERRFBRAARAPA=Z ——
FNATZHZBR)EEXZENEES
EE 5 2 HR&MRE7,500,000/8 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

TGHL was one of the Vendors in the acquisition of Titron Group in
2011. Titron Group is principally engaged in the Medical Devices
Business and the Plastic Moulding Business. Mr. Yip Wai Lun,
Alvin, a shareholder and the Chairman and Managing Director of
the Company as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, is one of the

beneficial owners of TGHL.
The amounts due to related parties as at 31 December 2016 and

2015 were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

5. EFREMENSRE &)

TGHLAZZ ——FHRHEEREE 2 Hph—
MNEH EREBEFENRETBRIEERR
BREAXE R_T—R"FR-F—F
F+ZA=+—8 EE&RkEE (K2AR
EREFRESHICE)BTGHL, —RE
mHAEA

%

TE-RENE-RF+-_A=1—
B EMEEATRBEAERT 2ENE

REEHR BFRNKREAREXZAHE

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000

—E—-RE —E—hF

FET FET

Within 3 months =@mAR 10,578 7,946
Over 3 months but within 6 months BE=EABERNEAR 493 109
Over 6 months iBm IS E A 482 12
11,553 8,067

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30-90 days

(2015: 30-90 days).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

26. DEFERRED TAX [ 3E Bi T8

RZE—RNERTE—RF+_A=1+—
H - REEWEREMEETRIBEE - BELER
EHEBE FBREENT

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any
deferred tax assets. The details and movement of deferred tax

liabilities are as follows:

Fair value
Accelerated adjustment
tax on intangible
depreciation assets Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREEZ
i 32k B 0 AT B DREEHAE £k
FHT FHT FHET
At 1 January 2015 WZE—RF—HA—H - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary g SN
(Note 34(b)) (M 5E34(b)) - 119 119
Charged to profit or loss Mk BaFEEZE (1)
for the year (Note 11) 235 - 235
At 31 December 2015 and M_ZE—h%F
at 1 January 2016 ZA=+—HkK
ZE-RF—HA— 235 119 354
Acquisition of a subsidiary W b — FE B /B8 2 &
(Note 34(a)) (KF7E34(a)) - 1,287 1,287
Credited to profit or loss FAFEEZ (M)
for the year (Note 11) (72) (413) (485)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A A
(Notes 36(a)&(c)) (H3E36(a) K () (163) (119) (282)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R
+ZR= - 874 874
ERERERAH

LU
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. ?Eﬁﬁlﬁ (%)

The details and movement of deferred tax asset are as follows:

BXERBEEZFBERESHNT

Tax
Losses
HK$'000
HEEHE
FET

At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015 and RZT—RF—A—8 —ZF—1#F
1 January 2016 TZA=+—BARZZE-—XRE—-H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34(a)) U g — [ BT 8 2 B) (P 3E34(a)) 69
Charged to profit or loss for the year (Note 11) M aFEBZ (M:E11) (69)

At 31 December 2016 RZE—XR"F+=-A=+—8H -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$257,794,000 (2015: HK$257,797,000). No
deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses have been recognised
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, as management consider it is
unlikely that future taxable profits against which the losses can be
utilised will be available in the foreseeable future with certainty in

the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

Tax losses of approximately HK$63,000 (2015: HK$63,000)
attributable to certain subsidiary in the PRC have an expiry
period of five years. The remaining tax losses of approximately
HK$257,731,000 (2015: HK$257,734,000) will not expire under

current tax legislation.
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RBEBRR XEB s RPABEEE
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RAREGARB AR R E BT AA 8
BEARRERTGF T HEAEE &
RZE—RNFR-_ZT—REF+-A=+—
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& T A B8 A &) FE 45 % 18 &5 18 963,000
BT (ZE—AF:63,0008T)2E
MM ARAE - BERTHE SR THE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=-F=1+—HILFE

Notes:

(a) Save as disclosed in the Company's circular dated 31 March

2015 in respect of a proposed capital reorganisation (“Capital

Reorganisation”) which was approved by the shareholders of

the Company (“Shareholders”) in a special general meeting of

the Company on 27 April 2015, the Capital Reorganisation has

become effective on 28 April 2015 as detailed below.

B 5

27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. A
Number
of shares Amount
Notes HK$'000
ROEE -0
B 3% FET
Authorised: EE
Balance as at 31 December 2015 and RZE—RAF+-A=+—HK
31 December 2016 —E-RE+ZA=+—BZ
iR 40,000,000,000 400,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Balance as at 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—A—B2z2#&&% 1,532,431,606 15,324
Share consolidation of every five ZESREREMEOEITL
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each  f& 19 & #F & 1B E (H0.05% 7T
into one consolidated share of par ZEHRMDETZRG G G
value HK$0.05 each; and reduction R & & HHi%{H 2 EEH
in par value of each consolidated 0.058 JLHIK £0.0178 7T
share from HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 (a) (1,225,945,285) (12,259)
Issue of shares on 24 July 2015 RZTE—RAFLtAZ+HEA
Exelien) (b) 61,200,000 612
Issue of shares on 30 November 2015 R=ZZT—HF+—A=+H
TITHRAD (© 874,100,000 8,741
Balance as at 31 December 2015 and RZ-ZT—HAF+-A=+—HRK
1 January 2016 —E-RE-A-RBZH&EH 1,241,786,321 12,418
Open offer on 17 March 2016 RZE—R"F=A++tH
NGRS (d) 620,893,160 6,209
Balance as at 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"F+ZA=+—HZ
g 1,862,679,481 18,627

BAXRHEMA-_ZT-—AF=A
=+t HAFBEZRAEA([RA
Bl BEARBABRR(TERRDR=
E-AFNA-TEARTZART
PR RIR & LHE) 2Bk R
ENBRAEHAER T —HFNA
ZHNBERCFERT

EFRERERQA
2016 3|
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(i) every five existing shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one

consolidated share of HK$0.05 each;

(i)  the issued share capital was reduced by cancelling of
HK$0.04 of the paid-up capital on each issued consolidated
share so that the par value of each issued consolidated share
be reduced from HK$0.05 to HK$0.01, and resulted in share
capital being reduced by HK$12,259,000;

(iii) the credits arising from the share capital account of
the Company of HK$12,259,000 was transferred to the

accumulated losses of the Company.

On 24 July 2015, 61,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were placed at a price of HK$0.328 per placing share, according
to a placing agreement under general mandate signed on 14
July 2015 (“GM Placing Agreement”). The closing price was
HK$0.400 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date
of the GM Placing Agreement. A share premium of approximately
HK$19,462,000 was credited to share premium account. The
net proceeds of approximately HK$19,311,000, after deducting
commission and placing expenses of approximately HK$763,000
were intended to be utilised as to (i) general working capital of
the Group; and (i) Money Lending Business as set out in the
announcement dated 17 December 2015 regarding the change in

use of proceeds. The net proceeds had been utilized as intended.
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27 . A& (=)

MisE: (4&)

(a)

(%)

(i) ARFBHETRATESAREK
E{E0.01BTTZIRA RN A 65
—REE0.058 T2 & HHILD

(i BRBEEGREEITAHRN 2
R AFE50.048 L H R B 1T
B BEFREBITEHRN
Z E{ER0.05F TR ZE0.01%
TC BEARANHEIR12,259,000/%

dl

iy ANRBBRAKRMESZ#R
12,259,00078 7T Jh 88 8 = 7K A A)
2 25tEiE .

R-ZFE—RAFLtA=-+WHE AAFA
RBR-_T—RAFtATMOBRE—
MR L2 BB ([—RMRIXER
Eal) MERALERRKH0.328F T2
{8 1% B %61,200,0000% & A% E {E0.01
B2 LB - R —RIRERES 1B
EEHEBMIAABRKTERER
0.4007 7T ° #919,462,0007% T 2 i 15
HEDFARNDEER - EHNKREE R
il & B A 49763,000/8 L% > A A
R RIBERRZEHR _T—F
F+ZAT+ERABZAEHE
15 FRIBF B 4919,311,00078 JC it A 1E
WAEEz—REEESD  RINVHMESE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=-F=1+—HILFE

27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes. (continued)

(@]

On 30 November 2015, 874,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were placed at a price of HK$0.23 per placing share (“SM
Placing”), according to a placing agreement under specific
mandate signed on 14 July 2015 (“SM Placing Agreement”) and
the supplemental agreement to the SM Placing Agreement signed
on 31 August 2015 (“Supplemental SM Placing Agreement”).
The closing price was HK$0.290 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on the date of the Supplemental SM Placing
Agreement. A share premium of approximately HK$192,302,000
was credited to share premium account. The net proceeds of
approximately HK$194,609,000 after deducting commission and
placing expenses of approximately HK$6,434,000 were intended
to be utilised as to (i) general working capital of ACE Engineering;
(i) funding the subscription price for the subscription of 14%
equity interest in Alpha Generator; (iii) funding the remaining
consideration of the acquisition of Bonus First Group Limited
and purchasing an office in Hong Kong; (iv) expansion of Money
Lending Business and/or potential acquisitions of equity interests in
companies that are principally engaged in money lending business
as and when opportunity arises; and (v) general working capital of
the Group as set out in the announcements dated 11 April 2016,
18 April 2016 and 12 July 2016 regarding the change in use of

proceeds. The net proceeds had been utilized as intended.

BT

(@]

27 . A& (=)

(%&)

RZE—RAF+—A=+H K27
ERR-_ZE—AFtA+THMNARE
FERBEIT L 2BEE B ([FE&R
EREHSE) MR =_T—AFN\A
=S+ —HIUZHERERERHEZ
wrah® ((HasEREREHHE])
LA IR R & B8 150238 L 2 B AL &
874,100,000/ & X E H0.01/8 7T 2
LTk ((HERERESE]) - R’H
AR 70 R TE IR AR B S 1 5 A BRAEEE RS
Fft FiT i 2 W 7 {8 /5 8 120.2907%8 7T -
#9192,302,000/ 7T 2 i& 17 )i (B B &t
AR EER - ENRAe REEEE
FA #6,434,000% 7L1% « FR13 5K 1B 5 58
#9194,609,0007% JT #t A 1E ()& i T
Bz—HR2E8E%: ()WRHEAlIpha
GeneratorZ 14% & 2 REEIRHE
& (INVKBANTEEAERRAAZHT
RERABE —HEUREBEZRAE
REES (WHEBREEB R R
BEe RS NEETERERESE
BREIZBEAER  RWAEE —RE
BES (RwBHPA-T— X~ FWA
+—B ZE—-XFEA+N\BE=ZF
—RNFLtA+-_BEEEEMBRE
gz DERE) - MERIBFREE R
HERBEA-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

27.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes. (continued)

(d)

On 17 March 2016, 620,893,160 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a subscription price of HK$0.13 per offer
share on the basis of one offer share for every two shares in
issue held on the record date (“Open Offer”), which was fully
underwritten according to an underwriting agreement dated 20
January 2016. The subscription price of HK$0.13 per offer share
represented a discount of approximately 65.33% to the closing
price of HK$0.375 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on
16 March 2016, being the business day immediately preceding the
date of allotment and issuance of offer shares. A share premium
of approximately HK$74,507,000 was credited to share premium
account. The net proceeds of approximately HK$77,481,000 after
deducting shares issue expenses paid in relation to the Open Offer
of approximately HK$3,235,000 were intended to be utilized as to
develop and operate the Group’s Money Lending Business. The net

proceeds had been utilized as intended.

28. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF

Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes

Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined

contribution retirement plan administered by independent trustees.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each

required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’

relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of

HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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Mz (&)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC participate in certain
government retirement benefit schemes (“Schemes”) whereby
the subsidiaries are required to contribute to the Schemes to fund
the retirement benefits of their eligible employees. Contributions
made to the Schemes are calculated based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the relevant
requirements in the PRC. The relevant authorities of the PRC are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Schemes is to pay the ongoing required contribution under the

Schemes.

During the year, the Group made retirement benefits scheme
contributions totalling approximately HK$426,000 (2015:
HK$369,000) (Note 10) for continuing operations. At the end of the

reporting period, there are no forfeited contributions.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 30 June 2015, the Company adopted a share option scheme
("2015 Share Option Scheme”), which was approved by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held

on the same date.

The purpose of the 2015 Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant share options to the eligible participants as

incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

28.

29.

EBEERKERN 2

RIBPEABEEE LR AEEETEZ
MEAR2EETBRTRKENE ([
HitE)) Bt MWEBRARARZEE
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& ERT BRI 2 R TR I BARRE AR E
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=
N
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R FIET BIE 3 A ££49426,000087C (= F
—F 4 :369,000/70) (FIFE10) c RIS
HASR - 1R A A AT 4R MR AL 3K

BRESTE
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

According to the 2015 Share Option Scheme, the board of Directors
(the “Board”) may grant share options to the eligible participants
as defined in the 2015 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for such
number of shares as the Board may determine. Share options
granted should be accepted within 28 days from the date of the
letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the share options, the grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for
the grant. Subject to the terms of the 2015 Share Option Scheme
and all applicable laws, the Board has the power to determine the

period within which payments or calls must or may be made.

The exercise price of share options shall be determined by the
Board, which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business day;
(ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2015 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of approval and adoption of the 2015 Share
Option Scheme provided that the Company may at any time seek
approval from the Shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval by the Shareholders in

general meeting where such limit is refreshed.

Share options previously granted under any share option schemes
of the Company (including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
in accordance with such schemes or exercised options) will not be

counted for the purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The total number of shares issued and may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the share options granted under the 2015 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the Shareholders in general meeting at
which the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained
from voting. Share options granted to substantial Shareholders
or Independent Non-executive Directors or any of their respective
associates in any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the
Company'’s issued share capital on the date of grant and with a
value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the

Shareholders.

The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that a share option must
be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
2015 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of ten

years and will expire at the close of business on 29 June 2025.

No options were granted during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015 or outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and 2015

under the 2015 Share Options Scheme since its adoption.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

30. KRB 2 B AR R &R

COMPANY
2016 2015
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
e L —®-5%
B 5 FET FAT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AT ENGIPE - 1 62,001
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b pE W 5KIB 941 724
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NGIE ] 289,169 44,521
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBEEEED 10,557 144,907
300,667 190,152
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H b FE T FRIE 2,793 6,755
Net current assets REBEERE 297,874 183,397
Net assets EEFE 297,875 245,398
EQUITY =
Share capital g A 27 18,627 12,418
Reserves i 31 279,248 232,980
Total equity ERBE 297,875 245,398

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

29 March 2017.

On behalf of the Board

I Jo PR T B o

REEEE

ER-ZZTE—tF=-AZt+NAEEFSHI

Zhang Hengxin Peng Shiyuan

RTH TR
Director Director
EF EF

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

31.RESERVES — COMPANY 31. @ E — &2 F
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note)
R RE B E At &8 Bt
FHT FHT FHT FHT
(HaE)
As at 1 January 2015 R-_Z—RF—HA—H 126,803 1 (90,567) 36,237
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBEBEREEKALE
income for the year - - (20,353) (20,353)
Capital reorganisation (Note 27(a)) & A& 4 (MiF27(a)) - - 12,259 12,259
Equity-settled share-based BagERNHFPAINRS
transactions
— lapse of options granted to ~-ETEEZHEREAY
employees - (1 1 -
Reversal of overprovision of BE - —NERERMM
the share issue expenses for BIIROAZ 2 BERTE
2014 placing of shares 270 - - 270

Net proceeds from issue of shares — RBLE & 2 1TM 2 PTG FRIE
)

upon placings (Notes 27(b)&(c)) a8 (fE27(0) K () 204,567 - - 204,567
As at 31 December 2015 and RZZE-—hAF+-A=1+—H
1 January 2016 kZZE-RF—HF—H 331,640 - (98,660) 232,980
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBEBEREEKALE
income for the year - - (25,004) (25,004)
Net proceeds from open offer RABEZENEFE
(Note 27(d)) (F&F27(d)) 71,272 - - 71,272
As at 31 December 2016 R-E-RE
+ZBA=+-—-H 402,912 - (123,664) 279,248
Note: The application of share premium account is governed by Mizr: ERARGEERI-NWN\—FERE
Section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. NENEELGERE -
EREZERERAR

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital

32.AMBAR 2R

ARAEBHBATZHFEMT -

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

HEARDARE I AL 3L 3 2 BRTRBRRE AARAEEREE AL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hig B
ACE Engineering Limited Hong Kong 5,000,000 ordinary - 100% Engaged in building
shares totalling construction, building
HK$15,255,000 maintenance and
improvement works,
project management,
renovation and
decoration works in
Hong Kong
ZETRERAR P & #£15,255,000/ 7.2 REBREETRE B
38 5,000,0008% FRERNETIR &
BERE REREHT
2
AMCO United Management Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 services to the Group
ERERRBAERRA Ek ERIBTZERRIR MAZEREERRY
Best Reward Global Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
EERKARLA ERERES BREEIET,ERR REER
b3
Constant Gross Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
FEaBRAA ABELEHS BREEIZETZ REZKR
TRRIR

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - F—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Issued and paid-up
share capital

32.RAMBARI 2R (&)

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

HEDEER T A 3L 3t B BERITRMARRE ARRAEEREEAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B M
Dynamic Time Global Limited* BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
Dynamic Time Global Limited* EBERZHE BREBEIZETL RE R
EREBRIR
Energy Best Investments Limited BV 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
Energy Best Investments Limited ~ EBRZHS BREEIEZTL REER
ERRR
Eternity Riches Limited* BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
REBRAR* ERELHS FREEIZETL REZR
TR
Grace Champ Investment Limited  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100% Engaged in the business
HK$1 of securities investment
KBREBRAT B aHIBETZERRIK REZHREXED
High Aim Corporation Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of management
HK$1 services to the Group
EHERAA 0 ARIB T ERRIR MASBEREERRYE
JS Finance Limited* Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of money
HK$1 lending
BREMBARAA 0 AR IBTzERRIR REHE R
Max Abundant Limited* BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each
Max Abundant Limited* EBERAHS SREBEIZETL REER
TERIR
ERERERAR

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

32.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

Place of incorporation

Issued and paid-up
share capital

Percentage of equity interest
attributable to the Company

32.RAMBARI 2R (&)

Principal activities

HEDEER T A 3L 3t B BERITRMARRE ARRAEEREEAL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B M

Paragon Communications Limited  Hong Kong 1 ordinary share totalling - 100%  Provision of public
HK$1 relations services

BRENERAA 0 AHRIB T ERRIR REDABRRS

Praiseful Moment Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 100% - Investment holding
each

IBEBR AR ERELHS BREEIZETL REZR
TR

Titron Industries Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary share - 100% Sale of plastic moulding
totalling HK$1,000 products

ERIERRLF B & #1,0008 T2 HEERBEAER
EimMR1,0008

Titron International Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary share - 100% Sale of medical devices
totalling HK$1,000 products

BERREBR AR B A #£1,00087T2 HEBRREER
E3mMR1,0000

Titron Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary share - 100%  Sale of plastic moulding
totalling HK$1,000 products

EREARCERRAF 0 H#£1,00087T2 HEEBRAER
L3k 1,0008%

Titron Precision Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary share - 100% Investment holding
totalling HK$1,000

EREEERAF 0 A #£1,00087T2 REZR
Lk 1,0008%

Unicorn Elite International Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
US$1 each

GEERERAF ERELHE BREEIZETL REZR
EBR50,0008%

3 These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 31

December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - F—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2016 which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the Group's results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
result in

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,

particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of

the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the Group had the following

transactions with related parties at agreed terms.

32.

33.

RMBAT 2R (&)

ERINER—_F-A"F+_A=+—HE
ERRTEFELARELAFERELEK
AEBEEFEEANNZARBMER
Al -BERR BILEMHMBARZFE
REHRFREBRITE

FR BEMBRARBTEAEBES-

BEALRS

(Q) BRMBREREMBHOAFER T
RaEss REBEREEATRBTE

2016 2015
HKS$'000 HK$'000
S ol —F-HF
TR Tt

ENT-HABAERRZ
R & (fat)

Service fee paid to a related

company (Note)

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Atlas Medical Limited
("Atlas”), a related company voluntarily waived its entitlement
to a service fee of HK$2,400,000 (2015: HK$2,400,000). Mr. Yip
Wai Lun, Alvin, a Shareholder and the Managing Director and
Chairman of the Company during the year ended 31 December

2016 is one of the beneficial owners of Atlas.

Mt -
EZE-R"FE+ZA=+—8B1L
B — M & DAl Atlas Medical
Limited ([Atlas |) B F8 ik 2 U B AR
% #2,400,0008 L (ZE—HF:
2,400,000 L) 2 M -REBZE_T
—ARETZA=T—HLEFE KQF
BREREELEERFEFEERTER
AtlasER —HZERBEB A

34
F
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZFE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(a) (continued)

Note. (continued)

The service fee is associated with the acquisition of the Titron
Group in 2011 as mentioned in Note 25 for business development
services provided by Atlas. A Performance Incentive Agreement
was entered into by Atlas and the Company on 4 March 2011 (as
amended and restated on 27 July 2011). In accordance with the
Performance Incentive Agreement, Atlas will be paid a monthly fee
of HK$200,000 and entitled to receive a performance bonus equal
to 30% of excess of the pro forma combined profit before tax of
Titron Group over HK$10 million for each of the six financial years
ended 31 December up to 31 December 2016. No performance
bonus and performance share was earned or payable for the year
ended 31 December 2016 or 2015. Details of the Performance
Incentive Agreement were set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 January 2011, 21 June 2011 and 27 July 2011
and the circular of the Company dated 12 August 2011.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiary was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or

at any time during the year.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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at) o RIR R IR R W 0 AtlasiS X A
HA#200,0008 T REXBEES (HER
EREEEBE_T—A~"FT+A=1+—
HEREFRFESFZEEZEEHR
Tt B FIJ#B 110,000,000 02 £ EE 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Compensation of key management

personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key

BEEATRF (&)
(b) TEEEB AE ZHM

EERHEMIZERERERFAZ

management during the year was as follows: HEN
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XRE —ET-RF
FERT FET

Salaries and short-term employee e RkEEEESRT

benefits 6,225 6,101
Post-employment benefits B ERT 117 126
6,342 6,227

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Business combination — ACE Engineering

On 5 January 2016, Best Reward Global Limited (“Best
Reward”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
completed the acquisition of ACE Engineering pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement dated 14 September
2015 entered into between Best Reward as the purchaser
and two individuals as vendors, each being an independent
third party, to acquire 100% of the issued share capital
of ACE Engineering at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$20,500,000. ACE Engineering is principally engaged in the

Building Contract Works Business in Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement, a deposit of
HK$6,150,000 (Note 22) was paid to the vendors on 14
September 2015.

34. W BB HI B 2 F
(a) ¥BE—Z@IRE

RZE—RF—ARAH ARAIEE
MEBAREERRERAR ([EE])
EREBEEE (FAEHF)ERAEA
(EREH &R RBIE=RH)F
VHBHA-ZT-—RAFAATEAN
B E W= (A RNAH #LA20,500,000
BLzBEReRERELTEIEZS
BEBHTRA) TR ERB TR &
BIRTERFAREEFAHIRE
E

REEEHZE EXR_ZE—HFNA

TR MEH X {F1&£6,150,0007% T
(FFzE22) °

-
"~ 72016 £ 185
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 EMIE AT (&)
(a) Business combination - ACE Engineering () ¥EBEH—ZBIRE (&)
(continued)
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of the RUCEE B H - B A B IRE AT 38R
acquiree as at the date of acquisition were as follows: BEREAZEBGESMHOT
HK$'000
FET
Net assets acquired: B & ERE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ME B KA (MFE15) 141
Intangible assets — Contractor registrations | A E—AEE M (ME17)

(Note 17) 5,016
Intangible assets — Contracts backlog (Note 17) BEEBE-—RTHELK (MFE17) 2,786
Deferred tax asset (Note 26) RERIBE E (H5E26) 69
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H th fE YR IE 17,544
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBY 3,974
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMENFKIA (11,738)
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE (6,201)
Deferred tax liability recognised AABEFAEREERIANELEHEARE

upon fair value adjustment (HMizE26)

(Note 26) (1,287)

10,304
Cash consideration RERE 20,500
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired BB EEFECAAEBE (10,304)
Goodwill (Note 16) EE (MEEe) 10,196
HK$’000
FHET

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEREEZRESRE FH:
Cash consideration paid 2ERNREENKE 20,500
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired WKE R RIS EEY (3,974)
Less: Deposit paid (Note 22) B BEREe (MEE22) (6,150)
10,376
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_—F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Business combination — ACE Engineering

(continued)

The goodwill of approximately HK$10,196,000 was
attributable to the Building Contract Works Business unit
acquired and the benefit of synergies expected to arise after
the Group’s acquisition. The Directors believe that additional
business opportunities may arise to the Group as a result of
the acquisition of ACE Engineering, and this will diversify the

source of income of the Group.

Since the acquisition date, ACE Engineering has contributed
revenue of approximately HK$53,650,000 and a profit after
income tax of approximately HK$1,110,000 to the Group
(excluding the amortisation of intangible asset). If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2016, consolidated
revenue and consolidated loss after income tax of the Group
from continuing operations for the year ended 31 December
2016 would have been approximately HK$98,879,000 and
HK$18,030,000 respectively.

Acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$1,548,000 have
been charged to administrative expenses in the profit or loss

for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

34 BB 2~ R ()
(a) ¥ —ZTHIE &)

P2 4910,196,0007% 7T 57 B 1A BT Uk i
LEFEBIREBSEAM BEHRA
CEERBREEELHRAAL -ESR
B WETaTRE AEEAELSE
SN - AN E HTIE AR ©

BRERHRE THIREARER
H #1#953,650,00078 7T 2 WA KBk AT
SR %% F 41,110,000 T (8
REPEESRY WEEFEER
ZE-RF-A—HELE FEEE
E-T—RFE+_A=+—HILFEE
REARBEREEB ZGRAEBART
BREGREZEAEEERES AL
98,879,000 JT 118,030,000 JT °

Uz B #E B AR 7S 491,548,00098 7T B A
HE-Z-—REER-FT—HF+=A
=T —BLEFEZEZET ZITERHA
XA o

EFRERERQA
2016 3|
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

34 BB 2~ R ()
(b) %34 6f— Al X T2 M

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Business combination — Zeed Asia

On 19 November 2015, Constant Gross Limited (“Constant RZE—RAF+—A+AB KQF
Gross”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered 2EMBRARR=BRAR ([Ez=])
into an agreement with an independent third party to purchase BBV E=FF M EABERRE

L

Mz 2BWBBETRARRERZHBKRR
B3 43R £ K (& /33,200,000 7T -
MBEMERBEEENEZRRT B
ZEBTR-BIRTMEBREERM
BB R o

100% of the issued share capital of and shareholder’s loan to
Zeed Asia at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$3,200,000
and the completion of the acquisition took place on the same
date immediately after signing of the agreement. Zeed Asia
is principally engaged in provision of information technology

services.

RUCEE B H - 5 i A B IRE AT 38R
BERDAERGESALT

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed of the

acquiree as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

HK$'000
FHT
Net assets acquired: Fir 45 B8 & B2 VFH(E
Property, plant and equipment ME B N (MEE15)

(Note 15) 419
Intangible asset (Note 17) ML EE (WHiE17) 2,202
Other deposits and prepayments Hihize KRB K 152
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 6
Other payables H fth & - 5108 (417)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised upon AABEABREEINETEHEAE

fair value adjustment (Note 26) (BfsE26) (119)
Shareholder’s loan IR R E (4,792)

(2,549)

Shareholder's loan acquired as part of the Fr R R ERER I » W E
acquisition 4,792
2,243
Cash consideration RERE 3,200
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired WM EESFECAAEBE (2,243)
Goodwill (Note 16) & (faE16) 957
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - F—ANF+-F=1+—HILFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34 EMIE AT (&)
(b) Business combination — Zeed Asia (continued) (b) 2 &6t—RIXEM &)

HK$'000

FHET

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: W FTE £ 23R & mH 5

Cash consideration paid 2R NKE 3,200

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired WRE R RIBEEEY (6)

3,194

The goodwill of approximately HK$957,000 was attributable to
the provision of information technology services business unit
acquired and the benefit of synergies expected to arise after
the Group’s acquisition. The Directors believe that additional
business opportunities may arise to the Group as a result of
the acquisition of Zeed Asia, and this will diversify the source

of income and enhance the future development of the Group.

#1957,00078 7T 2 7 & 57 J& 10 AT W
Z R B MBI BRS R B B TR
RAKEUBREELHRARGE &
FRA - WEBEIRGME  AEERE
ERINE - AR E IR A KR
R EAR LB 2 RRER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Acquisition of asset through acquisition of a

subsidiary

On 6 October 2015, the Company entered into the sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party,
GET Holdings Limited (a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability, the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 8100)) to acquire 100% of the issued
share capital of Bonus First Group Limited (“Bonus First”)
at an aggregate cash consideration of HK$62,000,000.
The acquisition-related direct costs were approximately
HK$555,000. The principal business of Bonus First is
investment holding and its principal asset is a commercial
property located at Office 503 (also known as Unit 503), 5th
Floor, Wing On House, No. 71 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong (the “Property”), which was leased to and occupied
as an office by an independent third party up to the end of
February 2016. The acquisition has been accounted for as an
acquisition of an asset and liabilities of Bonus First, as Bonus
First has no operation or other businesses other than passively
receiving rental income from the Property. As such this does
not constitute a business and accordingly the acquisition of
Bonus First has not been treated as a business combination
for accounting purposes. The Directors considered that the
acquisition of Bonus First enabled the Group to purchase the
Property which the Group intends to self-use as its office
premises upon termination of the existing lease. Acquisition of

Bonus First was completed on 29 December 2015.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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34 BB B 2 R ()
(c) EBWEHBATNKBEE

RZZT—AF+ANA AARHEE
VE=ZFESERBRAT (—HER
MERSAMRIERREREGFE
ZHERAE - ERG P BT AI R
EH (B HRER:8100) )T B & #
ZOAWERNTEEAERQA ([F
T2 2BEETRAE BRSRE
7$62,000,0007% 7T - W % B 5 185 B X
ZN49555,0008 T Mtz EE XK R
BEEREREFZEERNNEARE
B 7190k RSB RESES03H A
= (TMER503E ) ZEEME ([ZY
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HEEAERAZEEEZE S —AF=
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mEM BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE ‘
34. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 34.WEBMTE AT (&)
(c) Acquisition of asset through acquisition of a (c) ZBNEHNBATIWBEE
subsidiary (continued) (%)
The net assets acquired of Bonus First as at the date of RUE BB TR T B E R ER
acquisition were as follows: g
HK$'000
FHT
Net assets acquired: Fir 45 B8 & B2 FH(E
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y% BE M E (MFE15) 62,590
Other deposit and other receivables H R & M B W 1A 179
Other payables H fth & < 5RIE (214)
62,555
HK$'000
FHT
Total consideration satisfied by: AT 75 B B AE
Cash consideration HeRE 62,000
Acquisition-related direct costs e B B B 4B R R R 555
62,555
HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEA 2R &R LT
Cash consideration paid ENBRESKE 62,555
ERERERDH
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—ZE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

35. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 28 June 2016, Unicorn Elite International Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of its entire equity interests
in AMCO HR Solutions Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company principally engaged in the HR Business, for an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$100,000. The disposal was completed on

the same date.

The loss for the period from 1 January 2016 to 28 June 2016
and for the year ended 31 December 2015 from the discontinued

operation is analysed as follows:

5.0 R IERE K

3

/)

RZZE—XEXNAZ+N\B KAR2EM
BRRGHERERARE—ZBIE=
FE N BEALEERARA 2 EMNB R
RERESREARAR (FZREAN
BIR¥ER) 2 2 2Bk - #2{8/3100,000
Ao - HEFHERRAATK -

A-E-AF-A—BERZE-F-AFA
RZ+ N\BHEEBE-_Z—AF+=A
ST—BLEFE BRIELEEBZER
ST

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-RE —ET—hF

FET FAT

Revenue A 1,641 507

Cost of services AR 7% AKX AR (1,797) (990)

Gross loss FiE (156) (483)

Other income H o U 2 10 -

Distribution costs 2l =N (12) (25)

Administrative expenses THHAX (443) (996)

Loss before income tax KrFTIS T AT 1B (601) (1,504)

Income tax credit FriSfiiK & = -

Loss after income tax BRATSRIZE1E (601) (1,504)

Gain on disposal of discontinued operation & B & |F4& & %7 2 Iz 222 -
Loss for the period/year from B/ FABKRIEEEER BB

discontinued operation (379) (1,504)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ - F—ANF+-F=1+—HILFE

35. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 5.8 RIEREXER =)
The cash flows for the period from 1 January 2016 to 28 June 2016 BEZZ-—R"F-HA-BAEBE_Z-—X FAX
and for the year ended 31 December 2015 from the discontinued AZ+N\BEHEEEE T -—HF+=A
operation is analysed as below: =t-HBFE BREKEEBZHER
ESMWT:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —E-hEF
FTERT FET
Net cash (outflows)/inflows from KEFHzRE CGRE)
operating activities mAERE (302) 662
Net cash outflows from investing activities 1% & & &) 2 3 & 155 (2) (172)
Total cash (outflows)/inflows Be Rl FmALE (304) 490
Loss for the period/year from the discontinued operation includes REBRIEEEEBZH FREBRE
the following: AT &8 -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —ET—hF
FTER FET
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEMRZETE
equipment 16 26
Auditors’ remuneration ZERN & - 35
ERERERAR

-
2016 F ;] 193
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

35. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) . ERUEREER »)

The net liabilities of the discontinued operation at the date of

disposal were as follows:

RHEERH CRIEREXBZAEFE
e

HK$'000
FHT

Net liabilities disposed of: FFEEzaEFE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) M BRE R ERE (MFE15) 93
Trade and other receivables g 5 I B fth fE YR IE 600
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 187
Trade and other payables B 5 I H i fE 1~ ;B (282)
Amount due to a shareholder JE— R IR FKIA (720)
(122)
Cash consideration ReRE 100
Net liabilities disposed of FrtEraEFeE 122
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEDRIEEEELZ Wa 222

An analysis of the net cash outflow arising from disposal of the

discontinued operation is as follows:

HECRIEREXEBELZR S RHIFHE
DT

HK$'000

FHT

Cash consideration received BB RE 100

Cash and bank balances disposed of FTHE 2 Re RIRTTARH (187)
Net cash outflow arising from disposal of HEERIECEEBEEA RS RL T8

discontinued operation (87)

For the purpose of presenting discontinued operation, the
comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the related notes have been re-
presented as if the operation discontinued during the year had been

discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZ_-F—XFE+=F=1+—HILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEME A T

(a) Disposal of Zeed Asia (a) & RIXEM

On 31 March 2016, Constant Gross entered into an agreement

RZZE—REZA=+T—0 K%

Bl

with an independent third party to dispose of the entire equity —EZBIUB=FEILEALER
interest in Zeed Asia for an aggregate cash consideration of RoMzaEkE #ReRER
HK$6,200,000. The disposal was completed on the same date. 6,200,000/ T - HEFHEERRA AT
B o
HK$'000
F&T
Net assets disposed of: FRHEZEERE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) Y RE KRR (MEE15) 359
Goodwill (Note 16) EE (H5E16) 957
Intangible asset (Note 17) s EE (WHFE17) 2,584
Other deposits and prepayments Hihike RBHHIE 211
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEBY 5
Accruals and other payables JEETFRIA K H b FE < 5B (88)
Deferred tax liability (Note 26) REBIEEE (Ki5E26) (119)
Shareholder’s loan R E =K (7,861)
(3,952)
Shareholder's loan transferred EEZERREER 7,861
3,909
Cash consideration ReRE 6,200
Less: Net assets disposed of WFTEECEEFE (3,909)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary (Note 8) HENBERAR Z e (MEs) 2,291

An analysis of the net cash inflow arising from the disposal of HEARTEMEECHESRANFED
Zeed Asia is as follows: N
HK$'000
FAET
Cash consideration received BWRERE 6,200
Cash and bank balances disposed of & 2R e RIBTT4 (5)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary, L EM B R E 2 FTSRIE
net of cash disposed of EHRMEERE 6,195
ERERERAT

195
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZE_-ZE—ANF+-F=+—HIFE

36. HEMB AR (&)
(b) HEREZBR LT ([KXE])

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b) Disposal of Success Beauty Limited (“Success

Beauty”)

On 7 October 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, DX.com Holdings Limited (a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8086)) to dispose
of the entire equity interest in Success Beauty (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company with the sole asset being the
entire issued share capital of Ever Great Finance Limited (”Ever
Great"”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company principally
engaged in the Money Lending Business) (Success Beauty
and Ever Great collectively referred to as the “Success Beauty
Group”), for an aggregate cash consideration of approximately

HK$59,515,000. The disposal was completed on the same

RZE—ARF+AEH AAAHEH—
LB % = HDX.comiE B R A Al
(—HRHAEHsEMA L RRAE R
EFEERAT  HRR DR
BIFR 7T (ARH R 5 8086) )&
MHEALERE (KARAZEEWE
RNE EM—EERBENBARA
AI([BE]) (RRRIzE2EMBR
B FEREMEER) DD HE
TBRA) (KEREEGEAIKE
S@Ez2HRE REeRENR
59,515,000/ 7T o tH & F B E RN [FA B
TR

date.

HK$'000
FET

Net assets disposed of: FRHEZEERE:
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk EAMEWGRIA 48,469
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEY 10,046
58,515
Cash consideration HeRE 59,515
Less: Net assets disposed of W ECEEFE (58,515)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 8) HENBERAR Z e (MEs) 1,000

An analysis of the net cash inflow arising from the disposal of HEKNEEEEEZRERAFED

the Success Beauty Group is as follows: ManT
HK$'000
FET
Cash consideration received EURESNE 59,515
Cash and bank balances disposed of R EzRe RIBITHER (10,046)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries, LEM B RS TS RIE
net of cash disposed of EHRAEHERS 49,469
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMB AR (&)

(c) Disposal of Bonus First (c)

On 19 October 2016, the Company entered into an agreement
with an independent third party, Key Winner Investments
Limited (a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jun Yang Financial
Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 397)) to dispose of
the entire equity interest in Bonus First for an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$56,500,000. The disposal was completed
on 25 October 2016.

& R T

RZZE—-—RFETATAE XA
A B — BB LB = T Key Winner
Investments Limited ( — A B &
RESHTMKIZBERAT RAE
1% & miE R AR R A) (EARMD R B
FrER b (R RIE:397) )22
EMBARDTZBEABERN T2
2 Bt - 43R £ LB /856,500,000
B HEEHER T —X<F1+A
Zt+ARHAZK-

HK$'000
FHET

Net assets disposed of: FHEZEERE:
Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) ME B R (MFE15) 61,217
Other deposits and prepayments Hihze RBHHIE 22
Deferred tax liability (Note 26) RN IABE (M5E26) (163)
61,076
Cash consideration BRERE 56,500
Less: Net assets disposed of W FTHE 2 EEFE (61,076)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) HEMHMB AR ZEE (KEs) (4,576)

An analysis of the net cash inflow arising from the disposal of

Bonus First is as follows:

EEMTEEZRESRAFES N
T

HK$'000
TAT

Cash consideration received BEYEEKRE

56,500
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37. COMMITMENTS 37. & E
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAREKIE
The Group had the following outstanding capital commitments RBEBAR AEEEE T ERE
at the end of the reporting period: BB AR
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —E—AHF
FHET FET

Contracted but not provided for, in

BEATIIE 2 BRI KVEREE
respect of:

— Acquisition of property, — X BER&RE

plant and equipment - 266
— Acquisition of a subsidiary — Ui —FEME AR - 14,350
- 14,616

(b) Operating leases (b) K&HE

Operating leases — lessee HEHE-RABA
The Group had the following total future minimum lease REE R NEEBE T A HEL
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of EHERHEEEFHUTRRKER
leasehold buildings at the end of the reporting period: B REEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-RE —E—hF
FERT FET
Not later than one year —F KN 2,813 2,798
Later than one year but not later —FRERAFA
than five years 191 2,294

3,004 5,092

The leases run for an initial period of one to three years (2015: MENML AR —Z=F(=ZF—1

one to three years), with options to renew the leases and F:—E=F) LAEFEEZHEA

renegotiate the terms at the expiry dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective lessors. None of the leases

include contingent rentals.
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37. COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) Operating leases (continued)
Operating leases — lessor

The Group had the following total future minimum lease

payments receivable under non-cancellable operating leases

37.&E (&)
(b) BK&EHE (#)
BEHE-HBA

REBEHR AEERE A HEL
EHEREERFTAUT RARREN

in respect of leasehold building at the end of the reporting B REsE
period:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
EF WP BT e
FERT FHT
Not later than one year —F R - 170

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2016 and 2015.

3. HAREE

RIE—RFER_E—RAF+-_A=+—
B AEEMESEANAREE-
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amount and fair value of

30. BERIB D 2 M BEERMK

BEHME
FRIIRH 4.8 R 2 B A B RIS

financial assets and liabilities as defined in Note 4.8: BEZEEABELAN(EE:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—XE —T—hEF
FET FAT
Financial assets: HMEEE:
Available-for-sale financial asset A EMBEE 15,300 -
Financial assets at fair value through BRBEEAALEBEIEZ
profit or loss WBEE
- Held-for-trading investments —BEEERA 166,311 -
Loans and receivables Bk EWFRIE
— Trade and other receivables — B 5 MH M ERFIE 102,707 20,663
— Cash and cash equivalents - BakReEFEEYD 30,479 184,235
314,797 204,898
Financial liabilities: BRaE:
Financial liabilities measured at IR ER AT 22 MK A%
amortised cost
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMENKIEA 30,260 30,442
Fair value measurement AREEFE

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Except for held-for-trading investments, all of the Group’s financial

instruments are not measured at their fair values, as they are short

term in nature and it is considered that their costs or amortised

costs approximate to their fair values.

For the available-for-sale investment in unlisted equity security, the

financial instrument is measured at cost less impairment as the

range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that it is

considered that the fair value cannot be measured reliably.

AMCO UNITED HOLDING LIMITED
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
categorized into the three-level fair value hierarchy. The level into
which a fair value measured is classified and determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in

the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that can access at the

measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The financial asset measured at fair value in the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 31 December are grouped into

the fair value hierarchy as follows:

30. BERIB D 2 M BEERMK

BEHBE 2

AAREBEFE ®)

BEEMEEUNAEETEZHY
BEE
TREHRVNIEREUARABEFEZS
BITANM BEE-EAAEBEEMR A
REEFEREZERESEHERMF
FERZBABEZIBRMEREREBE TN
T

s FEBAZESRFTERHAERE
ZHERBEERAERERTIS 2K

BEWwE

s F_EBABBARAEELRBEEX
BMERBABERZBABE (F—ER
BREZHRERIN) R

s FoEBABEBREEXRBEZAT
BERBmARE-

RT=—A=t+—HZEEBBRRENER
DRABEAEBZHBEEEZAABERER
DEBRMOT

Level 1
£—fE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —E-hEF
FER FHET
Held-for-trading investments FIEEBEIRE 166,311 =
ERERERADT

=
2016 F 3
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—FE—NF+-HA=+—HIFE

39.

40.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial instruments that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (continued)

Held-for-trading investments were investments in equity securities
listed in Hong Kong, for which the fair values were determined with

reference to quoted bid prices in an active market.

All of the Group's fair value measurements were revalued at the end

of the reporting period.

There were no transfers of financial instruments between levels in

the hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also exposed
to equity price risk arising from movements in its own equity share

price and its investment in equity securities.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments in the
normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk, liquidity risk,

interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group's
headquarter, in close co-operation with the Board. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group's
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to

financial markets.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management policies

and practices described below.
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39.

40.

RERE D CHEEERBE
BEHME 2

AAREEFE ®)
BREMEEURAARBETEZE
BEE (#)
BEEEREATREB Ly BRABEY
BE HARBEDSBNERNE YR

BEE-

AEBMRAAABESEONRERNRE

HE-_Z—X"FRZE—AF+=A
SEMeR T AR &

[1]
i
m
==
i
it

Bt %5 B i

AEEAZZEE RPED MEREE
RETTREREBBEZPEL -AKH
MASZRERS 2 BEZE R ERERAE
FZREMEEZRERR -

RAREZ EREHBRETRMBETAM
EXzIZRBREERR RBESR
@ AR EE B RERRERER-

AEEBBEEZTETIEE BRAMB
RBEETHF ERYKEARIERBR
SPREBEEREERERM S ZAR
EE REAEEZTEHRSRE -

ZERRIDE T X A& AN EE 2 15 E 2
B R B IR ) o
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(i) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an

ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Trade receivables
are due within 30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 6 months past due are requested
to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers, except for new customers, where payment in

advance is normally required.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group has a certain concentration
of credit risk as 24% (2015: 96%) and 67% (2015: 99%) of
the total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest

customer and the five largest customers respectively.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables

are set out in Note 22.

40. KRR ERE #)
(i) EERRE

AEEZEERREIEZEREEANEES
&EW&V”&Z XH-BEERAREZ
FERE UTHEEERMARZEER
R o

HESLEMERRENS MER
KBHEERBZEPHEETER
EEFE - ZEFEETREFB

R BB & SR 2 F 8% - A RIR B I8 3K
ZEN TEEEEFPHEZRFPE
HRSEZFPREMEE ZKERE -
B REWGRIEBHERMEA30AR
B ERBENEAR EZEBA
REREME S EERNRBEME
HARBEER  —RME  AEETE
AEFPRRERR EFEP —RE
ESCENE/OK

AEEHE EERBRTIERESR
FREBFEMTE BEEAKEETE
REEREBRZERABRITEEE

BREMRE MHER] -RBEH
K AEREEETEHREERR B
K%@%ﬁ@ﬁ&ﬁﬁzﬁzwﬁﬁ
AMEE S EBGRIERTE 224% (ZF
—HF:96% ) K67% (ZFE—RF:
99% ) °

ERAEEATAE SR E KR
EMEAZ EERRZE—SEER
B H KRR B 222 -
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(ii) Liquidity risk
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines

of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group's financial
liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on current rates at the reporting date) and the earliest

date the Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2016

40. I ERERE (#)

(i)

RBESRR

AEEZBRDERERERDES
FERREETHEROZBER AR
REMFTRR 2B EHE R AR E
RZAHERST A B X BU %
BESRREREAR UENEEH
EBREHRBEST K-

TRETRBEPRAEE 2HBEA
BzH TANIEE  HRBEREER
Reng (BREAAOMNERTFEL
BN Sl RBFEHM X - RIRER
BEBHZERAMNEGFE) RBERA
BERZ&FABAMSL -

R-ZB-X"F+=-A=+—-H

Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year
amount cash flows or on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ARRER —FRH
BREE ReREHRE RER
FHET FHET FHERT
Non-derivative financial FITEMBAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE - ;B 30,260 30,260 30,260
As at 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+_A=+—H
Total contractual Within
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or
amount cash flows on demand
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BREE BHIREEER —F R
ReneleE RER
FHET FHET FET
Non-derivative financial FTEMBAE
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5 K H e~ FROE 30,442 30,442 30,442
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk related to the risk that the fair value or
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of

changes in market interest rate.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank deposits which earn interests at floating or fixed rates.
At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have
any interest bearing borrowings. The Group has not used any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
The Group has not formulated a policy to manage the interest
rate risk. The Directors considered that the Group’s exposure

to interest rate risk is not significant.

(iv) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong. The functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries is HKS.
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales that are denominated primarily in United States Dollars
("US$") for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
Both US$ and RMB are currencies other than the functional

currencies of the operations to which they related.

40. KRR ERE #)
(iIVRERERA2AEBENRE

oo
AN

MERBAMBIAZ AAEELSR
A TSR KB KRB 2 A

KEBAZZMNERBRFERE R
RZEHEBRIA S ZRITIFR -
RZE—AR"FERZTE—AF+ZA
=+ —H KAEBEWEEME LA
E-AEEVEFEAEATEIAS
78 R ) 2 R B o AR £R B M A E B
BAHERB s BR EEZRRAEE
AR FERBIEDERK -

(iv) B & bz

AEEXTEREBBLZ ARFARE
REBMBERRIZNEER /BT
RBE_Z-RFR-_ZF-AF+=
A=Z+—HALFE AREZEER
BT ERRNIBUART(IET])
AHEZHE - ZTRARKIGRIEH
KB 2N BB AN ZEE -

uss RMB
EJ ARM
2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RF —ZT—HF —E-XE —E-HEF
TER FET FTHER FHET
Trade and other receivables B 5 I H it fE W FRIE 648 9,617 - =
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEL5ED 5,458 2,715 361 235
Trade and other payables B 5 KE b A FRIE (129) (64) (17) (24)
Overall net exposure BEEERRFE 5,977 12,268 344 211
ERZERARAT

=
2016 3|
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_F-—ANF+ZHA=1+—-HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(iv) Currency risk (continued)

(v)

As HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group does not have
material exchange rate risk on such currency. As at 31
December 2016 and 2015, the net exposure of assets
and liabilities to RMB is considered as minimal due to the
insignificance in amount. Accordingly, the Directors consider

that no sensitivity analysis is required.

Price risk

The Group’s held-for-trading investments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Therefore,
the Group is exposed to equity security price risk. The
Directors manage this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.

The Group's loss after tax for the year would decrease/increase
as a result of gains/losses on change in fair value of held-for-

trading investments recognised in profit or loss.

At 31 December 2016, if the share prices of the investments
increase/decrease by 5%, the Group’s loss after tax for the
year would have been approximately HK$8,316,000 lower/
higher (2015: HK$ nil), arising as a result of the fair value gain/

loss of the investments.
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40. KRR ERE #)
(ivIE¥ER &)

(v)

RGBT EE TR FE A BT
BAREZEBZERNEXRRR K=
E-RERZE-RAFTZRA=+—
H-B2ARBHBZEEMEBERR
FR BN ARE BT KM AR R
oAt EERBBBEDIMBETL

o

BEERR

AEEZHEEERERBEHRRZ
R EEFTE - F - A& B R
EHEBRER - EZEBERTRE
kPR ERAAEREZ AR -

AEBEFARBRERKE B DA E
ROFIEEERERAREBEEZE S WE
S EEmRD g e

R-E—XREFE+-_A=+—8 &R
ERE EF IS % AN B F AR
RMEBEREREEZ AREERKZE
&5 48 MRk 48 0 498,316,000 7T
“E-RF:EERT) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z - ZF—ANF+-F=1+—HULFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for Shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher Shareholders'
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital. The amount of
capital as at 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
HK$302,842,000 (2015: HK$243,770,000).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no significant event after the end of the reporting period of

the Group.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017.

41.

42.

43,

EXRERER

AEBEREAEERBASE ZFHERL
R MR MAEE BRI HE MY
RE A SRR R A2

AEFEREGELRERRILEEEEARR
B REAERSEEKFIESTRZES
PR R [ 3R S ER 1S TR0 B S AR LT A 2R 2 42
E&ﬁ@Zﬁﬁ%$%’ﬁ%ﬁ@#ﬂz
HEHEARRBETH

EHERERRAERAELRA R
—RNE+ZA=+—RAZEXREE
#4 /302,842,000 L (=T — R F:
243,770,000/ 7T ) °

BERMERER
AEENEERRERETAEAER-

BB SRR

AFBEREREN_ZE—+F=A=-+N1H
BEZofE RIETE-
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Financial Summary

MBEHRE

1. RESULTS

1.

E 3

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+t-HLEFE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-RE —E-hE —E-UE —E-=F —T—-F
BT FET FET FHET FHET
Revenue from continuing RARBEEEBZ
operations A 98,879 71,845 76,470 89,006 132,413
Loss before income tax from  REHERL LD
continuing operations ZBRFEHAIEE (18,456) (16,867) (48,287) (74,754) (55,783)
Income tax credit/(expenses) K ERBELEEK L
from continuing operations ~ FTEHE R,
(H%) 426 (235) - 141 251
(Loss)/profit for the year from KB B R [FZE %5
discontinued operations 2EE (BB
St A (379) (1,504) - - 10,882
Loss for the year attributable AR A #EA A (S
to owners of the Company FEBE (18,409) (18,606) (48,287) (74,613) (44,650)
2. ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 2. EEREE
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+-8H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-XRF —ET—hF —T—mF —E—= —E—=F
FEx FHET FHET FHET FAT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment  #)% - B 5 K& # 2,652 65,703 3,169 6,009 17,576
Goodwill k) 10,196 957 - 11,836 45,907
Intangible assets EREE 5,297 2,584 - - -
Available-for-sale AEHEMBEE
financial asset 15,300 - - - -
Other assets Hith & E 300,559 205,322 78,774 28,654 49,373
Total assets BEE 334,004 274,566 81,943 46,499 112,856
Liabilities afE
Current liabilities mEERE 30,288 30,442 33,757 76,043 63,154
Non-current liabilities FRBAR 874 354 - 7,129 12,150
Total liabilities maR 31,162 30,796 33,757 83,172 75,304
Equity/(capital deficiency) ZAATEEAEL
attributable to owners of &3 (BEXELH)
the Company 302,842 243,770 48,186 (36,673) 37,552
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